
BOARD PACKET 
For the Board Meeting of 

Thursday, September 22, 2022 

1. AGENDA ......................................................................... Agenda+2022-09.22.pdf (montsan.org) 

2. MONTECITO GSA MONITORING WELL REQUEST LETTER .........................................2 

3. RESOLUTION 2022-955: REMOTE MEETINGS ADOPTION .............................................. 27 

4. MINUTES – AUGUST 11, 2022 ................................................................................................ 30 

5. MINUTES – AUGUST 25, 2022 ................................................................................................ 33 

6. PAYABLES REPORT AUGUST 1 THROUGH AUGUST 31, 2022 ....................................... 39 

7. STAFF REPORT – SEWER RATE AND CONNECTION FEE STUDY ................................ 44 

8. DRAFT ORDINANCE NO. 20 – DIRECTOR COMPENSATION ........................................ 162 

9. STAFF REPORT – 1508/1510/1516 E MOUNTAIN SEWER MAIN EXTENSION

ACCEPTANCE ........................................................................................................................ 164 

10. MANAGERS REPORT – AUGUST 2022 ............................................................................... 168 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 1 of 170

https://www.montsan.org/files/22c838e04/Agenda+2022-09-22.pdf


September 16, 2022 

Bradley Rahrer  
General Manager 
1042 Monte Cristo Lane 
Santa Barbara, CA 93108 

Re:  Request for Easement at 1042 Monte Cristo Lane for the Purposes of a Groundwater 
Monitoring Well  

Dear Mr. Rahrer, 

The Montecito Groundwater Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA) is requesting an 
easement on the Montecito Sanitary District (MSD) property at 1042 Monte Cristo Lane, Santa 
Barbara, CA 93108.  The purpose of the easement is to allow the GSA to drill a groundwater 
monitoring well for long term sea water intrusion monitoring.   The easement would include 
temporary access for an estimated 4-8 week drilling period, and long term access for data 
gathering at the well (permanent easement would be approx. 150 square feet).   

The GSA has reviewed all available parcels in the area surrounding the MSD property and 
determined the ideal location is the MSD property given its proximity to the coast and the good 
working relationship of our two Agencies.   After three site visits with yourself and your staff, 
we have selected a location on the MSD property that we believe will not interfere with MSD 
operations and will also avoid areas of planned future development for recycled water or other 
facilities on the property.   

Attached for your consideration is the draft easement deed, draft Coastal Development Permit 
exemption request, and a draft CEQA notice of exemption. A valuation summary developed by 
a third-party appraiser will be sent separate to this letter for your review.    

Also attached is the staff report from the GSA Strategic Planning Committee that provides more 
detail on the project.  The GSA Strategic Planning Committee supported this well location and 
for this agenda item to be brought to the GSA Board of Directors for consideration on October 
11, 2022 at the regular GSA board meeting.  

We understand this request would require approval from the MSD Board of Directors.  Our 
agency staff is available to support any Board presentations that may be needed to support this 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 2 of 170



 

 

possible easement approval.  If supported by the MSD Board of Directors, we would need MSD 
signatures on the easement deed and CDP exemption request.  
 
If you have any questions, please contact me at 805-324-4207 or via email at 
nkunstek@montecitogsa.com.  
 
Sincerely, 

  
Nicholas Kunstek 
Groundwater Specialist 
 
 
CC: Nick Turner, General Manager 
       Brian Goebel, Board President 
 
 
Attachments: (1) Draft Coastal Development Permit Exemption Request 
  (2) Draft Easement Deed 
  (3) Draft CEQA Notice of Exemption 
  (4) Staff Report from GSA Strategic Planning Committee 9/13/22 
 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 3 of 170

mailto:nkunstek@montecitogsa.com


G:\GROUP\DEV_REV\Zoning Counter\FINAL Application Forms\001 Final Application Forms\Master Application Form.docx 

Santa Barbara County Planning and Development Department 

Planning Application 

STEP 1: SUBJECT PROPERTY 
 
ASSESSOR’S PARCEL NUMBER(S) 

 
PROPERTY ADDRESS (IF APPLICABLE) 

BUSINESS/ESTABLISHMENT NAME (IF APPLICABLE) 

STEP 2: REQUIRED PROJECT CONTACTS 

PROPERTY OWNER 
 
NAME (if LLC or other legal entity, must provide documentation) 

 
STREET ADDRESS 

 
CITY,  STATE ZIP 

 
PHONE EMAIL 

APPLICANT 

NAME (if LLC or other legal entity, must provide documentation) 

 
STREET ADDRESS 

 
CITY,  STATE ZIP 

 
PHONE EMAIL 

FINANCIALLY RESPONSIBLE PARTY 

NAME (if LLC or other legal entity, must provide documentation) 

 
STREET ADDRESS 

 
CITY,  STATE ZIP 

 
PHONE EMAIL 

AGENT (if applicable) 
 
NAME (if LLC or other legal entity, must provide documentation) 

 
STREET ADDRESS 

 
CITY,  STATE ZIP 

 
PHONE EMAIL 

STEP 3: DETAILED SCOPE OF WORK 
Please attach a detailed scope of work that includes the existing uses 
and structures, whether demolition of structures is proposed, and all 
proposed uses, structures, and additions. Please include square 
footages of all existing and proposed structures.  

STEP 4: PROJECT DATA 
Is grading proposed? ☐ Yes ☐ No   If yes, cubic yards: 
 
CUT FILL TOTAL GRADING 

Will grading be balanced on-site? ☐ Yes ☐ No

If no:     
QUANTITY OF EXPORT OR IMPORT 

Is there a 16-foot drop in elevation within 100 feet of proposed 
structure footprint? ☐ Yes ☐ No 

Are any trees or vegetation proposed for removal? ☐ Yes ☐ No

If yes:   
NUMBER/ACREAGE & SPECIES PROPOSED FOR REMOVAL 

Is any work proposed within 6 feet of the dripline of any native trees? 
☐ Yes ☐ No 

Square feet of impervious surfaces: __________________________ 
EXISTING PROPOSED

Is this application related to cannabis activities? ☐ Yes ☐ No

Water Source: Sewer System: 
☐ Public Water ☐ Public Sewer 
☐ Private Well ☐ Private Septic or Equivalent 
☐ Shared Water System 

Evidence of Parcel Validity (attach relevant documents):
☐ Recorded Parcel/Final Map ☐ Recorded Official Map

☐ Certificate of Compliance ☐ Conditional Certificate of Compliance 
☐ Approved Lot Line Adjustment ☐ Recorded Voluntary Merger
☐ Prior Zoning Permits 

Hazardous Waste & Substances 
California Government Code §65962.5 requires all applicants for 
development projects to provide the following information. Make sure 
you check each list below and confirm whether the site is listed as a 
Hazardous Waste Site: 
☐ Department of Toxic Substance Control EnviroStor Database

☐ Water Board GeoTracker Database
☐ CalEPA Solid Waste Disposal Sites
☐ CalEPA Cease and Desist Orders and Cleanup and Abatement Orders
☐ CalEPA Hazardous Waste Facilities

Is the site listed as a Hazardous Waste Site? ☐ Yes ☐ No
 

009-282-001

910 Channel Drive, Santa Barbara, CA 93108

Montecito Sanitary District, c/o Bradley Rahrer

1042 Monte Cristo Lane

Santa Barbara CA 93101

805-969-4200 brahrer@montsan.org

Montecito Groundwater Sustainability Agency c/o Nick Turner 

583 San Ysidro Road

Santa Barbara CA 93108

805-324-4207 nkunstek@montecitogsa.com

Montecito Groundwater Sustainability Agency c/o Nick Turner

583 San Ysidro Road

Santa Barbara CA 93108

805-324-4207 nkunstek@montecitogsa.com

Chris Price for Rincon Consultants

290 Maple Court, Suite 120

Ventura CA 93003

805-644-4455 cprice@rinconconsultants.com

30-40 max 0 30-40

30-40 c.y. exported

2.5 acres 0

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 4 of 170



 
123 E. Anapamu Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101  ●  Phone: (805) 568-2000  ●  FAX (805) 568-2020 

624 Foster Road, Santa Maria, CA 93455  ●  Phone: (805) 934-6250  ●  FAX (805) 934-6258 

www.sbcountyplanning.org 

STEP 5: CASE SPECIFIC SUBMITTAL CHECKLISTS After confirming the required permit(s) with P&D staff, please check all that apply. 
 
PRE-PLANNING 
☐ Planner Consultation (CNS) Checklist  ☐ Pre-Application (PRE) Checklist  
 

STAFF LEVEL PERMITS 
☐ Land Use Permit (LUP) Checklist    ☐ Coastal Development Permit (CDP) Checklist  
☐ Zoning Clearance (ZCI) Checklist     ☐ Exemption (EXE) Checklist 
☐ Emergency Permit (EMP) Checklist    ☐ Road Naming (RDN) Checklist 
☐ Reasonable Accommodation Request (DET) Checklist  ☐ Senate Bill 330 Preliminary Application Checklist 
☐ Senate Bill 9 (HSG) Housing Checklist     
 

DISCRETIONARY PERMITS 
☐ Minor Conditional Use Permit (MCUP) Checklist  ☐ Major Conditional Use Permit (CUP) Checklist  
☐ Development Plan (DVP) Checklist    ☐ Coastal Development Permit with Hearing (CDH) Checklist 
☐ Modification (MOD) Checklist     ☐ Variance (VAR) Checklist 
☐ Nonconforming Status Hardship Determination (MIS) Checklist  ☐ Government Code 65402 Consistency Determination (GOV) Checklist 
☐ Similar Use Determination (DET) Checklist   ☐ Oil & Gas Production / Exploration Plan (PPP) Checklist 
☐ Surface Mining Reclamation Plan (RPP) Checklist   
 

DESIGN REVIEW 
☐ Board of Architectural Review (BAR) Checklist   ☐ BAR Supplemental Form 
 

POST-APPROVAL REQUESTS 
☐ Permit Compliance (PMC) Checklist    ☐ Substantial Conformity Determination (SCD) Checklist  
☐ Amendment (AMD) Checklist     ☐ Minor Change / Revision (RVP) Checklist 
☐ Time Extension (TEX) Checklist    ☐ Recorded Map Modification (RMM) Checklist 
 

SIGN PERMITS 
☐ Sign Certificate of Conformance (SCC) Checklist   ☐ Overall Sign Plan (OSP) Checklist  
 

DIVISION OF LAND 
☐ Lot Line Adjustment (LLA) Checklist    ☐ Tentative Parcel Map (TPM) Checklist  
☐ Tentative Tract Map (TRM) Checklist    ☐ Senate Bill 9 (HSG) Parcel Map Checklist   
☐ Conditional Certificate of Compliance (COC) Checklist  ☐ Final Map Clearance (MPC) Checklist    
 

LEGISLATIVE ACTS 
☐ Rezone (RZN) Checklist     ☐ Specific Plan (SPP) Checklist  
☐ General/Comprehensive Plan Amendment (GPA) Checklist ☐ Ordinance Amendment (ORD) Checklist 
 

MONTECITO GROWTH MANAGEMENT ORDINANCE (MGMO) 
☐ MGMO Allocation (MPA) Checklist    ☐ MGMO Hardship Exemption (MPA) Checklist  
 

AGRICULTURAL PRESERVE PROGRAM 
☐ Ag Preserve Advisory Committee Request Checklist  ☐ Ag Preserve Contract Cancellation Checklist  
☐ Ag Preserve Contract Assumption Checklist   ☐ Ag Preserve Contract New or Replacement Checklist  
☐ Ag Preserve Contract Non-Renewal Checklist   ☐ Agricultural Activities Supplemental Form  
 

SPECIFIC USE / SUPPLEMENTAL FORMS 
☐ Telecommunication Project Supplemental Form  ☐ Cannabis Project Supplemental Form 

☐ Oil & Gas Project Supplemental Form    ☐ Surface Mining Project Supplemental Form 
☐ Soil Remediation Cost Estimate     ☐ Winery Project Supplemental Form     
☐ Home Occupation Project (HOC) Supplemental Form  ☐ Homestay Project (HOM) Supplemental Form 
☐ Mobile Home / Trailer Supplemental Form   ☐ Greenhouse Development Supplemental Form 
☐ Water Efficient Landscape Ordinance Supplemental Form ☐ Special Event Supplemental Form      
☐ Hazardous Waste Supplemental Form 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 5 of 170



 
123 E. Anapamu Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101  ●  Phone: (805) 568-2000  ●  FAX (805) 568-2020 

624 Foster Road, Santa Maria, CA 93455  ●  Phone: (805) 934-6250  ●  FAX (805) 934-6258 

www.sbcountyplanning.org 

STEP 6: OWNER/APPLICANT CONSENT 
I hereby certify under penalty of perjury that I have read the information below and that:

1. I am the property owner or have obtained the property owner’s/ 
owners’ consent to the submittal of this application and contents 
therein; and 

2. I have carefully reviewed and prepared the application and plans in 
accordance with the instructions; and 

3. I provided information in this application, including all attachments, 
which are accurate and correct; and 

4. I understand that the submittal of inaccurate or incomplete 
information or plans, or failure to comply with the instructions may 
result in processing delays and/or denial of my application; and 

5. I understand that it is the responsibility of the applicant to 
substantiate the request through the requirements of the 
application; and 

6. I understand that upon further evaluation, additional 
information/documents/reports/entitlements and fees may be 
required; and 

7. I understand that failure to submit any such required fees or 
information requested at a later time may result in processing 
delays and/or denial of my application; and 

8. I understand that denials will result in no refunds; and 

9. I am the property owner or have obtained the property owner’s 
consent and expressly allow, authorize, and permit the County 
of Santa Barbara to enter and inspect the subject property, with 
or without prior notice, to inspect, photograph, and/or process this 
application. No additional permission or consent to enter upon the 
subject property is necessary or shall be required. I further certify 
and warrant that I am authorized to and, hereby do, consent and 
allow such inspections on behalf of each and all owners of the 
subject property; and 

10. I understand that it is the responsibility of the applicant or property 
owner to notify the Department of any changes to the project, 
including change in ownership, which may require additional 
information/documents/reports and fees and may cause delay to 
the processing of the project; and 

11. I understand that if there is a zoning violation on the property, plan 
review may be delayed. Any unpermitted structures or uses must 
either be removed or legalized at part of this application; and 

12. I understand that all materials submitted in connection with this 
application shall become public record subject to inspection and 
copying by the public. I acknowledge and understand that the 
public may inspect these materials and that some or all of the 
materials may be posted on the Department’s website;  and 

13. Pursuant to California Civil Code Section 1633.5(b), the parties 
hereby agree that where this Agreement requires a party 
signature, an electronic signature, as that term is defined at 
California Civil Code Section 1633.2(h), shall have the full force 
and effect of an original (“wet”) signature. A responsible officer 
of each party has read and understands the contents of this 
Agreement and is empowered and duly authorized on behalf of 
that party to execute it. 

14. I understand that there is no guarantee – expressed or implied – 
that an approval will be granted. I understand that such application 
must be carefully evaluated and after the evaluation has been 
conducted, that staff’s recommendation or decision may change 
during the course of the review based on the information presented. 

     
REQUIRED SIGNATURES 

I have read, understand and consent to the submittal of this application. 
 
                    
PROPERTY OWNER SIGNATURE    PRINT NAME     DATE 

 

 
                    
APPLICANT SIGNATURE (only if different from OWNER)  PRINT NAME     DATE 

 
 
 

                    
FINANCIALLY RESPONSIBLE PARTY SIGNATURE   PRINT NAME     DATE 

 
 
                    
AGENT SIGNATURE (if applicable)    PRINT NAME     DATE 
 
 

 

To submit your application, please contact the Zoning Counter to obtain a personalized submittal link. 
 

For South County projects, contact us at front@countyofsb.org or (805) 568-2090. 
 

For North County projects, contact us a nczoning@countyofsb.org or (805) 934-6251. 

Bradley Rahrer

Nick Turner

Nick Turner

Chris Price 8/8/2022

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 6 of 170



Attachment A 

Project Description 

 

Background. The Montecito Groundwater Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (Agency) was 

formed in 2018 for the purpose of sustainably managing the Montecito Groundwater Basin (Basin) as 

defined by the Sustainable Groundwater Management Act (SGMA). 

In May of 2020, the Agency was awarded funds from the California Department of Water Resources 

through the Sustainable Groundwater Management Grant (Grant), to conduct several projects to assist 

with the development of the Agency’s Groundwater Sustainability Plan (GSP). As a coastal basin with 

historically unregulated groundwater extraction, there is the potential for the Basin to experience 

several undesirable results, as defined by SGMA, including chronic lowering of groundwater levels, 

degradation of water quality, and sea water intrusion.  

One of the Grant funded projects is the development of a groundwater monitoring well network. The 

purpose of the monitoring network is to provide data for incorporation into existing and future 

numerical models of the Basin. In coastal groundwater monitoring wells, an additional purpose is to 

monitor for sea water intrusion. Coastal wells in the network will be used to assess existing and 

potential sea water intrusion risk. The Agency has a network of pre-existing groundwater wells 

throughout the Basin and seeks to construct an additional purpose-built coastal monitoring well to fill 

data gaps and augment the existing monitoring well network. 

Request. This exemption request is to allow for the drilling of one groundwater observation well by the 

Montecito Groundwater Sustainability Agency on a 6.29-acre parcel owned by the Montecito Sanitary 

District located at 910 Channel Drive (APN 009-282-001).  The well will consist of a 10-12 inch diameter 

bore hole up to a maximum depth of 1500 ft (depending on where contact with bedrock is made).  

Installation of the monitoring well will not result in the production any water and will be capped at 

ground level.  Total associated grading for the bore will be a maximum of 30-40 cubic yards depending 

on the final depth of the observation well (below the threshold of 50 cubic necessary for an exemption). 

The well site is proposed for the southwest area of the parcel, just east of parcel boundary with Channel 

Drive (see attached site plan). No trees will be required to be removed and the site is not adjacent to 

any mapped Environmentally Sensitive Habitat (ESH).   

Although water wells require approval of Coastal Development Permit within the Coastal Zone, we 

believe this project qualifies for an exemption as it essentially constitutes a minor grading project of less 

than 50 cubic yards and will not result in the permanent placement of any above ground structures nor 

result in the production of any groundwater. Moreover, this project is being undertaken by a public 

agency for the sole purpose of monitoring conditions of the groundwater basin and therefore should be 

considered a publicly beneficial project. 

Specific details of the project are as follows: 

Observation Well.  An exploratory borehole would be drilled to bedrock or a depth of up to 1500 feet 
below ground surface (bgs) if bedrock is not encountered. The borehole would be backfilled to 
approximately 500 feet bgs and completed with up to three 2-inch casings. The borehole would be 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 7 of 170



advanced via mud rotary methods. A temporary work area of approximately 20,000 square feet (200 by 
100 feet) would be required (see Site Plan).  

The well will be completed with an at-grade vehicle-rated sealed vault, resulting in no permanent 
aboveground footprint.  

Testing and Data Acquisition. During construction, short-term zonal pumping tests would be conducted 
via installation of temporary casing within the borehole using tooling on the drill rig to assess water quality 
at depth.  

After construction, sampling from the 2-inch-casings would be conducted periodically with small 
temporary submersible pumps deployed manually from a standard work truck and powered by battery or 
small portable generator. Produced test water will trucked offsite for disposal, disposed of at the sanitary 
facility (with prior approval) or, if desirable, may be utilized to irrigate landscaping onsite. 

Construction Schedule 

Construction is estimated to begin in October 2022 and would be completed in approximately three to 
four weeks, barring any drill rig interruptions.  

2.1.1 Construction Activities 

Construction materials required for the observation well includes steel and PVC well casings; sand and 
gravel, drilling mud, cement slurry, and natural earth material for backfill. The staging areas for well 
construction would be located at the proposed work area (see Site Plan). 

Well construction would primarily entail drilling activities within the work areas. A mud rotary drill rig 
would be used. In general, the process of well construction and testing would consist of site preparation, 
mobilization of drill rig and supporting equipment, borehole advancement, well construction, well 
development, demobilization, and test pump installation. Well construction using mud rotary methods 
requires the use of a drill rig and supporting equipment (e.g., mud pumps and separator, etc.), loader, 
baker tank(s), water truck, temporary sanitary facilities, and smaller support trucks. 

The following is a description of the phases of construction: 

• Site Preparation. The well pad is scraped and graded to produce a flat work area. Material may 
be stockpiled or formed into berms to route runoff and contain drilling fluid and cuttings. An 
auger rig drills and installs a large-diameter conductor casing to 50 or more feet bgs and a 
cement seal is installed to prevent downward migration of surface contamination into the 
underlying aquifer.  

• Mobilization. A drill rig and supporting equipment are mobilized to the site. The drill rig is 
positioned over the well location and supported on hydraulic jacks. Supporting equipment are 
positioned near the drill rig and a receiving area for cuttings is prepared. Temporary crew shade 
and sanitary facilities are positioned onsite as necessary.  

• Borehole Advancement. The mobilized drill rig advances the borehole to the anticipated total 
depth. During drilling, cuttings are returned to the surface. Samples are collected at 10-foot or 
less intervals to characterize the subsurface. Typically, drilling advances at a rate of 50 to 100 
feet per day. 

• Well Construction. Upon advancing the pilot borehole to the desired depth, the well is designed 
through analysis of data from the cuttings and downhole geophysical surveys. The pilot 
borehole is reamed to an appropriate diameter and the cuttings are stockpiled onsite. Well 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 8 of 170



casing and annular fill material is delivered to the site. The well casing is assembled and lowered 
into the borehole, and annular fill material is emplaced, including a cement seal.  

• Well Development. Utilizing compressors and pumps on the drill rig, water is pumped from the 
well to remove water and drilling mud introduced to the formation during the drilling process. 
Chemical additives are introduced to break down drilling mud and facilitate development. 
Physical development techniques are utilized to force water through the well screens and gravel 
pack. Water quality parameters are monitored until the produced water is clear and parameters 
have stabilized. Development water is typically spread onsite or may be trucked offsite for 
disposal. 

• Demobilization and Test Pump Installation. The drill rig and supporting equipment are 
demobilized from the wellpad and the wellhead is finished with an at-grade vault. A pump 
installation rig installs an appropriately sized test pump and motor that will be utilized for short-
term pumping tests. 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 9 of 170



S
ea

vi
ew

D
r

Coast Village Cir

M
id

d
le

 R
d

Santa Elena Ln

Bonnymede Dr

Eleven O
ak

sLn

B
u

tt
er

fl
y

Ln

H
er

m
o

si
llo

R
d

Summit Rd

Fairway Rd

M
ac

et
a 

L
n

S
an

ta
Isa

b
el L

n

Danielson Rd

Oriole Rd

Virginia Rd

D
ep

o
t 

R
d

High Rd

PLZ
D

e Pacifica

O
ak

 R
d

O
liv

e
M

ill
Ln

Channel Dr

Mesa Rd

V
ir

g
in

ia
 L

n

Spring Rd

S
an

to
 T

o
m

as L
n

P
al

m
 T

re
e 

L
n

Monte Cristo Ln

Hill Rd

O
live

M
ill R

dHot Sprin
gs Rd

E

Cab
ril

lo
B

lv
d

Coast Village Rd

Coast Village Hwy

Old Coast Hwy

N Jameson Ln

Los Patos Way

£¤101

Seawater Intrusion Well Site Location Figure 1
Rincon Consultants, Inc.

Imagery provided by Microsoft Bing, Esri, and their licensors © 2022.

Subject Property

Work Site/Construction Staging Area

Proposed Monitoring Well

Coastal Zone

Coastal Commission Appeal Area

±
0 700350

Feet

Groundwater Monitoring Well Development
910 Channel Drive, Santa Barbara, California

C
h

an
n

el
 D

r

Monte Cristo Ln

Coast Village Rd

£¤101

009-282-001

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 10 of 170



 

                                   

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 11 of 170



 

                                   
                                     

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 12 of 170



G:\GROUP\DEV_REV\Zoning Counter\DRAFT Application Forms\Indemnification Agreement.docx 

Santa Barbara County Planning and Development Department 

Indemnification Agreement 

This Agreement is entered into pursuant to Santa Barbara County Land Use and Development Code Section 35.80.030.A.1, 
Montecito Land Use and Development Code Section 35.470.030.A.1, and Coastal Zoning Ordinance Section 35-57.A.4, as applicable. 

1. Indemnification. As part of the application for a permit, amendment, or other matter (hereinafter collectively “Project
Application”), ___________________________________ the applicant for the project (“Applicant”) and
________________________________ the owner(s) of the subject property (“Owner”), if non County-owned property and the
Owner is different than the Applicant, agree to indemnify, defend (with counsel reasonably approved by County), and hold
harmless Santa Barbara County and its officers, officials, employees, and agents (collectively “County”) as follows:
a. From and against any and all claims, demands, actions, proceedings, lawsuits, losses, damages, judgments and/or liabilities

by third parties arising out of, related to, or in connection with the approved Project Application or to attack, set aside,
void, or annul, in whole or in part, an approval of the Project Application by the County and any related development
approvals or project conditions (hereinafter “Claim”);

b. From any and all causes whatsoever against Claims by third parties, including the acts, errors, or omissions of the Owner(s)
and Applicant and his, her, its, and their officers, employees, agents and contractors;

c. For any and all costs and expenses (including but not limited to attorneys’ fees) incurred by County on account of any Claim
by third parties, except where such indemnification is prohibited by law; and

d. The indemnification obligation against Claims by third parties of Owner(s) and Applicant applies to County’s active as well
as passive negligence, but does not apply to County’s sole negligence or willful misconduct.

2. Defense. Owner(s) and Applicant shall permit County, with County’s unlimited discretion, to direct and participate in the
defense of any Claim, including, but not limited to, use of County Counsel to defend the Claim, but such participation shall not
relieve the Owner(s) or Applicant of any obligation imposed by this Agreement.

In the alternative, County shall have the right not to participate in the defense.

In the event of a disagreement between County and the Owner(s) or Applicant over litigation issues, County shall have the
authority to control the litigation and make litigation decisions, including, but not limited to, the manner in which the defense
is conducted.

If County reasonably determines that having common counsel would present such counsel with a conflict of interest, or if
Owner(s) or Applicant fail to promptly assume the defense of the Claim or to promptly employ counsel reasonably satisfactory
to County, then County may employ separate counsel to represent or defend County, and Owner(s) and Applicant shall pay the
reasonable attorneys’ fees and costs of such counsel.

3. Reimbursement. To the extent County uses any of its resources to respond to a Claim, Owner(s) and Applicant shall reimburse
the County upon demand. Such resources include, but are not limited to, staff time, court costs, County Counsel time, or any
other direct or indirect costs associated with responding to the Claim.

4. Obligations. The obligations of Owner(s) and Applicant for Claims under this Agreement shall survive and apply regardless of
whether any County approval is invalidated, set aside, expires, or is abandoned for any reason.

This Agreement and the obligations of Owner(s) and Applicant set forth herein shall remain in full force and effect throughout
all stages of litigation including any and all appeals of any lower court decrees, orders, or judgments, and regardless of whether
Owner(s) or Applicant have brought any claim, action, or demand against County.

Owner(s) and Applicant are solely responsible for compliance with all local, state, and Federal laws and for obtaining necessary
authorizations, approvals, and/or permits from other local, state, and Federal agencies. Any failure of Owner(s) and Applicant
to comply with applicable laws or to obtain necessary authorizations, approvals, and/or permits shall not invalidate this
Agreement or excuse the obligations of Owner(s) and Applicant under this Agreement except where such indemnification is
prohibited by law.

5. Successors and Assigns. These obligations shall be binding upon each and every successor, assign, and transferee of any interest
in, right, or title to any part of the real property that is the subject of the Project Application. Owner(s) and Applicant shall cause 

Nick Turner, Montecito GSA

Montecito Sanitary District c/o Bradley Rahrer

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 13 of 170



 
123 E. Anapamu Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101  ●  Phone: (805) 568-2000  ●  FAX (805) 568-2020 

624 Foster Road, Santa Maria, CA 93455  ●  Phone: (805) 934-6250  ●  FAX (805) 934-6258 

www.sbcountyplanning.org 

 

all successors, assigns, and transferees to be so obligated; provided that Owner(s) and Applicant shall be and remain personally 
obligated to all of the terms of this Agreement, notwithstanding any attempt to assign, delegate, or otherwise transfer any of 
the obligations of this Agreement, and notwithstanding a change in ownership or any deed, transfer, or conveyance of any 
interest in, right, or title to any part of the property that is the subject of the Project Application. 

 
6. Stipulation, Release, or Settlement. Owner(s) and Applicant shall not execute, pay, or perform pursuant to, any stipulation, 

release, settlement agreement, or other disposition of the matter on such Claim unless the County, Owner(s) and Applicant 
have approved the stipulation, release, or settlement agreement in writing, such approval not to be unreasonably withheld. 

 
In no case shall Owner(s) or Applicant assume, admit, or assert any fault, wrongdoing, or liability on the part of the County as a 
condition of or as part of any stipulation, release, settlement, or otherwise. Owner(s) and Applicant shall not assert any defense, 
claim, or complaint against County on any Claim as a condition of or as part of any stipulation, release, settlement or otherwise. 

 
7. No Waiver. Any failure, actual or alleged, on the part of County to monitor or enforce compliance with any of the 

indemnification requirements will not be deemed as a waiver of any rights on the part of County. 
 

8. Authority. Each person signing this Agreement represents and warrants that he or she has the power, is duly authorized, and 
has the capacity to enter into this Agreement and that this Agreement is a valid and legal agreement binding on the Owner(s) 
and Applicant and enforceable in accordance with its terms. 

 
9. Complete Agreement. This Agreement shall constitute the complete understanding of the parties with respect to the matters 

set forth herein. Neither party is relying on any other representation, oral or written. 
 

10. Counterparts. This Agreement may be signed in counterparts and must be signed by all Applicants and Owners of the property 
that is the subject of the Project Application. 
 

11. Digital Signature. If signed electronically, the signature must be an electronic identifier, created by computer, intended by the 
party using it to have the same force and effect as the use of a manual signature. A digital signature is a type of “electronic 
signature” as defined in subdivision (h) of Section 1633.2 of the Civil Code. California Government Code Section 16.5 lists more 
fully the criteria that must be met, in the event a public entity elects to use a digital signature, in order for the digital signature 
to have the same force and effect as a manual signature. 

 
Project Address (or APN if no address): __________________________________________________________________________ 
 
Project Name (ie, Smith Guest House): __________________________________________________________________________ 
 
  
REQUIRED SIGNATURES 

I have read, understand and agree to these terms. 
 
 
                    
OWNER SIGNATURE      PRINT NAME     DATE 

 
 

 
                    
APPLICANT SIGNATURE (only if different than OWNER)  PRINT NAME     DATE 

 
 

 
 

 
 

 

910 Channel Drive, Santa Barbara, CA 93108
Montecito Groundwater Monitoring Well

Bradley Rahrer

Nick Turner

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 14 of 170



          1/5 
                                                                                                                           

 

Recording requested by: 
 Hamner, Jewell & Associates 
 Government Real Estate Services 
 
When recorded, mail to: 
The Montecito GSA 
583 San Ysidro Rd.  
Santa Barbara, CA 93108 
  
 

 

 
Exempt from the $75 Building and Jobs Act Fee per Gov’t Code § 27388.1(2)(D) Public Agency 

        No Documentary Transfer Tax per R&T Code § 11922 
        No Recording Fee per Government Code § 27383 

 

 

EASEMENT DEED 

(Monitoring Wells) 

 
A.P.N.  009-282-001 

 

 

FOR A VALUABLE CONSIDERATION, receipt of which is hereby acknowledged, 

 

Montecito Sanitary District (hereinafter referred to as “Grantor"), 

 

do(es) hereby GRANT to the  

 

  Montecito Groundwater Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (hereinafter 

referred to as “Agency”), 

 

the following easement interests in that certain real property owned by Grantor and described in 

Exhibit A attached hereto and depicted in Exhibit B attached hereto (hereinafter referred to as the 

“Real Property”): 

 

 A Permanent Easement to install, access, maintain, monitor, repair, replace, and 

retrieve data from, groundwater monitoring wells and related facilities (hereinafter collectively 

referred to as “Agency Facilities”).  The Agency Facilities may include, but are not limited to, 

markers, manholes, monitoring devices, data logging devices, and all related incidents, fixtures, 

appurtenances and electrical service necessary for the use of the groundwater monitoring well.  

The Agency Facilities may be located upon the ground surface, flush with the ground surface 

elevation.  This Permanent Easement for Agency Facilities shall be in, across, through, over, 

upon, under, and within   that portion of the Real Property described in Exhibit A and depicted in 

Exhibit B, attached hereto which are incorporated by this reference herein.   

 

 A Temporary Construction Easement, for all uses and purposes necessary for the 

construction and installation of the Agency Facilities, upon that portion of the Real Property 

shown in Exhibit C, identified as “Temporary Construction Easement.” This Temporary 

Construction Easement shall commence 15 days after issuance by District to Grantor of a written 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 15 of 170



          2/5 
                                                                                                                           

advance Notice of Construction Commencement and shall terminate upon completion of 

Agency’s construction of Agency Facilities, or one year after commencement, whichever occurs 

first. Agency shall have the exclusive right to use the Temporary Construction Easement area 

during the term of this temporary easement and may fence off the area from commencement 

through completion and restrict access thereto by Grantor and others.  Upon completion of 

Agency’s construction, Agency shall restore the Temporary Construction Easement area to a 

comparable condition as that which existed prior to Agency’s access and use, at no expense to 

Grantor, to the extent reasonably practical. 

 

The Permanent Easement and Temporary Construction Easement described herein shall be 

SUBJECT TO THE FOLLOWING TERMS AND CONDITIONS: 

 

 1.    Plans for Agency Facilities as they exist from time to time shall be maintained at the 

Agency’s principal offices. 

 

 2.  Agency shall have the right of ingress and egress for personnel, vehicles, and 

construction equipment to and from the easement areas.  This shall include the right to use lanes, 

drives, rights-of-way, and roadways within the Real Property which now exist or which 

hereinafter may be constructed, as shall be convenient and necessary for the purpose of 

exercising the rights herein set forth; provided, however, that nothing herein shall prevent or 

limit Grantor’s rights to close such roadways, lanes, or rights-of-way, and to provide Agency 

with comparable alternative access to the easement areas, as deemed reasonable by the Agency.   

 

 4.  The easements granted hereunder are subject to all existing fencing, drainage and 

utility easements, public roads, electrical transmission facilities, and communication lines 

existing on the date this document is signed by Grantor, and all future uses which do not directly 

or indirectly interfere with or endanger Agency’s exercise of the rights described herein, Grantor 

shall not construct, nor permit others to construct, such permanent or temporary facilities which 

conflict with Agency’s ability to use the easement areas for the rights granted herein.  In addition 

to any other legal and equitable remedies for violations of this paragraph, Agency shall have the 

right to do all things necessary and proper to remove any such conflicting uses at the Grantor’s 

expense, provided however, that Grantor may maintain perimeter fencing around the Real 

Property or portions thereof, so long as gate access is provided to Agency as needed to maintain 

unobstructed ingress and egress to the Agency Facilities. 

 

 5.  Subsequent to the grant of the easements herein, Grantor shall not grant any easements 

of any kind whatsoever to others across, through, over, upon, under, and within   the easement 

areas without the prior written approval of the Agency, which approval shall not be withheld 

unreasonably. 

 

 6. In the event that all or any portion of the easement rights herein conveyed are 

abandoned by Agency and the uses for which the easements have been granted cease, Agency 

shall have the right and obligation to enter the property to remove Agency Facilities.  Said 

removal will be done at Agency’s sole cost and expense and per all governmental requirements.  

Agency shall additionally relinquish and quitclaim any and all rights, title, and interests, which 

are being granted herein after such time when all Agency Facilities are removed. 

 

GRANTOR: 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 16 of 170



          3/5 
                                                                                                                           

Montecito Sanitary District 

 

By:           Date: _________________ 

     Name:  

     Title:      

 

 

By:           Date: __________________ 

      Name:  

      Title:  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 17 of 170



          4/5 
                                                                                                                           

Acknowledgment 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 

individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 

truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

State of California 

County of ________________ 

 

On ______________________ before me, ________________________________________, 

Notary Public, personally appeared ____________________, who proved to me on the basis of 

satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 

instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 

authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signatures(s) on the instrument the person(s), or 

the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

Signature __________________________    (Seal) 

 

Acknowledgment 

 

A notary public or other officer completing this certificate verifies only the identity of the 

individual who signed the document to which this certificate is attached, and not the 

truthfulness, accuracy, or validity of that document. 

 

State of California 

County of ________________ 

 

On ______________________ before me, ________________________________________, 

Notary Public, personally appeared _____________________, who proved to me on the basis of 

satisfactory evidence to be the person(s) whose name(s) is/are subscribed to the within 

instrument and acknowledged to me that he/she/they executed the same in his/her/their 

authorized capacity(ies), and that by his/her/their signatures(s) on the instrument the person(s), or 

the entity upon behalf of which the person(s) acted, executed the instrument. 

 

I certify under PENALTY OF PERJURY under the laws of the State of California that the 

foregoing paragraph is true and correct. 

 

WITNESS my hand and official seal. 

 

 

Signature __________________________    (Seal) 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 18 of 170



          5/5 
                                                                                                                           

 

CERTIFICATE OF ACCEPTANCE 

 

This is to certify that the Agency hereby accepts for public purposes the real property, or interest 

therein, described in that deed dated ________________________, from Montecito Sanitary 

District, grantors therein, to Montecito Groundwater Sustainability Agency grantee therein, and 

consents to the recordation thereof. 

 

In Witness Whereof, I have hereunto set my hand this _____ day of ________________, 2022. 

 

          

 

        by __________________________ 

 

        Name________________________ 

 

        Title _________________________ 

 

 
ATTEST: 
 
 
By _________________________________ 
     Name 
     Title 
 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 19 of 170



 
 

 

 
  
 

  

  
   

   

 

  

 

 
 

 
 
 

     

 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 

 

  

 

 
 
 
 
 
 

   
     

 
  

 
      
 

   

   
 

      
   

 
   

 

 

  

 

  

 

        Statutory Exemptions. State code number:  

          

   

_______________________________________________

Print Form 

Notice of Exemption Appendix E 

 From: (Public Agency):  ____________________________To: Office of Planning and Research 
P.O. Box 3044, Room 113

 _______________________________________________Sacramento, CA 95812-3044 

 County Clerk 
(Address) 

___________________________ 

___________________________ 

County of:  __________________ 

Project Title:  ____________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Applicant:  ________________________________________________________________________ 

Project Location - Specific: 

Project Location - City: ______________________ Project Location - County: 

Description of Nature, Purpose and Beneficiaries of Project: 

_____________________ 

Name of Public Agency Approving Project:  _____________________________________________________ 

Name of Person or Agency  Carrying Out Project: ________________________________________________ 

Exempt Status:  (check one): 
Ministerial (Sec. 21080(b)(1); 15268); 

Declared Emergency (Sec. 21080(b)(3); 15269(a)); 

Emergency Project (Sec. 21080(b)(4); 15269(b)(c)); 

Reasons why project is exempt: 

Lead Agency 
Contact Person: ____________________________ Area Code/Telephone/Extension: _______________ 

If filed by applicant: 
1. Attach certified document of exemption finding.
2. Has a Notice of Exemption been filed by the public agency approving the project?  Yes No 

Signature: ____________________________ Date: 

Signed by Lead Agency Signed by Applicant 

Authority cited: Sections 21083 and 21110, Public Resources Code. Date Received for filing at OPR:  
Reference: Sections 21108, 21152, and 21152.1, Public Resources Code. 

_______________ 

Categorical Exemption. State type and section number:  ____________________________________ 

______________________________________________ 

______________ Title: _______________________ 

Revised 2011 
MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 20 of 170



MEMORANDUM 
 

 

 

SECTION: 3-C 

 

DATE: SEPTEMBER 13, 2022 
 

TO:  STRATEGIC PLANNING COMMITTEE  

 

FROM: GROUNDWATER SPECIALIST / ASSISTANT GENERAL MANAGER 

 

SUBJECT: UPDATE ON GROUNDWATER MONITORING WELLS 

CONSTRUCTION PROJECT 

 

RECOMMENDATION: 

• Recommend that the Board of Directors make a determination that the Groundwater 

Monitoring Wells Construction Project (“Project”) is categorically exempt from 

environmental review pursuant to the requirements of the California Environmental 

Quality Act (CEQA) as set forth on the attached Notice of Exemption and authorize staff 

to file the attached Notice of Exemption from CEQA with County of Santa Barbara Clerk 

of the Board. 

• Recommend that the Board of Directors authorize counsel and staff to prepare and 

execute permanent easement deeds for the purposes of installing Project groundwater 

wells on the County of Santa Barbara property at 449 San Ysidro Lane and Montecito 

Sanitary District property at 1042 Monte Cristo Lane. 

• Recommend that the Board of Directors authorize staff to execute a contract with Gregg 

Drilling LLC for construction services related to the drilling and development of a coastal 

and four inland groundwater monitoring wells for the Project, with a not to exceed 

amount of $424,110. 

DISCUSSION: 

In March 2020, the California Department of Water Resources (DWR) issued a grant award to 

the Montecito Groundwater Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (GSA or Agency) for the 

Sustainable Groundwater Management (SGM) Grant Program Planning Round 3.  The grant 

award includes funding for construction of two monitoring wells to fill known data gaps.  

Agency staff and GSP consultant Dudek analyzed all known data gaps in the Montecito Basin 

(Basin) and determined the most valuable locations for additional well data would be in two 

specific areas - the southwestern region of Storage Unit 3 and anywhere within Storage Unit 2.  

This project proposes to drill two new monitoring wells in these known data gap areas.  This 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 21 of 170



staff report provides an update on the status of the project and recommends a contract award for 

the driller and easement for drilling on another public agency’s property.  

 

Location 1 – Coastal Well 

 

The first well is proposed in the southwest corner of Storage Unit 3 on the property of the 

Montecito Sanitary District (MSD).  This well would be used to better understand soil properties 

in the area and also to act as another monitoring point for seawater intrusion into the Basin.  

Agency staff reviewed several possible locations in the area, including all neighboring private 

properties, but the MSD property was the best location for permitting and obtaining an easement 

for the proposed well.  The County right of way was also considered but does not provide 

enough work space for the well drilling equipment and materials.  

 

The Coastal Well is proposed in the southwest corner of the MSD property.  Agency staff have 

performed two site visits with MSD staff and consultants to ensure the proposed location would 

not interfere with current or future MSD operations including possible expansion of the 

wastewater treatment plant for a recycled water project.  The location of the Coastal Well would 

be in a dirt area in the far southwest corner of the site, and is shown in Figure 1.  

 

 
Figure 1 - Coastal Well Location 

  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 22 of 170



Permitting the Coastal Well requires both a County of Santa Barbara (County) Environmental 

Health Services (EHS) permit and a County Coastal Development Permit (CDP). The EHS 

permit application has been prepared and will be submitted to the County upon approval of the 

easement and construction contract.  The EHS permit requires approximately 2 weeks for 

approval.  An application for an exemption from the County CDP permit process has been 

prepared and is likely to be approved given the groundwater well would not be used for 

groundwater production, and the project is essentially limited to minor grading of the area 

around the well. A draft CDP exemption request is provided in Attachment 1.   

 

The Coastal Well would require an easement on the MSD property to allow Agency contractors 

to construct the well and for Agency staff to monitor the well long term. The Draft Easement 

Deed is provided in Attachment 2. The easement deed will include compensation negotiated 

between the GSA and MSD for the long-term use of the small piece of land where the well will 

exist.  Agency staff is requesting Committee support of Board authorization to execute the 

easement deed with MSD upon agreement between GSA and MSD for appropriate 

compensation.  If supported by the Committee, staff would present the Easement Deed to the 

GSA Board of Directors at its October 11, 2022 meeting for authorization to execute the 

easement.  It is expected the MSD Board of Directors will be presented the easement deed at 

their September 22 meeting for consideration.  Agency staff will present the easement deed to 

the MSD Board and answer any questions.  

 

Location 2 - Inland Well 

 

The second well will provide data on the geologic characteristics of Storage Unit 2, where few 

wells currently exist.  Storage Unit 2 is also bound by two faults that play a role in groundwater 

hydraulics, and the proposed well will provide additional understanding of the fault influence.  

The second location includes one well to be drilled to a depth of up to 300 feet, and the drilling 

of three additional shallow ‘observation’ wells nearby that will help the Agency to better 

understand the hydraulic conductivity of Storage Unit 2 and also provide additional long term 

monitoring points for groundwater levels in storage unit 2. Figure 2 shows the location of the 

second Inland Well and observation wells. 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 23 of 170



 
Figure 2 – Inland Well Location 

 

The second well (referred to as the “Inland Well”) is not located in the coastal zone and therefore 

does not require a CDP.  An application to EHS for the monitoring well will be submitted 

following Board approval of the construction contract.  

 

The Inland Well location is proposed on County of Santa Barbara (County) owned land within 

upper Manning Park. Agency staff is coordinating with County staff to finalize a license 

agreement to allow for temporary construction access and also long-term monitoring access to 

the wells.  The County is currently drafting the license agreement for Agency consideration. If 

supported by the Committee, Agency staff anticipate presenting the draft license agreement to 

the full Board at their next regular meeting on October 11, 2022.  The license agreement does 

require approval from the Board of Supervisors which could take several months.  Agency staff 

are working to accelerate the license agreement approval timeline with the County.  Based on 

preliminary conversations with County staff, the license agreement being requested by the 

agency will require a onetime compensation of approximately $7,000-10,000.    

 

Design and Request for Proposals  

 

Agency hydrogeologic consultant Rincon has completed the design of the two monitoring wells 

and worked with Agency staff to develop and issue a Requests for Proposal (RFP) for each of the 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 24 of 170



two locations.  The well drilling work was separated into two RFPs given the construction 

methods for the two wells was likely to vary greatly given one is deep (up to 1500 feet) and the 

second is shallow (up to 300 feet) and the testing requirements vary at each location.  The 

request for proposals were issued on July 19, 2022 and proposals were due by August 12, 2022.  

The Agency received multiple proposals that were reviewed by staff and Rincon.  The results of 

the bid process are shown in Table 1.  The lowest bidder for both sites was Gregg Drilling 

(Gregg).  The Agency has not retained Gregg on any prior occasion, but has checked the 

references provided in their proposal and several agencies have provided positive reviews of the 

contractor.  Gregg also has a good reputation regionally, according to Agency consultant Rincon. 

Rincon has provided the Agency an evaluation of all proposals received which is provided in 

Attachment 3. Agency staff recommend an award of construction contract to Gregg for a not to 

exceed amount of $424,110 which would encompass the drilling of all wells for the Project.   

 

Table 1 – Summary of Bid Results 

 

Contractor Coastal Well  

Bid 

Inland Well Bid 

(incl. 3 observation wells) 

Gregg Drilling LLC $279,460 $144,650 

ABC Liovin Drilling $1,762,500 $207,400 

Cascade Environmental - $234,950 

 

SCHEDULE 

 

Construction of the Coastal Well is likely to occur in late 2022 and will require approximately 4 

weeks to complete.  Depending on the timing of the execution of the license agreement with the 

County of Santa Barbara, the Inland Well may not be drilled until early 2023.  The Inland Well 

will require the same 4 week construction duration.  Construction will be coordinated with the 

operations of the underlying property owners and will not proceed until all permit and easement 

approvals have been received.   

ENVIRONMENTAL REVIEW 

This Project, and all wells drilled thereunder,  is exempt from environmental review based on 

categorical exemptions in the California Code of Regulations [“CCR”], as indicated on the 

attached Notice of Exemption form in Attachment 4, including basic data collection, research, 

experimental management, and resource evaluation activities which do not result in a serious or 

major disturbance to an environmental resource [CCR 15306]; minor alterations to land [CCR 

15304]; and new construction or conversion of small structures [CCR15303].  Upon an 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 25 of 170



appropriate finding by the Board of Directors, a Notice of Exemption from the California 

Environmental Quality Act for the Project will be filed by staff.   The Notice of Exemption will 

be filed with the County of Santa Barbara Clerk of the Board and will remain posted for 30 days. 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

 

1) Attachment 1 - Draft Coastal Development Permit Exemption Request 

2) Attachment 2 - Draft Easement Deed for Monitoring Well between the Groundwater 

Sustainability Agency and Montecito Sanitary District 

3) Attachment 3 - Rincon Evaluation of Drilling Proposals 

4) Attachment 4 - Notice of Exemption for the Groundwater Monitoring Well Construction 

Project 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 26 of 170



284902.v1 

RESOLUTION NO. 2022-956 

RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MONTECITO 
SANITARY DISTRICT PROCLAIMING A LOCAL EMERGENCY PERSISTS, 
RATIFYING THE PROCLAMATION OF A STATE OF EMERGENCY BY 
GOVERNOR GAVIN NEWSOM DATED MARCH 4, 2020, AND AUTHORIZING 
REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
OF THE MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD OF 30 DAYS 
PURSUANT TO THE BROWN ACT PROVISIONS. 

 
WHEREAS, the Montecito Sanitary District (“District”) is a sanitary district duly organized and 

existing pursuant to the Sanitary District Act of 1923 codified in Health & Safety Code section 6400 et 
seq.; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District is committed to preserving and nurturing public access and participation 

in meetings of the Board of Directors; and 
 

WHEREAS, all meetings of the District’s governing body are open and public, as required by the 
Ralph M. Brown Act, codified in California Government Code section 54950 et seq. (“Brown Act”), so 
that any member of the public may attend, participate, and watch the District’s governing body conduct 
their business; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Brown Act, Government Code section 54953(e), makes provision for remote 

teleconferencing participation in meetings by members of a legislative body, without compliance with the 
requirements of Government Code section 54953(b)(3), subject to the existence of certain conditions; and 

 
WHEREAS, a required condition is that a state of emergency is declared by the Governor 

pursuant to Government Code section 8625, proclaiming the existence of conditions of disaster or of 
extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the state caused by conditions as described in 
Government Code section 8558; and 

 
WHEREAS, a proclamation is made when there is an actual incident, threat of disaster, or 

extreme peril to the safety of persons and property within the jurisdictions that are within the District’s 
boundaries, caused by natural, technological or human-caused disasters; and 

 
WHEREAS, it is further required that state or local officials have imposed or recommended 

measures to promote social distancing, or, the legislative body meeting in person would present imminent 
risks to the health and safety of attendees; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors previously adopted Resolution No. 2021-935, on September 

30, 2021, finding that the requisite conditions exist for the Board of Directors of the District to conduct 
remote teleconference meetings without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 
54953; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a condition of extending the use of the provisions found in section 54953(e), the 

Board of Directors must reconsider the circumstances of the state of emergency that exists in the 
District’s jurisdiction, and the Board of Directors has done so; and 

 
WHEREAS, emergency conditions persist in the jurisdiction of the District, specifically, a State 

of Emergency remains active as proclaimed by Governor Gavin Newsom’s Proclamation of a State of 
Emergency dated March 4, 2020; and 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 27 of 170



284902.v1 

WHEREAS, State and Local Officials have imposed and recommended social distancing 
measures and allowing legislative bodies to meet via teleconferencing to avoid risks to the health and 
safety of members of the public who would like to participate in meetings of the legislative bodies; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Board of Directors does hereby find that Governor Gavin Newsom’s 

Proclamation of State of Emergency and Social Distancing Orders and other conditions causing imminent 
risk to attendees has caused, and will continue to cause, conditions of peril to the safety of persons within 
the jurisdiction of the District that are likely to be beyond the control of services, personnel, equipment, 
and facilities of the District, and desires to affirm a local emergency exists and ratify the proclamation of 
state of emergency by the Governor of the State of California and ratify State and Local orders for social 
distancing; and 

 
WHEREAS, as a consequence of the local emergency persisting, the Board of Directors does 

hereby find that the District’s governing body shall continue to conduct their meetings without 
compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of Government Code section 54953, as authorized by 
subdivision (e) of section 54953, and that such legislative bodies shall continue to comply with the 
requirements to provide the public with access to the meetings as prescribed in paragraph (2) of 
subdivision (e) of section 54953; and 

 
WHEREAS, the District shall continue to provide notice as otherwise required by the Brown Act 

of all public meetings. 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE MONTECITO SANITARY 
DISTRICT DOES HEREBY RESOLVE AS FOLLOWS: 

 
Section 1. Recitals. The Recitals set forth above are true and correct and are incorporated into this 

Resolution by this reference. 
 

Section 2. Affirmation that Local Emergency Persists. The Board of Directors hereby considers 
the conditions of the state of emergency in the jurisdiction of the District and proclaims that a local 
emergency persists throughout the jurisdiction of the District and allowing remote access and 
participation in the District’s board meetings will reduce health and safety risks to attendees. 

 
Section 3. Ratification of Governor’s Proclamation of a State of Emergency. The Board hereby 

ratifies the Governor of the State of California’s Proclamation of State of Emergency, effective as of its 
issuance date of March 4, 2020. 

 
Section 4. Remote Teleconference Meetings. The General Manager or designee and the Board of 

Directors of the District are hereby authorized and directed to take all actions necessary to carry out the 
intent and purpose of this Resolution including, continuing to conduct open and public meetings in 
accordance with Government Code section 54953(e) and other applicable provisions of the Brown Act. 

 
Section 5. Effective Date of Resolution. This Resolution shall take effect immediately 

upon its adoption and shall be effective until the earlier of (i) October 22, 2022, or such time the Board of 
Directors adopts a subsequent resolution in accordance with Government Code section 54953(e)(3) to 
extend the time during which the Board of Directors of the Montecito Sanitary District may continue to 
teleconference without compliance with paragraph (3) of subdivision (b) of section 54953. 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 28 of 170



284902.v1 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Board of Directors of the Montecito Sanitary District this 22nd  
day of September 2022, by the following vote: 

 
AYES:  
NAYS: 
ABSENT: 
ABSTAIN: 

 
 
 
 
 

Board President 
Dorinne Lee Johnson 

 

ATTEST: 
 
 
 

Clerk of the Board 
Stephen Williams 
 

(SEAL) 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 29 of 170



 

1 
 

MINUTES 
For the Regular Meeting of the Board on: 

August 11, 2022 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
The Governing Board of the Montecito Sanitary District convened a regular meeting at 
2:07 pm on Thursday August 11, 2022. 

ATTENDANCE 
Board Members Present:  
Treasurer Don Eversoll, Director Hogan, Director Newquist, and President 
Dorinne Lee Johnson 

Board Members Absent: 
Vice President Woody Barrett 

Also Present and Participating: 
Brad Rahrer, P.E. MSD General Manager 
Stephen Williams, MSD District Administrator 
Carole Rollins, MSD Laboratory Manager 
Bryce Swetek, MSD Engineering Manager 
Marco Felix, MSD Treatment Superintendent/Chief Plant Operator 
Aleks Giragosian, Colantuono, Highsmith & Whatley, PC 
Ken Coates, Member of the Public 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
No members of the public addressed the board. 

3. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
It is recommended that the Board receive and file a report provided by the following 
committee(s):  
i) Director Hogan gave a summary of the Administration & Operations Committee 

meeting held on Tuesday August 9th, 2022. 

4. APPROVAL OF MINUTES  
ON MOTION by Director Eversoll, Second by Director Hogan, the Board voted to approve 
the minutes for the Board meetings of July 14, 2022, July 19, 2022 and July 28, 2022.  

AYES:  Directors Eversoll, Hogan, Newquist, and Johnson 
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Director Barrett 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 30 of 170



Board Meeting Minutes 
July 14, 2022 

 

2 
 

5. OLD BUSINESS 

A. RESOLUTION 2022-954 REMOTE MEETINGS ADOPTION 
ON MOTION by Director Newquist, Second by Director Eversoll, the Board voted to 
adopt Resolution 2022-954 continuing remote meetings. 

AYES:  Directors Eversoll, Hogan, Newquist, and Johnson 
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Director Barrett 

B. ORDINANCE NO. 19 – COLLECTION OF FEES AND PROPORTIONATE 
SHARE OF SEWER MAIN EXTENSION COSTS ON COUNTY TAX ROLL 
The Board discussed the implementation of Ordinance 19 and how property owners 
will be pay the District after the completion of the project.  No action was taken. 

C. BOARD POLICIES AND PROCEDURES 
The Board asked for clarification from legal counsel on some of the items contained 
within the current Board Policies and Procedures manual.  Legal counsel was able to 
adequately address all questions and no actions were taken. 

6. NEW BUSINESS 

A. ORDINANCE NO. 17 – DIRECTOR COMPENSATION 
The Board discussed board compensation and their desire to increase the general 
board meeting rate by 5% to $231 and to bring the other seminar/training rates up to 
that same amount.  Legal counsel was advised to research the applicable laws 
governing board compensation increases and bring back his recommendations to a 
later meeting.  No actions were taken. 

B. PUBLIC OUTREACH 
The Board decided to table this item to the next Regular Board Meeting agenda. 

7. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA 
The next Board meeting will be a General Board Meeting on August 25, 2022.  No items 
were discussed for future agendas. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 31 of 170



Board Meeting Minutes 
July 14, 2022 

 

3 
 

8. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 3:20 p.m. ON MOTION by Director Newquist, seconded by 
Director Eversoll. 
 
 
 
These minutes were presented for approval at the General Board Meeting on September 8, 
2022. 

   

 Dorinne Lee Johnson, President  

 
Minutes taken and prepared by: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 

Stephen Williams 
District Administrator/Clerk of the Board 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 32 of 170



 

1 
 

MINUTES 
For the Regular Meeting of the Board on: 

August 25, 2022 

1. CALL TO ORDER 
The Governing Board of the Montecito Sanitary District convened a regular meeting at 
2:04 pm on Thursday August 25, 2022. 

ATTENDANCE 
Board Members Present:  
Treasurer Don Eversoll, Director Hogan, Director Newquist, and President 
Dorinne Lee Johnson 

Board Members Absent: 
Vice President Woody Barrett 

Also Present and Participating: 
Brad Rahrer, P.E. MSD General Manager 
Stephen Williams, MSD District Administrator 
Carole Rollins, MSD Laboratory Manager 
Bryce Swetek, MSD Engineering Manager 
Marco Felix, MSD Treatment Superintendent/Chief Plant Operator 
Beryl Kriesel, Member of the Public 

2. PUBLIC COMMENT 
No members of the public addressed the Board. 

3. COMMITTEE REPORTS 
It is recommended that the Board receive and file a report provided by the following 
committee(s):  
i) Director Johnson gave a summary of the Finance Committee meeting held on Tuesday 

August 23, 2022. 

ii) Director Newquist gave  summary of the Public Information Committee meeting held 
on Wednesday, August 24, 2022 with Director Johnson also providing additional input. 

 

 

 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 33 of 170



Board Meeting Minutes 
July 28, 2022 

 

2 
 

 

4. APPROVAL OF PAYABLES  
ON MOTION by Director Newquist, Second by Director Eversoll, the Board voted to 
approve the District payables for checks dated July 1 through July 31, 2022. 

Accounts Payable     $     208,108.92 
Capital Improvement Projects     $     415,383.19 
Payroll      $    153,853.47 
TOTAL      $    777,345.58 

 
AYES:  Directors Hogan, Eversoll, Newquist, and Johnson 
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Director Barrett 

5. OLD BUSINESS 

A. 525 HOT SPRINGS ROAD 
ON MOTION by Director Newquist, Second by Director Hogan the Board voted to 
authorize the execution of a Quit Claim Deed for Sewer Facilities at 525 Hot Springs 
Road.   

AYES:  Directors Hogan, Eversoll, Newquist, and Johnson  
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Director Barrett 

 

ON MOTION by Director Eversoll, Second by Director Newquist, the Board accepted 
the relocated sewer main facilities and the issuance of a notice of completion to the 
owner. 

AYES:  Directors Hogan, Eversoll, Newquist, and Johnson  
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Director Barrett 
 

B. PUBLIC OUTREACH 
The General Manager gave a status update on the Public Outreach Request for 
Proposals (RFP) and elicited feedback from the Board if there were any items they 
wished to include prior to releasing the RFP to the public. 

ON MOTION by Director Newquist, Second by Director Eversoll, the Board approved 
the release of the Public Outreach Request for Proposals taking into account some of 
the suggestions from the Board. 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 34 of 170



Board Meeting Minutes 
July 28, 2022 

 

3 
 

 

6. NEW BUSINESS 

A. FY2021-22 UNAUDITED QUARTERLY FINANCIAL REPORTS 
District Administrator Stephen Williams presented a summary of the District’s Fourth 
Quarter Unaudited Financial Reports. 

ON MOTION by Director Newquist, Second by Director Eversoll, the Board voted to 
approve and accept as presented the Unaudited Quarterly Financial Statements for the 
period ended June 30, 2022. 

AYES:  Directors Hogan, Eversoll, Newquist, and Johnson  
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Director Barrett 

B. INFLUENT CHANNEL GRINDER REPLACEMENT 
ON MOTION by Director Newquist, Second by Director Hogan the Board voted to 
authorize the General Manager to execute a purchase order to JWC Environmental in 
the amount of $35,013 to replace one of the plants’ two influent channel grinders. 

AYES:  Directors Hogan, Eversoll, Newquist, and Johnson 
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Director Barrett 

C. DISINFECTION CHEMICAL FEED PUMPS REPLACEMENT 
ON MOTION by Director Newquist, Second by Director Eversoll, the Board voted to 
authorize the General Manager to execute a purchase order to MISCO in the amount 
of $51,070 for the purchase of materials necessary to replace eight pumps associated 
with the treatment plants’ disinfection process. 

AYES:  Directors Hogan, Eversoll, Newquist, and Johnson 
NAYS:  None 
ABSTAIN: None 
ABSENT: Director Barrett 

7. DISTRICT OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE 

A. INFORMATION ITEMS 
General Manager Brad Rahrer P.E. provided informational, nonactionable 
updates regarding matters before the District. 

B. AGREEMENTS TO BE SIGNED 
None. 

C. OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE REPORTS – JULY 2022 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 35 of 170



Board Meeting Minutes 
July 28, 2022 

 

4 
 

The operational data was presented for the month of July. 
 

8. ITEMS FOR THE NEXT AGENDA 
The next Board meeting will be a General Board Meeting on September 8, 2022 at 2:00 
pm.  No items were discussed for future agendas. 
 
NOTE: Director Eversoll discussed with the Board and the General Manager that a 
particular address within his neighborhood had a question for the District they were hoping 
to get addressed.  Director Eversoll then stated that he is resigning. 

9. ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 3:54 pm. ON MOTION by Director Newquist. 
 
These minutes were presented for approval at the Board Meeting on September 8, 2022. 

   

 Dorinne Lee Johnson, President  

 
Minutes taken and prepared by: 
 
 
 
_________________________ 

Stephen Williams 
District Administrator/Clerk of the Board 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 36 of 170



290506.v2 

ORDINANCE NO. 20 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE GOVERNING BOARD  
OF THE MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT 
ESTABLISHING COMPENSATION OF 
DIRECTORS AND REPEALING ORDINANCE 
NO. 17 

 
 

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code section 6489 authorizes the Board of Directors to 
adopt an ordinance pursuant to Water Code sections 20200 et seq. in order to compensate each 
director above the amount established in Section 6489; and 

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2021, Ordinance No. 17 established the compensation to be 
paid to directors; and 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 17 authorized the Board to adopt an ordinance to increase 
compensation in an amount not to exceed five percent of current compensation for each calendar 
year after the operative date of the last adjustment; and 

WHEREAS, director compensation has not increased since the adoption of Ordinance 
No. 17; and 

WHEREAS, the duties and responsibilities of the Board, thus of each director, require 
and will continue to require substantial and increased time to be expended by each director in 
order to carry out District business; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has elected to fix the compensation of directors pursuant to Water 
Code sections 20200 et seq.; and 

WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing as a part of the Board's regular meeting held on 
October 13, 2022, was published pursuant to Government Code section 6066 and Water Code 
section 20203; and 

WHEREAS, proof of publication of said notice on September X, and October X, 2022, in 
the Santa Barbara News-Press has been filed with the records of the regular meeting of October 
13, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the public hearing on the adoption of this ordinance was held on October 13, 
2022, as required by Water Code section 20203. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that:  

1. Pursuant to section 20202 of the Water Code, the standard and maximum 
compensation of each director of the Board shall be $231.00 per day for each day of 
attendance at a regular or special meeting of the Board or a meeting of a standing or ad 
hoc committee of the Board. 

2. A director authorized and requested by the Board to attend a conference, seminar, 
or meeting that is not specified in sections 1 and 3 shall be compensated $144.37 per day 
for each day of attendance at such conference, seminar, or meeting and no travel day will 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 37 of 170



Ordinance No. 20 
Compensation of Directors 
 
 

290506.v2 

be compensated. No more than eight meeting days per calendar year may be compensated 
under this section. 

3.  A director authorized and requested by the Board to serve as an officer or as a 
liaison to affiliated agencies as an official District representative shall be compensated 
$144.37 per day for each day of attendance at such meeting. 

4.  The compensation fixed by this ordinance for meetings and services described in 
sections 1, 2, and 3 herein shall not be paid for more than a total of ten days in any 
calendar month. 

5. Henceforth, the amount of director compensation may be increased upon adoption 
of an ordinance in an amount not to exceed five percent of the then current compensation 
for each calendar year after the operative date of the last adjustment under Water Code 
section 20202. 

6. This ordinance repeals prior action providing for compensation as of its effective 
date, including Ordinance No. 17. 

7. Immediately following adoption, the Clerk shall cause this ordinance to be 
published one time in a newspaper of general circulation within the District. 

8. If any section of this ordinance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the 
remaining sections shall remain valid. The Board hereby declares that it would have 
adopted this ordinance regardless that particular sections may be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of Montecito Sanitary District on this 13th 
day of October, 2022, to become effective sixty days thereafter by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NAYS: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 
                           __________________________ 

    Donnie Lee Johnson 
President of the Governing Board of the 

MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
                     
             __________________________ 

        Dana Newquist 
  Secretary of the Governing Board of the 

MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 38 of 170



 

   

 

BOARD LIST OF PAYABLES 

 

CHECK DATE SUMMARY & TYPE BATCH TOTAL 

08/12/2022 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 132,727.62 

08/26/2022 ACCOUNTS PAYABLE 87,017.40 

 Subtotal $ 219,745.02 

   

08/12/2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 1,932.50 

08/12/2022 RECYCLED WATER 93.15 

08/26/2022 CAPITAL IMPROVEMENT PROJECTS 56,216.28 

Subtotal $ 58,241.93 

   

08/11/2022 PAYROLL 89,949.27 

08/25/2022 PAYROLL 85,650.36 

 Subtotal $175,599.63 

   
 TOTAL $ 453,586.58 

 
All Invoices were reviewed and approved by Department Managers 
All Invoices and Payments were reviewed and approved and checks signed by the General Manager 
Board Treasurer, Don Eversoll approved all payables by email prior to check mailing 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 39 of 170



Bank Code: B  OPERATING CASH (MBT)

0000027715 8/12/2022 710 PICACHO LANE, LLC Deposit Refund - 710 Picacho Lane 
0000027716 8/12/2022 ACWA/JPIA Medical/Dental/Life Insurance Premium-August
0000027717 8/12/2022 ALLIANT INSURANCE SERVICES INC Annual Physical Damage Insurance Renewal
0000027718 8/12/2022 AMAZON CAPITAL SERVICES Wall Clips & Hooks, Pens, Trash Liners, Webcam
0000027719 8/12/2022 AQUA-FLO SUPPLY Parts for DAFT
0000027720 8/12/2022 AUTOZONE, INC Oil for RAS Pump
0000027721 8/12/2022 BARTLETT, PRINGLE & WOLF, LLP Annual Audit Prep Meeting
0000027722 8/12/2022 BIG GREEN CLEANING COMPANY Janitorial Services/Supplies-August
0000027723 8/12/2022 BLUE WATER TRUST Deposit Refund - 1655 Fernald Point Lane
0000027724 8/12/2022 CANON FINANCIAL SERVICES INC Canon Copier Lease Payment-August
0000027725 8/12/2022 CINTAS CORPORATION #684 Uniforms, Towels, Floor Mats-Cleaning/Rental-July
0000027726 8/12/2022 CINTAS Replenish First Aid Supplies
0000027727 8/12/2022 COMPUVISION COMMUNICATIONS IT Services-July
0000027728 8/12/2022 CROMER INC. Forklift Training & Certification 
0000027729 8/12/2022 CUES Annual Granite Software License Renewal
0000027730 8/12/2022 EASY CDL State Required Truck Driver Training
0000027731 8/12/2022 ENGEL & GRAY, INC Biosolids Hauling - July
0000027732 8/12/2022 FISHER SCIENTIFIC Lab Testing Supplies
0000027733 8/12/2022 GLS COMPANIES Landscape Services - July
0000027734 8/12/2022 GRAINGER Battery Pack, Fuses, Cordless Sander, Socket
0000027735 8/12/2022 HACH COMPANY LDO Probes for Operations
0000027736 8/12/2022 HAYWARD SANTA BARBARA Safety/Rain Gear for New Employee
0000027737 8/12/2022 IBS OF SIERRA MADRE Auxiliary Battery for Small Jetter
0000027738 8/12/2022 MARBORG INDUSTRIES Refuse Disposal/Recycling/Restroom Trailer Rental-July
0000027739 8/12/2022 MCCORMIX CORP Vehicle Fuel 07/15-07/31/22
0000027740 8/12/2022 MONTECITO JOURNAL Publication of Sewer Service Charge Hearing
0000027741 8/12/2022 MOUNTAIN SPRING WATER Bottled Drinking Water/Cooler Rental-July
0000027742 8/12/2022 MONTECITO WATER DISTRICT Water Service-July
0000027743 8/12/2022 O'CONNOR PEST CONTROL Annual Pest / Rodent / Gopher Control for Office, WWTP & 

Lift Stations
0000027744 8/12/2022 OILFIELD ENVIRONMENTAL & COMPLIANCE Annual Effluent / Biosolids NPDES Required Sampling
0000027745 8/12/2022 PAYCHEX OF NEW YORK, LLC Payroll Services-July
0000027746 8/12/2022 PLUMBERS DEPOT, INC Return Shipping of CCTV Camera
0000027747 8/12/2022 PURETEC INDUSTRIAL WATER Quarterly Water Softener Tank Rental
0000027748 8/12/2022 QUINN COMPANY PM Level 1 Generator Servicing
0000027749 8/12/2022 RED WING BUSINESS ADVANTAGE Boot Allowance for 3 Staff Members
0000027750 8/12/2022 SANSUM CLINIC Pre-Employment Physical-Joshua Perez
0000027751 8/12/2022 SBCO LAFCO, AUDITOR-CONTROLLER MSD Annual Proportionate Share of LAFCO Budget
0000027752 8/12/2022 S B HOME IMPROVEMENT CENTER Warehouse Stretch Film
0000027753 8/12/2022 SANTA BARBARA NEWS-PRESS Notice to Contractors - HWY 101 Sewer Relocation
0000027754 8/12/2022 SOUTHERN CALIFORNIA EDISON CO Electric Service 06/24-07/25/22
0000027755 8/12/2022 SHERWIN-WILLIAMS CO. Paint Supplies for AB Swingfusers
0000027756 8/12/2022 STREAMLINE Website Hosting Services-August
0000027759 8/12/2022 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS Plant Chemicals
0000027760 8/12/2022 UNDERGROUND SERVICE ALERT Annual State Regulatory Fee
0000027757 8/12/2022 ENGEL & GRAY, INC Biosolids Hauling -June
0000027762 8/26/2022 525 HOT SPRINGS ROAD, LLC Sewer Main Relocation Deposit Refund-525 Hot Springs 
0000027763 8/26/2022 AT&T MOBILITY Lift Station 4 Data Port, Standby Cellphone-August
0000027764 8/26/2022 AT&T MOBILITY Office Data Port-August
0000027765 8/26/2022 BARTLETT, PRINGLE & WOLF, LLP Internal Controls Year End Planning
0000027766 8/26/2022 COMPUVISION COMMUNICATIONS Datto Cloud Backup, NetAlert Managed Services-
0000027767 8/26/2022 CORT Deed Report-July
0000027768 8/26/2022 COX BUSINESS Wireless Internet Services-August
0000027769 8/26/2022 JOHN (or) ROBIN CUDAHY Deposit Refund - 1450 Monte Vista Road

44.00
160.39

2,300.00

707.11
6,476.02

47,815.25
136.13

23.24
1,074.00
1,740.00

13,775.85
310.00

60.55
22,151.84

186.25
46.21

8,498.00
467.50
675.00
635.07
329.80
111.91
310.65
518.55

6,783.00
849.34
139.25
330.00
822.86

3,413.75
150.93
139.09

2,551.56
546.43
750.00
526.62

6,824.32
3,200.00
2,150.00
1,235.00
1,006.25

257.15
707.51
272.61

2,300.00
2,667.69

Check 

Amount

1,178.50
29.85
97.73

175.31
9,408.00

26,142.56

Description

Check History Report

Sorted By Check Number

Activity From: 8/1/2022 to 8/31/2022

MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT (MSD)

2,812.00

Check

Number

Check

Date Name

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 40 of 170



0000027770 8/26/2022 DOCU PRODUCTS Copier Maintenance Agreement - September
0000027771 8/26/2022 DOCUSIGN INC. Annual E-Signature Business Pro Renewal
0000027772 8/26/2022 ENVIRONMENTAL RESOURCE ASSOC. Lab Testing Supplies
0000027773 8/26/2022 FASTENAL COMPANY Gloves, Bolts, Vehicle Parts, Supplies
0000027774 8/26/2022 FRONTIER Phone Service for Lift Stations 1, 2 & 4-July
0000027775 8/26/2022 HACH COMPANY Lab Testing Supplies
0000027776 8/26/2022 HARRINGTON INDUSTRIAL PLASTICS 1" Swing Check Valves
0000027777 8/26/2022 KATHERINE MALKIN Deposit Refund - 2910 Sycamore Canyon Road
0000027778 8/26/2022 MARBORG INDUSTRIES Restroom Trailer Lease Payment-August
0000027779 8/26/2022 MCCORMIX CORP Vehicle Fuel 08/01-08/15/22
0000027780 8/26/2022 MOZILO, ERIC (or) TERRI Deposit Refund - 329 San Ysidro Road 
0000027781 8/26/2022 OILFIELD ENVIRONMENTAL & COMPLIANCE Annual NPDES Required Effluent Sampling
0000027782 8/26/2022 PRICE POSTEL & PARMA Employment Law Services-July
0000027783 8/26/2022 PITNEY BOWES BANK INC Postage Meter Ink Cartridges
0000027784 8/26/2022 PURETEC INDUSTRIAL WATER Water Softener Sodium Tank Exchange-July
0000027785 8/26/2022 RINGCENTRAL, INC. Phone Service for Admin/Treatment-July
0000027786 8/26/2022 SOCAL GAS Gas Service-July
0000027787 8/26/2022 STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY Short/Long Term Disability Insurance-September
0000027788 8/26/2022 T-MOBILE Data Port for UF/RO-July
0000027789 8/26/2022 UNIVAR SOLUTIONS Plant Chemicals 

1,645.13
20.00

1,081.38
2,300.00
2,228.24

576.00

15,651.62

219,745.02

129.50
72.03

659.36
224.05

569.09
509.44
122.78
102.41

1,150.00
2,659.47

119.32
3,105.00

799.57

Bank B Total:

Report Total: 219,745.02

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 41 of 170



Bank Code: G  CIP CASH (MBT)

0000001345 8/12/2022 EARTH SYSTEMS CIP No. 9 / Agreement No. 2022-001-PSA; 
Geotechnical Engineering Services for the HWY 101 
Sewer Relocation Project-June 

0000001348 8/26/2022 DXP ENTERPRISES, INC CIP No. 1 / PO No. 4713; Waste Activated Sludge 
Pump Replacement

0000001349 8/26/2022 EARTH SYSTEMS CIP No. 9 / Agreement No. 2022-001-PSA;Geotechnical 
Engineering Services for HWY 101 Sewer Main 
Relocation Project-July

0000001350 8/26/2022 FILIPPIN ENGINEERING CIP No. 9 / Agreement No. 2020-008-OC / Task Order 
No. 5; Lilac/Oak Grove Sewer Main Extension 
Inspection Services-July 

0000001351 8/26/2022 MNS ENGINEERS INC. CIP No. 9 / Agreement No. 2021-006-PSA; Engineering 
Services for the HWY 101 Sewer Main Relocation 
Project-July

0000001352 8/26/2022 RINCON CONSULTANTS, INC CIP No. 9 / Agreement No. 2022-004-PSA; Consulting 
Services to obtain permits for the HWY 101 Sewer Main 
Relocation Project-June/July 

0000001353 8/26/2022 STANTEC CONSULTING 
SERVICES INC.

CIP No. 9 / Agreement No. 2021-002-OC / Task Order 
No. 3; Engineering Services for Lilac/Oak Grove Design-
Record Drawings-June/July

0000001354 8/26/2022 TIERRA CONTRACTING INC CIP No. 2 / PO No. 4701; Manhole Adjustments  at 
Various Locations-July 

Check #1346 - Check Reversal
Check #1347 - Replacement Check to Hamner Jewell for check #1338

3,482.66

672.50

7,180.00

22,976.25

8,979.70

3,955.17

Description

CIP Check History Report

Sorted By Check Number

Activity From: 8/1/2022 to 8/31/2022

MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT (MSD)

1,932.50

Bank G Total: 58,148.78

Report Total: 58,148.78

Check

Number

Check

Date Name

Check 

Amount

8,970.00

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 42 of 170



Bank Code: W  RECYCLED WATER (MBT)

0000001041 8/12/2022 HACH COMPANY CIP T011-Recycled Water; Lab Testing Supplies 

Report Total: 93.15

93.15

Check

Number

Check

Date Name

Check 

Amount Description

Check History Report

Sorted By Check Number

Activity From: 8/1/2022 to 8/31/2022

MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT (MSD)

Bank W Total: 93.15

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 43 of 170



1 

 
 

MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT 
 

DATE:  Thursday, September 22, 2022 

TO: Board of Directors 

FROM: Bradley Rahrer, General Manager 
  

PREPARED BY: Stephen Williams, District Administrator  

SUBJECT: 2022 Sewer Service Rate Study Request for Proposals 

RECOMMENDATION: That the Finance Committee members consider the following: 
1. Discussing the Finance Committee’s recommendation regarding the outcome of the RFP 

for the Sewer Rate and Connection Fee Study; 

DISCUSSION: 

Background - The District developed and advertised a Request for Proposals (RFP) through PlanetBids 
on July 22nd, 2022.  The RFP was available for all consultants to view and to determine if they 
wanted to submit a proposal to the District.  The General Manager and the District Administrator 
also reached out to several other well known consultants to ensure they were aware of the RFP. 
 
The proposal period closed on August 15th, 2022 and three consultants submitted proposals to 
provide the services detailed in the District’s RFP.  Those three firms were as follows: 
 

1. HDR Engineering, Inc. 
2. Robert D. Niehaus, Inc. 
3. Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. 

 
Based on the information provided in the proposals, the General Manager and District 
Administrator conducted interviews with all three firms on August 24th, 2022.  Staff evaluated and 
ranked the proposals from the three firms based on the selection criteria that was detailed in the 
Districts’ RFP.  Those criteria were as follows: 
 

1. Qualifications - The Project Manager’s, Consultant and Sub‐Consultant teams’ 
qualifications, relevant experience and ability to perform the scope of work as outlined 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 44 of 170

https://www.montsan.org/meetings


2 

above, based on information provided by the Consultant and client references. 
2. Approach - The Consultant’s understanding of the Project as demonstrated by the 

approach included in the proposal, the proposal’s responsiveness to the RFP and Project 
needs, and their demonstrated ability to meet the District’s desired timeframe. 

3. References - The consultant’s client references and the consultant’s performance on 
similar studies. 

4. Presentation - The District values clear and concise communication, as demonstrated in 
the written proposal and/or interview. 

 
From the written proposal and interviews, HDR Engineering Inc (HDR). received the highest 
ranking out of the three firms. HDR was selected because of their team qualifications, strong 
presentation skills, and diverse project team established to help the District address the political, 
operational, engineering, and land development challenges that will need to be factored the 
financial plan and  any rate adjustments, .  This led to a very balanced approach to how they would 
tackle the various tasks outlined in the District’s RFP.  HDR’s approach to delivering the services 
requested in the RFP include the following 11 main tasks: 

Task 1 – Project Management/Quality Control 
Task 2 –Written Data Request 
Task 3 – Initial Project Meeting 
Task 4 – Review of the District’s Financial/Rate Policies and Other Relevant Documents 
Task 5 – Performance Benchmarking 
Task 6 – Revenue Requirement Analysis 
Task 7 – Cost of Service Analysis 
Task 8 – Rate Design Analysis 
Task 9 – Review and Update of the Sewer Connection Fees 
Task 10 – Written Report 
Task 11 – Public Meetings 

 
Pursuant to the RFP, the separate Labor Rates and Fee Schedule for the top ranked firm was opened 
after the selection and the negotiation process began with the Consultant. 
 
At the September 8, 2022 Board Meeting, the Board of Directors requested to see all proposals 
responsive to the RFP.  A copy of each proposal with the scope of work, approach, schedule and 
level of effort is attached. As stated during the meeting, cost was not included as a selection criteria 
for ranking the proposals and therefore copies of the fee schedule and consultant rate schedules 
cannot be not made public until after negotiations are finalized. 
 
Fiscal Impact – Staff included $50,000 in the annual budget for FY2021-2022 under Contracted 
Services. While the proposed cost for HDR services is above the budgeted amount, the base scope 
of services was negotiated down to $60,000 by reducing the amount of travel and time for in person 
meetings. 
 
Analysis – Justifications: – A fair, competitive selection process was utilized to select the above 
consultant for the 2022 Sewer Rate Study.  All materials are, and will continue to be available, 
through PlanetBids.com. 

 
OTHER DEPARTMENTS INVOLVED:  None 
 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 45 of 170



3 

ATTACHMENTS:    
1. Proposal from HDR Engineering, Inc  
2. Proposal from Robert D. Niehaus, Inc. 
3. Proposal from Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. 

 
 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 46 of 170



   

  
 

   
  

Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study  

 
Montecito Sanitary District 
 

August 15, 2022 

 
 

  

   

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 47 of 170



 

HDR Engineering, Inc. 
591 Camino de la Reina, Suite 300, San Diego, CA  92108 
T (858)712-8400  

www.hdrinc.com 

 

August 15, 2022 
 
Bradley Rahrer, P.E. 
General Manager 
1042 Monte Cristo Lane 
Santa Barbara, California 93108 
 
Subject:  Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
 
Dear Mr. Rahrer: 
 
HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR) is pleased to respond to the Montecito Sanitary District (District) request for 
proposal to conduct a sewer rate study (Study). HDR is highly experienced in conducting sewer rate and 
connection fee studies. Locally, we have conducted similar rate and fee studies for the cities of Santa Barbara, 
San Luis Obispo, Solvang, and Santa Maria. HDR has also worked with numerous special purpose districts 
such as the Tahoe City PUD, North Tahoe PUD, South Tahoe PUD, and Dublin San Ramon Services District. 
Similar to those studies, HDR has brought to the District our best and nationally recognized experts in the area 
of rate and fee studies to lead and develop this Study.   

A key objective for the District’s Study is to independently review, evaluate, and propose sewer rates and 
connection fees that are consistent with industry standards, best management practices, and applicable laws 
and provide effective presentations of the Study results. This includes evaluating the District’s customer 
classes of service, rate structure, and connection fees for the next six-year period. The intent of this Study 
is to develop a sewer rate analysis and provide a financial plan which meets the short- and long-term 
objectives of the District. Establishing cost-based rates is critical in that the study must be developed and 
documented such that it meets the requirements of California Constitution Article XIII D, Section 6 (i.e., Prop. 
218). To meet the intent of Proposition 218, the Study will develop rates that are cost-based, 
proportional, and based on the District’s specific costs and customer characteristics. To meet the 
legal requirements, the Study must provide clear documentation of the cost-basis for the District’s proposed 
sewer rates, which not only includes both the amount of revenue collected from the rates, but also the cost-
basis for any fixed or variable charges. To meet this requirement, HDR has proposed a cost of service 
analysis to proportionally distribute the District’s revenue requirement to each customer class of service and 
calculate the average unit costs (e.g., $/month or $/CCF). This analysis will provide the needed cost-basis to 
analytically support the proposed sewer rates.   

With these key issues in mind, HDR has proposed a comprehensive approach to the District’s sewer rate 
study and provided a detailed scope of services within this proposal. HDR is nationally recognized for its 
expertise in financial planning and rate studies. We have successfully developed financial plans and 
performed rate and fee studies for hundreds of utilities around the U.S. We are highly experienced working 
with utilities in California and understand the complexities of meeting the requirements of 
Proposition 218 for sewer rates and California Government Code sections 66013, 66016, and 66022 
within the ‘Mitigation Fee Act for connection fees. 

     
 

    
    

 

  

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 48 of 170



 

HDR Engineering, Inc. 
591 Camino de la Reina, Suite 300, San Diego, CA  92108 
T (858)712-8400  

www.hdrinc.com 

HDR’s Project Manager will be Shawn Koorn, an Associate Vice President with HDR. Shawn is nationally 
recognized as an expert in financial planning and utility rates who is most notably known as a co-instructor 
for the American Water Works Association (AWWA) 3-day seminar, Rate Setting Essentials, and a 
contributing author to the AWWA M-54 Manual (Developing Rates for Small Systems). Locally, Shawn was 
the project manager for the rate and fee studies conducted for the cities of Santa Barbara, San Luis Obispo, 
Solvang, and Santa Maria. He is highly effective in communicating and working with District Boards, 
stakeholders, and the development community on complex financial planning, rate, and fee issues. 
Shawn will be assisted by Josiah Close as the Assistant PM who will lead the technical analyses and 
participate in the Study presentations. Josiah led the technical analyses for the recent studies for the cities of 
Santa Barbara, San Luis Obispo, Solvang, and Santa Maria as well as the study for Tahoe City PUD. HDR 
views communication and public presentations as one of the most critical components to the overall success 
of the Study.  

Provided below is the contact information for this proposal. If you have any questions regarding our proposal, 
please contact the following: 

Signatory Proposal Contact:    Proposed Technical Project Manager: 

Anna Lantin, P.E.     Shawn Koorn 
Vice President     Associate Vice President 
3230 El Camino Real    929 108th Avenue NE 
Suite 200      Suite 1300 
Irvine, CA  92602     Bellevue, WA 98004 
Anna.Lantin@hdrinc.com    Shawn.Koorn@hdrinc.com  
Phone: (714) 368-5691     Phone: (425) 450-6366 

We appreciate this opportunity to submit our proposal to the District. We look forward to discussing our 
proposal with you.  

Sincerely, 
HDR Engineering, Inc. 
 

 
 
Anna Lantin, PE     Shawn Koorn 
Vice President     Associate Vice President and 
Authorized Signatory     Project Manager 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 49 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
Table of Contents  

 

 
Page i 

 

Table of Contents 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

1.1. Introduction 1 
1.2. HDR’s Qualifications and Relevant Experiences 1 
1.3. Consultant Project Team 3 
1.4. Project Examples and Client References 12 
1.5. Subconsultants 14 
1.6. Summary  14 

2. Project Understanding  
2.1. Introduction 15 
2.2. Goals and Objectives for the Study 15 
2.3. Overview of the General Methodology 16 
2.4. Scope of Services 17 
2.5. Keys to a successful Study 32 
2.6. Summary  33 

3. Project Schedule  
3.1. Introduction 34 
3.2. Project Time Schedule 34 
3.3. Summary  34 

4. Labor Rates and Fee Schedule  
4.1. Introduction 35 
4.2. Estimated Staff Hours 35 
4.3. Summary  35 

5. Contract Requirements  
5.1. Introduction 36 
5.2. Exceptions to the District’s PSA 36 
5.3. Exceptions to the Exhibit B Insurance 37 
5.4. Summary  38 

 
 
 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 50 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 1 
 

1. Experience and Qualifications 
1.1 Introduction 
HDR Engineering, Inc. (HDR) is a well-established and highly respected firm with technical and 
professional expertise in a variety of areas, including rate setting and economics. Formed in 
1917, HDR is a national firm with approximately 10,000 employees in 225 offices worldwide 
providing architectural, engineering, and consulting services. HDR’s is subdivided into three 
regions, of which our San Diego office is in the Western region. The local areas are managed by 
an Area Manager with the authority to enter into agreements with our clients. In total, HDR has 
14 offices in California, which include:  

 Folsom 
 Irvine 
 Long Beach 
 Los Angeles 
 Oakland 
 Pasadena 
 Riverside 
 Sacramento 
 San Diego 
 San Francisco 
 Walnut Creek 
 Ventura 

For the District’s Study, HDR’s Ventura office would be the closest office to the District’s offices. 

HDR has a Utility Rates and Finance Group, consisting of financial analyst, accountants, 
and economists who have attained a national reputation in the areas of financial 
planning, utility rates, and connection fees. Each rate study is led by a project manager who 
has extensive experience in utility financial planning and rates. To 
provide a successful study, our project teams are staffed with 
dedicated utility financial and rate analysts. Finally, we leverage our 
local office personnel to provide engineering and planning expertise to 
our study, given that financial/rate studies are a blend of financial/rate 
expertise and engineering/planning expertise. HDR combines 
innovation with practical, cost-effective solutions which are tailored to 
the needs of each client.  

1.2 HDR’s Qualifications and Relevant Experience 
As noted above, HDR has an established Utility Rates and Finance Group to specifically 
address the issues of comprehensive planning, asset management and financial/rate issues. 
HDR provides these services to water, wastewater, recycled water, stormwater, solid waste, 
and electric utilities. Lead by nationally recognized experts, it is not surprising that HDR has 

“To provide a 
successful study, our 

project teams are 
staffed with dedicated 

utility financial/rate 
analysts.” 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 51 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 2 
 

attained a national reputation in the area of financial planning, rates and fee studies and a more 
detailed discussion will demonstrate why we can make this claim. 

The District desires to retain a qualified professional rate consultant experienced in municipal 
utility financial planning, rate setting, and connection fees. HDR’s qualifications and experience 
are well-matched to the District’s needs. These are: 

 California and Local Rate Setting Experience 
Rate setting in California poses unique legal requirements and challenges. For over 20 
years, HDR has worked extensively in California on rate and fee issues and, as a 
result of our expertise in this area, we have successfully navigated the legal rate and 
fee setting environment. Each utility is unique and as a result, they must be independently 
analyzed. 

 California Municipal Rate and Fee Clients 
HDR has worked extensively and successfully with a number of California water and 
wastewater utilities. Among our more prominent California rate and fee clients are the 
cities of San Luis Obispo, Santa Barbara, Folsom, Stockton, Woodland, Santa Maria, 
and Solvang. We have also worked with special districts such as the Dublin San Ramon 
Services District, Otay Water District, Tahoe City PUD, North Tahoe PUD, South Tahoe 
PUD, and the Sacramento Suburban Water District. 

 Track Record of Quality Project Delivery, On-Time and Within Budget 
HDR has a very strong record for quality work products, which are on-time and within 
budget. Our client references provide the best proof of our ability to deliver a quality 
study to the District. 

 Excellent Communication Skills 
Ultimately, the success of all rate and fee studies hinges on the ability to convey complex 
and detailed information to the governing body in order to gain support for the study’s 
recommendations. A study with a strong technical analysis may fail due to the inability 
of the consultant to explain the study’s findings, conclusions, and recommendations 
in a clear and understandable manner. HDR believes communication is the key attribute 
which sets us apart.  As nationally recognized experts, HDR project team members teach a 
number of courses and workshops on the subjects of financial 
planning, revenue requirements, cost of service, rates, and 
connection fees. In particular, HDR’s proposed Project Manager, 
Shawn Koorn, is a co-instructor for the AWWA 3-day Seminar, 
Rate Setting Essentials, which is dedicated to the issues of the 
theory and methodologies associated with utility financial planning, 
cost of service, rates, and connection fees. The ability to 
communicate and explain complex ideas, principles, and ideas in 
easy to understand terms is what makes these seminars and our 
public presentations so successful. In addition, HDR staff have been 
active in developing publications and manuals in this area of 
expertise, such as the AWWA M-1 manual. 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 52 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 3 
 

In addition to the above attributes, HDR also brings to the District the following additional 
attributes: 

 Practical Work Experience within Utilities 
HDR personnel have been involved in each facet of actual utility operations. Prior to 
consulting, many of our staff have spent considerable time working for a utility or regulatory 
agency. This understanding of the day-to-day workings of a utility is invaluable in attempting 
to work with clients and manage projects in an efficient and cost-effective manner. We 
understand the challenges of limited time and budgets and, therefore, work with our clients 
to provide the most efficient and cost-effective solutions. Having said that, HDR does not cut 
corners or scrimp to conduct our studies. HDR understands that all our studies must be 
comprehensive in nature and legally defendable. 

 Breadth of Consulting Services Provided by the Project Team 
HDR, by virtue of being a multi-disciplinary engineering and consulting firm has a number of 
individuals with highly specialized expertise, such as financial planning and rates. While one 
of the areas that HDR does specialize in is financial planning, cost of service and rates/fees, 
HDR does not lose sight of the overall need for good utility management and engineering 
practices. When necessary, HDR can draw on the other areas of expertise that are 
contained in the firm. HDR has experts available in every area of utility operations and 
management, including master planning and asset management. 

 Depth of Experience in Rate and Fee Related Issues/Projects 
HDR personnel have performed hundreds of utility rate and fee studies throughout California 
and the U.S. By virtue of working with a wide variety of utilities (large and small) and in a 
variety of locations, we have an intimate understanding of the trends and practices occurring 
in the industry. Our experience and knowledge of the industry and current practices 
brings great creditability to our analyses and resulting recommendations. This 
diversity simply adds breadth of knowledge and expertise to all our projects. 

As can be seen, our combination of knowledge and experience make us highly qualified to 
assist the District in the development of proposed sewer rates and connection fees. HDR 
believes that the best way to understand the quality of services provided by HDR is to talk to our 
clients. Furthermore, and more importantly, we help guide our clients to make reasonable and 
responsible policy choices and understand the importance customer feedback and rate 
transition. 

1.3 Consultant Project Team 
HDR’s highly experienced Utility Rates and Finance Group has 
the technical expertise needed to conduct the District’s sewer 
rate and connection fee study. The key project team members 
to be assigned to this study are nationally recognized experts in 
rates and connection fee studies, along with local engineering 
expertise. For this Study, Shawn Koorn will be the project 
manager and provide QA/QC and Josiah Close will be the 
assistant project manager and lead the development of the 
technical analysis. 

“The key project team 
members to be assigned to 

this study are nationally 
recognized experts in rates 
and connection fee studies, 

along with local 
engineering expertise.” 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 53 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 4 
 

1.3.1 Project Team Organization 
The proposed organizational chart for the District’s Study is provided below. No subconsultants 
have been assumed necessary or included for the District’s Study. 

 

1.3.2 Key Project Team Members 
Provided below is a brief discussion of our key project team members’ expertise, their roles in 
the project, and their experience related specifically to this project. More detailed resumes for 
HDR’s key project team members are included as an appendix to our proposal.  

Shawn Koorn – Project Manager and QA/QC 

 

 Nationally recognized financial/rate expert with over 20 years of 
experience in utility rate and connection fee setting.  

 Project Manager for the cities of Santa Barbara, Solvang, Santa Maria 
and San Luis Obispo rate and fee studies.  

 Project manager for the Tahoe City PUD, Otay Water District, Dublin San 
Ramon Services District, South Tahoe PUD, and North Tahoe PUD rate 
and fee studies. 

 Highly experienced in Proposition 218 and §66013 issues. 
 Co-instructor for the AWWA Rate Setting Essentials Seminar. 
 Contributing author to the AWWA M-54 manual, Developing Rates for 

Small Systems. 
 Provides effective presentations to Boards, City councils, the public, and 

industry conferences (e.g., AWWA, WEF). 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 54 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 5 
 

Josiah Close – Assistant PM/Task Lead 

 

 Over nine years of experience in developing rate and connection fee 
studies for water, recycled water, sewer, and stormwater systems. 

 Led the technical analysis for the recently completed rate and fee studies 
for the cities of Santa Barbara, Santa Maria, Solvang, and San Luis 
Obispo and Tahoe City PUD. 

 Extensive California experience. Recently, conducted rate and fee 
analyses and modeling for the City of Stockton, City of Woodland, Las 
Gallinas Valley Sanitary District, and Tahoe City PUD. 

 Bachelor of Science in Finance. 

 

Judy Dean – Senior Financial/Rate Analyst 

 

 More than 30 years of experience in utility financial planning, rate setting 
and connection fee studies. 

 Conducted rate and connection fee modeling and analysis for numerous 
California utilities including Otay Water District, Sacramento Suburban 
Water District, City of Folsom, City of Santa Barbara and the City of 
Woodland. 

 Washington State Certified Public Accountant – Inactive 
 Prior to joining HDR, worked for a municipal utility as a Finance 

Department Accountant 
 

Michael Flores – Engineering Assistance 

 

 One of HDR’s national Asset Management Leads with extensive 
experience supporting various municipal clients in maintaining the 
longevity of their wastewater systems. 

 Trusted advisor of several agencies in development of capital planning 
programs for their wastewater systems. 

 Education: M.S. Mechanical Engineering, Harvey Mudd College, B.S. 
Engineering, Harvey Mudd College. 

 Expertise in capital program planning, infrastructure management, 
operations & maintenance for wastewater systems. 

 

Amy Omae, P.E. – Engineering Assistance 

 

 Professional Engineer and LEED Accredited Professional with more than 
17 years of experience  

 Education: B.S. Chemistry, Masters Environmental Engineering 
 Professional License: P.E. Civil Engineering (CA) 
 Expertise in the design of treatment plant processes, pipelines, 

mechanical pumping systems, pilot testing and research  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 55 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 6 
 

 
Should other individuals be required for the District’s Study, HDR has numerous qualified 
individuals available to meet other specific technical needs associated with this Study. If 
additional staff or technical expertise is needed, HDR will notify the District to obtain prior 
approval. The staff described above will be dedicated to the District’s Study until its successful 
completion. 

1.3.3 Resumes of Key Project Team Members 
Provided below are more detailed resumes of HDR’s key individuals identified above. 

  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 56 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 7 
 

Shawn Koorn | Project Manager and QA/QC 
Shawn Koorn has over 22 years’ experience in utility rate setting and 
is an Associate Vice President with HDR. He provides financial 
planning, cost-benefit analyses, and economic reviews for the 
development of rate and cost-of-service studies for water, 
wastewater, stormwater, electric, natural gas, and solid waste 
utilities. This information is communicated using technical abilities 
and presentation skills in a clear and concise manner. 

Shawn’s experience involves the analytical aspects of the utility 
financial planning and rate setting process. These include the 
development of revenue requirements, cost of service, and rate 
design studies for clients. He is highly capable and understands the 
finer technical issues involved with each project, as well as the 
broader economic issues that today’s public utilities are facing. 

Shawn has been involved in several unique and challenging 
projects. Shawn has completed wastewater strength studies reviews 
for utilities across the U.S. As part of these studies, he has reviewed 
commercial customer strength factors for determining the equitable 
allocation of costs for rate setting purposes. He has also assisted the 
utilities in the development of winter water use and flow assumption, 
and commercial wastewater rate structure to determine if there are 
other viable options that may be more equitable to the commercial 
customers. These recent studies were completed for the City of 
Sioux City, City of Santa Barbara, Anchorage Water and Wastewater 
Utilities, City of San Luis Obispo, and City of Woodland. 

Shawn has extensive experience with regulatory filings before public 
service commissions. He recently developed testimony to support 
water and sewer rate studies before two different public service 
commissions. His experience and knowledge of “generally accepted” 
rate setting techniques allows him to develop excellent testimony to 
support his client’s position. Shawn is a member of the AWWA Rates 
and Charges Subcommittee, contributing author to the AWWA M54 

Manual Developing Rates for Small Systems, a peer reviewer for the Water Research 
Foundation water reuse pricing study, is a co-instructor for the AWWA Rate Setting Essentials 
Seminar. This three-day seminar discusses the theories and methodologies used to establish 
cost-based rates. Shawn has also presented numerous papers on financial planning and rate 
setting topics for utilities. 

 

 

Education 
B.S. Business 
Administration, 
Central Washington 
University  

B.S. Managerial 
Economics, 
Central Washington 
University  

Professional 
Association 
AWWA, Member  

American Public Power 
Association/Northwest, 
Member   

Expertise 
Utility Rates/Cost of 
Service 
Connection Fees 
Financial Planning 
Capital Planning 
Cost-Benefit Analyses 

HDR Tenure 
22 Years 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 57 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 8 
 

Josiah Close | Assistant PM/Task Lead 

Josiah Close specializes in utility financial planning, cost of service, 
rate setting and system development charges. Josiah has over 10 
years of experience in developing complex financial/rate models and 
in analyzing customer billing data and cost information as they relate 
to utility rate studies. He is very proficient in financial modeling and 
has developed several technically sophisticated models for our 
clients. 

Prior to joining HDR, Josiah worked as a fiscal analyst for the State 
of Washington in the Department of Social and Health Services. His 
experience with the State further developed his financial modeling 
skills and placed a high level of importance on attention to detail and 
accuracy.   

During his last nine years with HDR, Josiah has been responsible for 
developing and updating a variety of spreadsheet analyses to 
support revenue requirement, cost of service, and rate design 
studies. Among the complex studies that he is working on, it includes 
a comprehensive water rate study which contains a recycled water 
and wholesale water rate components. Many studies that Josiah has 
developed include the development of revenue requirements, cost of 
service, and rate design. 

Josiah has extensive experience working with California utilities and 
understands the legal and technical cost requirements of Proposition 
218. He has developed numerous rate analyses to technically 
comply with the Capistrano decision and develop cost-based rates 
for components of the rate (fixed and variable). At the present time 
Josiah is working with a California utility on the evaluation of 
volumetric sewer rates. In performing this evaluation, he is working 
with different databases of information. Among the California utilities 
Josiah has developed technical analyses that include Tahoe City 
PUD, City of Stockton, City of Solvang, City of Santa Maria, City of 
Santa Barbara, and the City of Folsom. 

Since joining HDR Josiah has gained experience in working with water, wastewater, and solid 
waste utilities. He has also worked with and reviewed budget and asset record documents to 
support the technical analyses he has been conducting 

 

 
 

Education 
B.S. Finance,  
Oregon State University  
 
Professional 
Associations 
 AWWA, Member  

 Washington Finance 
 Officers Association 

 
Expertise 
 Financial/Rate Modeling 

 Capital Planning and 
 Funding 

 Revenue Requirements 
and Financial Plans 

 Cost of Service 

 Rate Design 

 SDC’s / Capacity 
 Charges 

HDR Tenure 
 9 Years 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 58 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 9 
 

Judy Dean | Senior Financial Analyst 
Judy has over 30 years of experience in utility finance and she is a 
Senior Financial Analyst with HDR. She brings a strong background 
in accounting and finance and is highly experienced in utility rate 
setting and capacity fees. Judy has developed numerous revenue 
requirement, cost of service and rate design studies for a wide 
variety of water, sewer, electric, solid waste, and stormwater utilities. 
Her experience and skills allow her to develop rate analyses in an 
efficient manner. Judy is very highly experienced in the development 
of capacity fee studies and recently completed a capacity charge 
study for the District. 

Judy was a Washington State Certified Public Accountant, currently 
inactive. Prior to joining HDR, she was a municipal utility accountant 
at a medium-sized municipality. Her duties included working with the 
municipal water and sewer utility on budgeting, financial planning, 
accounting, and rate issues. Judy’s experience in this role provides 
her with a greater appreciation of the challenges of a municipal 
utility, particularly time and available resources.  

Judy has been involved in numerous rate and capacity fee studies 
and takes a leadership role in the analytical portions of the study. 
These studies have ranged from single-entity utilities to much more 
complex multi-system utilities and have included developing revenue 
requirements and cost of service studies. She has extensive 
experience in the development of miscellaneous fees, including 
utility connection charges or system development charges. Judy has 
developed system development charges or capacity fees for a 
number of water, sewer, and stormwater utilities across the U.S. 
Among the California clients, she has worked with the cities of 
Belmont, Santa Barbara, Santa Maria, San Luis Obispo, The Otay 
Water District, and Padre Dam Municipal Water District.  

Judy has a strong command of a number of database, spreadsheet, 
and presentation programs. Her strengths in developing computer 
models include efficiency and ability to develop sophisticated models 
that were elegantly simple in design and easy to use. Judy’s 

attention to detail, along with her ability to maintain the big picture, result in easy-to-use, high-
quality rate models provided to our clients. 

Judy has provided clear, easy-to-understand presentations on highly technical financial 
information to a variety of audiences, ranging from presentations to client management, and 
staff project teams to project presentations. Her confidence in her technical abilities and 
understanding of the underlying concepts makes her easy-to-listen to and easy-to-grasp key 
points. 

 

 

Education 
B.S. Accounting, 
Central Washington 
University 

Professional 
Registration 
Certified Public 
Accountant - Inactive 
Washington State No. 
22607 

AWWA, Member  

Washington Finance 
Officers Association 

Government Finance 
Officers Association 

Expertise 
Utility Financial Planning 

Cost of Service 

System Development 
Charges/Impact Fees 
 
HDR Tenure 
25 Years 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 59 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 10 
 

 

Michael Flores, IAM | Wastewater Engineering Support 
Michael has more than 29 years of experience in the water and 
wastewater field with a primary focus on infrastructure management, 
operations, maintenance, and capital program planning. He has 
managed or served as a senior technical resource on several large 
and complex projects, focused on planning and implementing 
business process changes and information management solutions 
for wastewater collection system operations, maintenance, and 
capital planning programs.  

Michael approaches each project with the client’s concerns and 
needs in mind, providing them with a project manager they can count 
on to deliver effective programs on time and on budget. He helps 
clients to understand the needs of their systems before they become 
critical risks to operation. Michael’s extensive experience includes 
his work with large municipalities to develop actionable infrastructure 
management plans to protect critical assets and extend their 
operating life.  

Michael has led the development and implementation of asset 
management programs and processes for San Francisco Public 
Utilities Commission, Clark County Water Reclamation District, and 
San Antonio Water System. Through his work with agencies such as 
these, Michael has distinguished himself as a trusted advisor for 
maintaining critical water and wastewater infrastructure. 

Most recently, Michael was the Project Manager for the Orange 
County Sanitation District’s Asset Management Plan Update which 
provided a roadmap for prioritizing the collection of condition 
assessment data, analyzing the likelihood and consequences of 
failure, and documenting the process to developing and updating the 
District’s ongoing capital improvements. 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

Education 
Master of Science, 
Mechanical Engineering, 
Harvey Mudd College 
1993 
 
Bachelor of Science, 
Engineering, Harvey Mudd 
College 1992 

Certification 
Institute of Asset 
Management, Certificate in 
Asset Management, IAM 
Registration No. 1026612 

Professional 
Associations 
Water Environment 
Federation 
 
California Water 
Environment Association 
(CWEA) 

Expertise 
Infrastructure Management 

Operations & Maintenance 

Capital Program Planning 

Years with HDR 
18 Years 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 60 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 11 
 

Amy Omae, P.E. | Engineering Assistance 
Amy is a proven project manager with extensive experience in 
wastewater and master planning, design,  and engineering services 
during construction projects throughout Southern California. Her 
expertise is in the design of treatment plant processes, pipeline 
profiles, layouts, mechanical pumping systems, pilot testing and 
research, alternative technology evaluations, mass balance and 
financial model development, quality assurance, and field 
engineering services during construction. Amy has worked closely 
with Irvine Ranch Water District throughout her tenure with HDR and 
is currently leading the District’s Recycled Water Salt Management 
Plan. Her dedication to delivering quality projects has made her one 
IRWD’s most trusted project managers.  

Amy has worked with your technical team on many OC San projects, 
allowing her to develop a keen understanding of how your facilities 
operate.   For example, her work on the Emergency Overflow Weirs 
allowed her to get a firsthand look of the condition of the overflow 
pipes and concrete structures and develop cost effective solutions to 
extend the life of the infrastructure.  Similarly, Amy has been working 
on the design for furnishing two new 125-hp air compressors to 
provide additional high-pressure plant air to Plant No. 1.  Another 
project includes a comprehensive evaluation of the OC San’s Plant 
No. 1 laboratory’s operational needs regarding renovation or 
replacement of the facility.  This work with your facilities positions 
Amy to make solid engineering recommendations to the rate study 
team to best evaluate options for future budgets. 

Amy recently worked on developing future costs for Irvine Ranch 
Water District for continuing to discharge solids to OC San for 
treatment.  She developed the market and alternatives analysis that 
fed into a financial model to estimate costs using the current method 
for charging as well as the proposed methods.  The information is 
being used to determine if changes to the solid treatment process 
should be changed. 

Amy is knowledgeable in wastewater treatment planning, design, commissioning and operation.  
Her experience includes headworks design and improvements through advanced treatment for 
reuse.  She frequently works with regulatory and permitting agencies, vendors, and 
subconsultants to develop alternatives, including piloting options, for the utility owners to 
consider before implementing.    

  

 

Education 
Bachelor of Science, 
Chemistry, University of 
Miami 
 
Master of Science, 
Environmental 
Engineering, University of 
Miami 

Professional Licenses 
Professional Engineer – 
Civil, CA, No 76824 

Professional 
Associations 
Water Environment 
Federation 
 
Orange County Water 
Association 

Expertise 
Wastewater Treatment 
Processes 

LEED Accredited 

Years with HDR 
14 Years 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 61 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 12 
 

1.4 Project Examples and Client References 
Provided below are descriptions of similar projects recently completed by HDR, along with client 
references for each study.  

City of San Luis Obispo – Water and Wastewater Rates and Impact Fee Studies 
Since 2004, HDR has been assisting the City of San 
Luis Obispo with the development of water and 
wastewater rates and impact (connection) fees. 
Initially, HDR worked with the City on reviewing their 
water rate structures to encourage conservation and 
efficient use. In 2005/06, HDR worked with the City on 
evaluating automated meter reading systems to 
provide enhanced utility billing. In 2013, HDR assisted 
the City in a review of their water and wastewater 

impact (capacity) fees. HDR provided the City with a summary letter addressing the City’s 
approach and considerations for future fee studies. In late 2016, HDR worked with the City to 
develop a full update of the water and wastewater rates and impact fees. This impact fee study 
included an updated methodology and development of key infrastructure information and 
system capital improvements. HDR worked effectively with City staff and developed a draft of 
the studies. The analysis was presented to City management for review and discussion with 
other City impact fees. The fees were presented to the development community and City 
Council for review and discussion. The final recommended impact fees were successfully 
implemented in 2017. In 2020, HDR worked with the City and the City Council to again review 
the water rate structures. The City’s concern had shifted from conservation and efficient use to 
revenue stability. HDR developed a number of alternative rate structures for the City to review. 

Key Team Members:  Shawn Koorn [PM], Judy Dean, Josiah Close, Tom Gould [QC] 

Project Dates and Contract Amounts:  2004, 2005/06, 2013 W/WW Rate Study ($50,000), 
2016-2017 W/WW Impact Fee ($49,000), 2019-20 W/WW Rate Update ($25,000) 

Contact Information:  Mr. Aaron Floyd, Utilities Director, (805) 781-7237, afloyd@slocity.org 

  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 62 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 13 
 

CITY OF SANTA MARIA – WATER AND SEWER RATE STUDY 

In 2016, HDR conducted a comprehensive water and 
sewer rate study. The goal for the study was to 
develop cost-based rates that adequately balanced 
the short and long-term financial and environmental 
sustainability goals of the City. This included the 
development of financial policies and a detailed 
review of the funding of capital improvements. HDR 
developed a 5-year financial plan and implemented 
rates for a 5-year period. A major component of the 

study was a cost of service analysis for each utility which provided the necessarily technical 
support for establishing cost-based rate designs. The City’s water rate structures were reviewed 
and updated to comply with cost-based requirements. Since the completion of the initial study, 
HDR has assisted the City in updating the revenue requirement and reviewing impacts and 
comparison to rate study projections. 

Key Team Members:  Shawn Koorn [PM], Judy Dean, Dean Gipson, Josiah Close, Tom Gould 

Project Dates and Contract Amounts:  2016 W/WW Rate Study ($80,000) 

Contact Information:  Mr. Shad Springer, sspringer@cityofsantamaria.org, (805) 925-0951 ext. 
7211 

 
CITY OF SANTA BARBARA – WATER AND WASTEWATER RATE STUDIES 

In 2018, HDR was retained by the City to conduct a 
comprehensive wastewater rate study. The City’s 
study included the development of a revenue 
requirement, cost of service, and rate designs. The 
study resulted in a three-year rate plan for proposed 
wastewater rates and a 10-year plan to review future 
rate adjustment needs. In addition, the cost of service 
reviewed and developed high-strength surcharges for 
those wastewater customers with wastewater 

characteristics greater than domestic strength. These charges are applied to those customers 
through a monitoring program and those with higher than domestic level strength. Finally, HDR 
worked with City staff and presented the results to the Water Commission and City Council for 
approval and adoption. In 2019, HDR completed a water rate study for the City. This study 
reviewed the customer classes of service and rate structure alternatives to proportionally collect 
the costs of providing water service. In 2022 HDR completed a wastewater rate study update for 
the City. This included reviewing and updating the proposed rates for the next three year period 
as well as evaluating rate structures and customer wastewater characteristics. This study also 
updated the City’s water and wastewater capacity charges.  

Key Team Members:  Shawn Koorn [PM], Judy Dean, Dean Gipson, Josiah Close, Tom Gould 

Project Dates and Contract Amounts:  2018 Wastewater ($90,000), 2019 Water ($129,000), 
2022 Wastewater ($105,000) 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 63 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
1. Experience and Qualifications  

 

Page 14 
 

Contact Information:  Mr. Joshua Haggmark, Water Resources Manager, City of Santa 
Barbara, (805) 564-5393, jhaggmark@santabarbaraca.gov 

 

Dublin San Ramon Service District – Water and Sewer Rates and Fee Studies 

Since 2004, HDR has worked with the District on their 
rates and capacity fees. HDR was originally retained 
to review the District’s local and regional water and 
sewer rates. The study developed a long-term 
financial plan for each utility and established cost-
based rates. In 2016, HDR updated the District’s 
water reserve capacity fee. This study update 
included a review of the projection of future equivalent 
dwelling units (EDU) to define the basis for the fee.  In 

addition, the future (i.e., expansion-related) capital improvement projects were reviewed to 
determine the incremental/growth-related portion of the fee. In 2020, HDR was again asked by 
the District to assist in an update the reserve capacity fee methodology to reflect the District’s 
current overall goals and objectives. Key to this update is the review of EDUs through buildout, 
as well as updated infrastructure costs based on the District’s asset management program. 
HDR is currently working with the District to update the local and regional wastewater rates. 

Key Team Members: Shawn Koorn, Judy Dean, Tom Gould, Josiah Close 

Project Dates: 2015-2016 Water Capacity Fee ($40,000), 2019-2020 Water Capacity Fee 
Study ($40,000), 

Contact Information: Mr. Herman Chen, Financial Services Supervisor, 925.875.2271, 
chen@dsrsd.com 

1.5 Subconsultants 
Given the range of experience and qualifications of internal HDR staff, no subconsultants are 
necessary or included for the District’s Study.  

1.6 Summary 
Provided below are descriptions of similar projects recently completed by HDR, along with client 
references for each study.  

 

 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 64 of 170

mailto:jhaggmark@santabarbaraca.gov


Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 15 
 

2. Project Understanding 
2.1 Introduction 
The Montecito Sanitary District (District) has requested technical and professional assistance to 
independently assess and evaluate the District’s sewer rates and connection fees. This will be 
accomplished by conducting a comprehensive sewer rate and connection fee study. A key 
objective for the District’s Study is to independently review, evaluate, and propose sewer rates 
and fees that are consistent with industry standards, best management practices, and 
applicable laws and support the costs of providing sewer services. This includes evaluating the 
District’s customer classes of service, rate structure, and connection fees for the next six-year 
period to support the long-term financial sustainability of the District.  

Provided in this section of HDR’s proposal is a discussion of our understanding of the District’s 
goals and objectives, along the general approach that HDR will utilize to conduct the Study. We 
have also provided a brief assessment of the financial status of the District’s utilities and the 
challenges that this study must address.   

2.2 Goals and Objectives for the Study 
The overarching goal of the study is to assess and evaluate the District’s sewer rates and 
connection fees and establish cost-based and proportional rates and fees to support the 
District’s financial obligations. These overarching goals and objectives may be summarized as 
follows: 

1. Evaluate the District’s current customer classes, rate structure, and connection fees. 
2. Provide recommendations for rate structure revisions and rates that are consistent with 

industry standards, best management practices and applicable laws. 
3. Develop a cost of service analysis and rate model for a minimum six-year period to 

project the annual operations and District planned capital improvements. 
4. Review and demonstrate the impacts of higher wastewater treatment costs while 

maintaining prudent financial management criteria (e.g., debt service coverage, 
reserves). 

5. Review and provide recommendations on appropriate financial management criteria 
(e.g., debt service coverage, reserves) based on industry standard measures. 

While the above set of goals and objectives for the Study helps to guide the needed analysis, 
HDR has expanded upon these major objectives and provided the following additional goals and 
objectives for the District’s sewer rate and connection fee study.  

• Effectively present the results of the study to the District’s committees and Boards to gain 
policy feedback and input on the development of the study to reflect the District’s rate setting 
goals and objectives. 

• Develop the Study using generally-accepted rate methodologies and industry best 
management practices (e.g., Water Environment Federation (WEF), Government Finance 
Officers Association (GFOA)) and the District’s specific customer and system characteristics 
to meet the requirements of Proposition 218. 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 65 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 16 
 

• Develop a revenue requirement analysis that reflects the District’s historical and projected 
operating and capital costs over a minimum six-year period and meets the industry standard 
financial measures (e.g., target/minimum reserve balances, debt service coverage ratios, 
replacement capital funding). From this analysis, determine the overall adequacy or 
deficiency of the District’s sewer rates over the six-year time period. 

• Within the six-year financial plan, utilize the District’s current Capital Improvement Program 
and develop a capital funding plan that provides the capital improvement needs and funding 
sources, along with the impacts to sewer rates. Provide adequate and consistent annual 
funding for sewer renewal and replacement capital projects (i.e., existing/aging 
infrastructure). 

• As needed, develop a rate transition plan for sewer rates that minimizes rate impacts, 
avoids rate spikes, and protects financial metrics, while maintaining appropriate service 
levels. 

• Develop a sewer cost of service analysis to proportionally distribute the costs between the 
identified customer classes of service (e.g., single-family residential, multi-family residential, 
commercial). Consider and incorporate the need to allocate costs in a manner such that 
they support the level of the proposed rate components (e.g., fixed and variable charges). 
From the cost of service analysis, develop average unit costs to determine the cost-basis for 
the proposed sewer rates. 

• Review and assess the District’s current sewer rate structures. Review the current customer 
classes of service for appropriateness and provide specific recommendations. Provide 
feasible rate structure alternatives for the District’s review. Provide recommended sewer 
rates for the six-year period. 

• Review and confirm the District’s sewer connection fee methodology reflects industry 
standard approaches and the requirements of AB 66000 and recommend adjustments to the 
approach and level of the fee to cost-based and proportional level.  

• Provide a written report which provides clear justification for the District’s final rate decisions 
(i.e., provide a clear record of decision). 

• Work closely with the District’s project team to maximize the value of this Study. 
• Provide a copy of the Microsoft Excel models to the District for their future use and update. 

The above detailed goals and objectives will be discussed as a part of the initial project meeting 
and these goals and objectives can be updated and revised accordingly.   

2.3 Overview of the General Methodology 
The methodology HDR typically uses for its comprehensive rate studies relies upon generally 
accepted methodologies within the financial and rate-setting industry. These generally accepted 
methodologies are best defined by the WEF Manual of Practice No. 27, Financing and Charges 
for Wastewater Systems. A comprehensive rate study is generally comprised of three 
interrelated analyses. These interrelated analyses are shown below. 

  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 66 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 17 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

A comprehensive rate study includes each of these technical analyses. The scope of services 
presented below includes and discusses each of these analyses and the technical steps 
involved in each to meet the scope of services outlined by the District in the RFP.  

An important aspect of this Study is incorporating and “tailoring” those analytical elements to the 
District’s specific customer characteristics and systems. Throughout this Study, HDR will also 
work closely with the District’s project manager and staff to provide a quality Study. During the 
Study, HDR will routinely meet with the District to review the technical analysis and gain 
feedback and input. Our clients appreciate this approach since it enhances their overall 
understanding of the methodologies used, the technical analyses developed, and the 
technical basis for the final rate and policy recommendations of the study. 

2.4 Scope of Services 
Given the identified goals and objectives for the Study, and a general approach, HDR has 
developed a detailed project approach (i.e., scope of services), by major task, for the District’s 
Study. For each task, HDR has provided a summary of the task. For the more technical 
details of a specific proposed task, a more detailed discussion of the general approach 
and key issues is provided.   

In reviewing our scope of services, it is important to note that at the time of the development of 
this proposal, certain COVID restrictions and mandates are in place. How long these restrictions 
and mandates may be required, or how they may impact the delivery of this Study, is unknown. 
Given that, it is presumed that HDR and the District may need to be flexible in terms of meetings 
(in-person versus virtual/video conference). Ideally, HDR believes face-to-face meetings are the 
most effective, but recognizes we all must safely navigate through the current pandemic.  

Provided below are the proposed tasks for the sewer rate and connection fee study. HDR has 
developed this scope of services based upon our understanding of the District’s current needs 
and HDR is certainly willing to modify and adjust our project approach (scope of services) to 
meet the specific goals and objectives of the District. 

 

Revenue Requirement Analysis Compares the sources of funds to the operating and 
capital expenses of the utility to determine the overall 

adjustment to rates.   

Cost of Service Analysis 
Proportionally and equitably distributes the total 
revenue requirement to the various customer 

classes of service. 

Rate Design Analysis Design rates to meet the overall rate design goals 
and objectives and yield the revenue requirements. 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 67 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 18 
 

Task 1 – Project Management / Quality Control 
 

Task Objective:  Provide effective project management and administration of the Study. Provide a quality 
control review and evaluation of the Study and all technical analyses. 

Task Approach:  
• HDR Project Manager is responsible for project administration and technical analysis. 
• HDR QA/QC procedures and documentation to be used for quality control. HDR Project Manager is 

responsible for meeting and fulfilling all QC requirements. 

Expected District Staff Support for Task 1:  
• District’s PM work closely with HDR’s PM to internally coordinate the Study and address any issues. 

Deliverables as a Result of Task 1: 
• Project administration – HDR PM provides routine updates to the District’s PM on the status of the Study 

through monthly invoices and progress reports. 
• Prepare agendas, lead study meetings, and provide summary meeting notes 
• QA/QC review process provided for the study and technical analyses. 

 

Key Issues Associated With Task 1: HDR’s Project Manager is responsible for the overall 
quality of the study and meeting the expectations of our clients. Our successful projects are 
accomplished through our PM’s close coordination and communication with the District’s PM. 
Monthly invoices will be provided to the District along with a progress report outlining the work 
completed during the prior period and any Study issues, concerns, or updates on the project 
schedule and fee. 

The project team will develop agendas and lead project meetings during the development of the 
sewer rate and connection fee study. At the completion of an internal project meeting, HDR will 
provide summary meeting notes to the District which outline the next steps and action items. 

HDR has a specific and detailed QA/QC process for all 
of our projects. This Study will be reviewed using HDR’s 
company-wide Quality Assurance/Quality Control 
(QA/QC) Program. All QA/QC processes and reviews 
are internally documented. HDR’s QA/QC process 
focuses on prevention rather than detection and being 
proactive rather than reactive. For the District’s Study, 
Shawn Koorn, will provide the overall quality control. 
Shawn is a nationally recognized expert utility rate and 
fee setting with over 20-years of experience.  

  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 68 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 19 
 

Task 2 – Written Data Request 
 

Task Objective: Provide a written data request detailing the data and information required for the Study.  

Task Approach:  
• Provide a detailed written data request to the District.   
• Identify any data constraints and quickly resolve. 

Expected District Staff Support for Task 2:   
• Gather the data requested in the written data request provided by HDR. 

Deliverables as a Result of Task 2: 
• An initial written data request to the District and identification of any data constraints. 

 

Key Issues Associated With Task 2: HDR will provide a written data request to the District 
prior to the initial project meeting (Task 3) so that it can be discussed at the meeting and any 
problem areas quickly resolved. The data and information requested for this Study should be, 
for the most part, readily available information (e.g., financial, statistical, customer). HDR will 
review the data and information and contact the District with questions or clarifications. 

Task 3 – Initial Project Meeting 
 

Task Objective: Bring the HDR project team, District management and staff together, at the start of the project, 
to allow both parties to have a mutual understanding of the goals, objectives, issues and concerns related to 
the study. Review the scope of work, project time schedule and initial data request. 

Task Approach:  
• Schedule an initial project meeting at the District’s offices (note: depending upon COVID restrictions, 

may be necessary via video/virtual meeting). 

Expected District Staff Support for Task 3:   
• Have their key management/project team members attend a 2-hour kick-off meeting. 
• Confirmation of the District’s goals and objectives for the Study. 

Deliverables as a Result of Task 3:   
• Identification of objectives, issues and concerns by both parties. 
• Face-to-face meeting to get the Study off to a positive start.  

 

Key Issues Associated with Task 3:  The initial project meeting is important to the overall 
success of the Study since it provides a key foundation for the rate study process (project team 
coordination). This meeting allows both parties to discuss in detail the overall goals and 
objectives for the sewer rate and connection fee study, while at the same time discussing any 
issues and concerns that either party may have. It is proposed that the initial project meeting be 
approximately 2 hours in length. If possible, the initial project meeting will be held at the 
District’s office. Alternatively, if necessary, the initial project meeting may be held via 
virtual/video conference. 

  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 69 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 20 
 

Task 4 – Review of the District’s Financial/Rate Policies and Other Relevant Documents 
 

Task Objective: Review the District’s existing financial/rate setting policies to determine the financial planning 
criteria to be used in developing the District’s Study. In addition, review the relevant information and documents 
(e.g., facility/master plans, capital improvement plans, intergovernmental agreements with other municipalities, 
contracts with large/industrial/institutional customers, etc.)  

Task Approach:  
• Review the District’s existing written financial/rate setting policies. 
• As appropriate discuss and recommend additional policies based on best industry practices. 
• Review other planning documents and intergovernmental agreements/contracts relevant to this Study.  

Expected District Staff Support for Task 4:   
• Provide a copy of the District’s existing written financial policies, planning/CIP documents, and 

intergovenmental agreements, etc. 
• As needed, respond to questions concerning the data and information provided. 

Deliverables as a Result of Task 4:   
• A review of the District’s existing written financial/rate setting policies and relevent documents. 
• If needed, a one-hour virtual project meeting to review and discuss the relevent information. 

 

Key Issues Associated With Task 4: The key advantage of established written financial 
policies is they provide management and staff with clear policy direction on the financial 
planning criteria to be used in the development of the financial plans and rates. Financial 
policies can be expanded and refined to includes items such as the overall methodology to be 
used, minimum financial targets (e.g., DSC, reserve levels, 
capital improvement funding from rates, use of long-term 
borrowing, debt/equity, etc.). It is important to understand that 
this task is not intended to develop a specific set of written 
financial or rate setting policies for the District. Rather, this task 
is intended to gain an understanding of the level of written 
policy direction already provided within the financial planning 
and rate setting process. For those areas where no specific 
financial planning target or criteria is provided, as a part of 
Task 6, HDR will recommend appropriate financial targets 
(e.g., target debt service coverage, minimum annual funding for replacement capital).   

The review of the planning documents (master plans, capital plans, etc.) provides the initial 
basic understanding of the capital needs for the District. This also provides a linkage and basis 
for the establishment of the proposed rates, and specifically the planning criteria which will be 
used in the development of the connection fee review (Task 9). This will include the upcoming 
septage to sewer strategic plan as well as the recent condition assessment and replacement 
plans and treatment “mini-master plan” completed by the District. While there is not a specific 
master plan, HDR will rely on available documented planning information in the development of 
the rate and fee study.  

As a part of this task, HDR will also review any Intergovernmental Agreements or contracts with 
large/industrial/institutional customers. These agreements/contracts may contain specific legal 
requirements regarding the establishment of rates. HDR needs to be aware of any limitations or 
requirements contained in these documents.  

“The key advantage of 
established written financial 

policies is they provide 
management and staff with 
clear policy direction on the 

financial planning criteria to be 
used in the development of the 

financial plans and rates.”  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 70 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 21 
 

 

Task 5 – Performance Benchmarking 
 

Task Objective: Work with the District to identify key performance benchmarks for comparison to industry 
averages. 

Task Approach:  
• Identify specific performance benchmarks to review. 
• Utilize industry information (e.g., AWWA) to develop the comparison.  

Expected District Staff Support for Task 5:   
• Collaborate with HDR to select relevant performance indicators to be used for the Study. 
• Provide the needed data to populate the District’s performance indicators  

Deliverables as a Result of Task 5:   
• Define performance indicators in collaboration with District staff. 
• Graphical summary of the performance indicators and provide the findings and results. 
• Electronic copy of the TM summarizing the performance benchmarking task. 

 

Key Issues Associated With Task 5: An important part of a rate study is demonstrating that 
the utility is using ratepayer dollars wisely and efficiently. If efficiency can be shown through a 
benchmarking task, then the basis for any proposed rate adjustments is not hindered by 
arguments that the utility is “inefficient” or “wasteful” with the ratepayer funds they already have. 
HDR will approach this task with the objective of providing meaningful benchmark performance 
comparisons that focus on demonstrating the District’s efficiency as it relates to overall 
performance and work levels. 

The American Water Works Association (AWWA) segregates performance indicators 
(benchmarks) between the categories of organizational development, business operations, 
customer relations, water operations, and wastewater operations. The use of the AWWA 
benchmarks provides a common definition of the performance indicators and readily available 
data for comparison purposes. Under this approach, key performance indicators (e.g., debt 
ratio, return on assets, cash reserves) can be reviewed and compared to industry norms. Some 
of the indicators can also be compared to industry financial information (e.g., Fitch medians) to 
compare to.  

  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 71 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 22 
 

Task 6 – Revenue Requirement Analysis  
 

Task Objective:  Using a “generally accepted” rate-setting methodology, develop a revenue requirement 
analysis for a minimum six-year period. The revenue requirement analyses will establish the cost-based 
‘level’ of revenue to be collected from rates (O&M and capital). Using the District’s Capital Improvement 
Program, a capital funding plan will be developed to maximize funds available for capital projects while 
minimizing overall rate impacts. If necessary, a plan to transition rates to cost-based levels will be 
developed. The analysis will also examine key financial performance indicators such as debt service 
coverage and reserve levels. The development of the revenue requirement analysis will be designed to be 
compliant with Proposition 218. 

Task Approach:  
• Utilize the current budget and a “cash basis” methodology to accumulate costs. 
• Project revenues and expenditures (operating and capital costs) for up to a six-year period. 
• Develop a capital funding plan for the District’s sewer CIP and evaluate the financial/rate impacts of 

different CIP funding sources.  Incorporate into the capital funding plan a consistent annual funding 
source for renewal and replacement capital projects. 

• Utilize the District’s financial policies and financial planning criteria (e.g., reserves, DSC, etc.) identified 
in Task 4. 

• Review key assumptions related to customer growth/demands, revenues, expenses, 
standards/regulations, etc. 

• If needed, develop a rate transition plan to smoothly adjust the overall levels of rate revenues. 

Expected District Staff Support for Task 6:   
• Provide as needed assistance to clarify the District’s data and information 
• Provide as needed data refinements or additional data 
• Attend a 2 to 3 hour project meeting, or if necessary a virtual meeting, to review the draft revenue 

requirement analysis in tandem with the Task 7 review meeting. 

Deliverables as a Result of Task 6:   
• A sewer revenue requirement analysis for up to a six-year period that considers the necessary 

operating and capital needs. 
• A capital financing plan within the revenue requirement analysis, utilizing the District’s Capital 

Improvement Plan, which attempts to maximize capital expenditures while minimizing the rate 
impacts to customers over time. 

• If needed, a rate transition plan to “phase in” any needed rate adjustments. 
• Industry standard key financial indicators (debt service coverage, capital funding/replacement 

through rates, reserve levels, etc.). 
• One 2 to 3 hour project meeting to review draft results of the revenue requirements. 

 

Key Issues Associated With Task 6: The revenue requirement analysis is the first major 
analytical portion of the comprehensive rate study process. This task considers the prudent and 
proper funding for O&M and capital expenditures and evaluates the need for rate adjustments 
over the projected time period. The various analytical steps are described below.  

TIME PERIOD – The District has requested that the revenue requirement analysis cover up to a 
six-year projected time period.  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 72 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 23 
 

REVENUE REQUIREMENT METHODOLOGY – A “cash basis” methodology will be used for each 
utility. As shown in the diagram, and in the upper yellow box, a “cash basis” revenue 
requirement methodology sums operation and 
maintenance expenses, taxes/transfer 
payments, debt service (P+I), and capital 
projects funded from rates. This produces the 
total revenue requirement. The total revenue 
requirement, less any miscellaneous revenues, 
produces the balance of funds required from 
rates. Stated another way, the balance of funds 
from rates represents an adequate level of rate 
revenues to meet the operating and capital 
needs of the utility. 

ACCUMULATION OF REVENUES AND EXPENSES – 
Revenue requirements are composed of two major types of expenses or costs: operating costs 
and capital costs. Operational costs are generally projected from historical or budgeted costs, 
using escalation factors for future costs, and adjusted for any known changes in operations 
(e.g., changes in levels of service/personnel, operating costs, growth/expansion, etc.). HDR will 
begin with the District’s current adopted, or projected, budget and project costs into the future 
using escalation factors for the various types of costs that the District incurs (e.g., labor, 
benefits, electricity, chemicals). Operating costs will also be analyzed and adjusted for any 
changes in service levels, customer growth, etc. 

The starting point for projecting capital expenditures (i.e., the bottom “blue box” in the graphic 
above) will be the District’s Sewer Capital Improvement Plan. In the financial planning process, 
consideration must be given to maximizing the capital improvement expenditures, while 
minimizing rates to the utility’s customers. A more detailed view of the basic framework used to 
analyze capital improvement funding is shown below in Figure 1. 

Figure 1 
Overview of the Methodology for Developing a Sewer Capital Funding Plan 

+ Total Capital Projects (From Sewer Capital Improvement Plan) – 
  Renewal and Replacement Capital Projects 
  Legally Mandated/Regulatory Capital Projects 
  System Growth and Expansion Capital Projects 

– Outside Funding Sources – 
 Capital Reserves 
 Grants 
 Low-Interest Loans (State and/or Federal) 
 Connection Fees /Contributed Capital 
 Borrowed Funds/Long Term Debt (e.g., Low-Interest Loans, Revenue Bonds) 

= Capital Projects Financed with Rate Revenues (≥ Depreciation Expense) 
 

The capital (improvement) funding plan is developed on a year-by-year basis for the projected 
time period. The capital projects are listed by year with the estimated (planned) outside funding 
sources for each project. The balance of projects not funded by the available sources of funds 

“Cash Basis” Revenue Requirement and 
 Capital Planning Methodology 

+ Total Capital Projects
– Revenue Bonds (Bond Proceeds)

– Grants
– Customer Contributions (e.g. SDC’s)
= Capital Projects Funded from Rates

+ O&M Expenses
+ Taxes/Transfer Payments
+ Debt Service (P&I)
+ Capital Projects Funded from Rates
= Total Revenue Requirements
– Miscellaneous Revenues
= Balance Required from Rates(i + Term)

(≥ Annual
Deprec. Exp.)

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 73 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 24 
 

must be financed from a combination of long-term debt and rates (or deferred). It is the 
balancing of the use of long-term debt to the impact upon rates, which is critical to the analysis. 
The above framework provides the proper approach to evaluate the financial/rate implications of 
the planned capital improvements  

The District has developed condition assessment and 
replacement plans which should outline the timing and need 
for future replacement of infrastructure. As infrastructure 
comes to the end of its life, the District must have sufficient 
funding available to replace it. From a financial planning 
perspective, HDR encourages utilities to fund from rates, at 
a minimum, an amount equal to or greater than a utility’s 
annual depreciation expense (i.e., pay-as-you-go funding). 

Absent a more formal asset management plan, annual depreciation expense reflects the portion 
of plant that is becoming obsolete or worn out. However, it is important to note that annual 
depreciation expense is not the same as replacement cost and this difference must be funded 
from either borrowing or rate funding. HDR will work closely with the District to evaluate the 
current levels of funding for replacement capital and develop a long-term plan to increase 
funding to more adequate levels.  

FINANCIAL PLANNING CRITERIA – HDR will develop the revenue requirement analyses to be 
consistent with the District’s financial policies (See Task 4), current rate (bond) covenants, and 
best industry practices. HDR will use financial targets based upon either the District’s current 
written policies, or absent clear policy direction, industry best practices. 

SUMMARIZE THE RESULTS AND 
DEVELOP RATE TRANSITION PLAN –
The revenue requirement analysis is 
designed to provide an understanding 
of the total costs to operate from year 
to year. While the analysis is very 
detailed, an important step is to 
summarize those results and findings 
into an easy to understand format. 
HDR will develop summary tables for 
the revenue requirement analysis that 
should provide easy to understand 
findings and results.   

Another important element of the 
Study is the potential need for a rate 
transition plan. If needed, HDR will 
develop a rate transition plan to smoothly transition the rates over time, given the various 
funding requirements and constraints of the analysis. The District, within their RFP, suggested 
establishing sewer rates for up to a six-year period. 

INTERNAL REVIEW MEETING(S) – As the study progresses, HDR will meet the District’s project 
team to review the draft results of the revenue requirement analyses. The objective of the 

HDR rate models clearly display the costs and rate impacts of 
various operating and capital components. 

“The City also understands 
and acknowledges that they 
should be transitioning to 
additional rate funding for 

replacement of existing 
capital infrastructure.” 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 74 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 25 
 

internal review meeting is to provide the District with an understanding of the overall 
methodology, while reviewing the various key inputs and key assumptions of the analysis. In 
this way, District staff will clearly understand the approach and methodology used by HDR to 
develop the analysis, while HDR gains confirmation of the key inputs and assumptions used in 
the analysis. Based on input and feedback from the District’s project team, the revenue 
requirements will be finalized.  

Task 7 – Cost of Service Analysis  
 

Task Objective: Using generally accepted methodologies, and the District’s specific and unique system and 
customer characteristics, proportionally distribute the sewer revenue requirement to the identified customer 
classes of service (e.g., residential, commercial) and develop cost-based average unit costs for the purpose 
of designing proposed rates. The cost of service analysis should provide both fixed and variable 
(consumption) average unit costs, which are the starting point for designing final proposed sewer rate 
designs.  

Task Approach:  
• Utilize generally accepted cost of service methodologies to equitably allocate and proportionally 

distribute the District’s revenue requirement to the identified customer classes of service. 
• Summarize the results of the analysis and develop average unit costs. 

Expected District Staff Support for Task 7:   
• Discuss the District’s system, facilities, and customer characteristics. 
• Attend a 2-3 hour project meeting, or virtual meeting if necessary, to review the draft results of the 

cost of service analysis in tandem with the Task 6 project meeting. 
• Review the key assumptions and results of the sewer cost of service analysis.  

Deliverables as a Result of Task 7:   
• Review of the customer classes of service to reflect industry practices and approaches.  
• A proportional allocation of the District’s sewer revenue requirement to the customer classes of 

service. 
• Average unit costs (e.g., $/customer/month, $/100 cubic feet, $/lb TSS and BOD). 
• Project meeting to review the draft final cost of service summary and recommendations. 

 

Key Issues Associated With Task 7: In simplified terms, a cost of service analysis allocates 
and then proportionally distributes the revenue requirement to the customer classes of service. 
The basis for establishing rates that are proportional, cost-based, and defendable has 
traditionally been cost of service principles and methodologies. 
Generally accepted cost of service methodologies are discussed 
in detail within the Water Environment Federation’s Manual of 
Practice No. 27, Financing and Charges for Wastewater Systems.  

Within a cost of service analysis, the revenue requirement is 
functionalized, allocated, and proportionally distributed to the 
identified customer classes of service (e.g., residential, 
commercial, etc.). The objective of a cost of service analysis is 
to determine what cost-differences, if any, exist between 
serving different types of customers. In other words, does it 
cost the same, on a per unit basis, to serve a single-family 
residential customer that contributes four hundred cubic feet 
(HCF) a month versus an industrial customer that contributes 800 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 75 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 26 
 

hundred cubic feet of wastewater? The cost of service answers that basic question and 
quantifies those cost differences on per unit cost basis. The basic steps of a sewer cost of 
service analysis are described in more detail below. 

• Functionalization. The preliminary arrangement of costs according to functions performed 
by the sewer system. For the sewer utility, the major functions are usually defined as 
collection, pumping and treatment. A utility’s chart of accounts (i.e., accounting/budgeting 
system) typically provides functionalized data. 

• Allocation. The process of allocating the functionalized costs to the various types of cost 
components. For a sewer utility, these generally include volume (flow), strength (total 
suspended solids and biochemical oxygen demand, etc.), and customer-related cost 
components. In the allocation process, each functionalized cost is assigned to a cost 
component based upon the reason why the cost was incurred (e.g., to meet a volume and/or 
strength requirement, etc.).  

• Distribution. Given the allocation of costs to the various cost components, each allocated 
cost is proportionally distributed to the identified customer classes of service using 
prescribed distribution techniques. For example, sewer volume costs are proportionally 
distributed on the basis of the total annual sewer flows for each class of service. 

The cost of service analysis has taken on a higher level of importance over the last several 
years. The State of California has certain well-established legal constraints regarding utility 
ratemaking, of which Proposition 218 (California Constitution Article XIII D) is at the forefront. At 
its very core, Proposition 218 requires a utility to establish cost-based rates for the services 
provided. However, Proposition 218 provided certain direction, but lacked clarity and definition 
in certain areas. Hence, there have been a number of lawsuits in recent years related to utility 
rates and Proposition 218. Given this, the cost of service analysis is critical in supporting the 
cost basis and proportionality of the District’s proposed sewer rates. 

Provided below is a discussion of the major steps associated within the cost of service analysis.  

Step 1 – Selection of Test Period – A cost of service analysis typically reviews a one-year 
period to establish cost-based rates. For cost of service purposes, allocating the sewer revenue 
requirement for the first year of the proposed rates is typically done. 

Step 2 – Selection of the Method to Accumulate Costs –The “cash basis” revenue 
requirement developed in Task 6 will be proportionally distributed within the cost of service 
analysis. HDR will need to confirm this approach/methodology during the initial project meeting.  

Step 3 – Functionalization and Allocation of Expenses – Functionalization refers to the 
arrangement of the sewer cost data into its basic cost categories (e.g., collection, pumping 
treatment, etc.). Given functionalized costs, the costs are then 
allocated to the various cost components based upon the reason 
why the cost was incurred. For the District’s Study, the revenue 
requirement (costs) would be allocated to the cost components of 
volume (flow), strength (BOD, TSS), or a customer-related need. 
The allocation of the District’s costs will be based upon “generally 
accepted” cost of service techniques and the specific system 
characteristics of the District. 

“The basis for 
establishing rates that are 

fair, equitable, and 
defendable has 

traditionally been cost of 
service principles and 

methodologies.” 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 76 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 27 
 

Step 4 – Determination of Classes of Service –The District, in their RFP, wants to review the 
existing customer classes of service and have HDR provide suggestions for changes to 
clarify/simplify the classes of service. As a part of this task/step, HDR will review with the District 
the classes of service and determine whether modifications or changes are suggested or 
required.  

Step 5 – Review of Customer Consumptive/Volumetric Use – An important objective of the 
cost of service is to proportionally distribute the costs to each class of service. In other words, 
consumption and flow-related costs should be proportionally distributed between the various 
classes of service based upon the total annual flow contributions of each class of service. HDR 
will work with the District to review historical billing data, planning assumptions, and system 
characteristics to develop proportional distribution factors. 

Step 6 – Distribution of Expenses – The next step is to distribute each of the allocated costs 
to the identified customer classes of service using distribution factors. HDR will develop 
distribution factors that are “equitable and proportional” to all customers, and which rely upon 
District-specific data whenever possible. In particular, the volume and strength-related 
distribution factors will be developed based on District specific data and customer 
characteristics. Based upon the prior step, HDR will have reviewed the customer data in order 
to establish reasonable flow/volume estimates.   

Step 7 – Summary of the Cost of Service – From the above process, a summary page of the 
cost of service analysis is developed. The summary page compares the difference between the 
current level of rate revenues received from each class of service, and the proportionally 
distributed cost of service for each class. This provides an understanding of the relationship 
between the costs each customer class of service places on the system and the revenues 
received from the customers. From this summary, a determination can be made as to the 
revenue/rate adjustments, by class of service, which are reflective of cost responsibility.  

Step 8 – Development of Average Unit Costs – The cost of service provides the proportional 
distribution of costs to each class of service, but it also provides average unit costs, or cost-
based rates (e.g., $/customer month, $/HCF, $/pound of BOD or TSS, etc.). These cost-based 
rates are used as the starting point for the development of the final proposed sewer rates. 
Average unit costs also provide the District with an understanding of the cost/rate relationship 
between fixed and variable costs.  

INTERNAL REVIEW MEETING(S) – As the study progresses, HDR will meet the District’s project 
team to review the draft results of the cost of service analyses. The objective of the internal 
review meeting is to provide the District with an understanding of the overall cost of service 
methodology, while reviewing the various key inputs and assumptions of the analysis. In this 
way, District staff will clearly understand the approach and methodology used by HDR to 
develop the cost of service analysis, while gaining confirmation of the key inputs and 
assumptions. Based on input and feedback from District project team, the cost of service will be 
finalized. 

From the cost of service analysis above, the District will have a far better understanding of the 
cost-basis for the sewer rates to be developed in Task 8. 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 77 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 28 
 

Task 8 –Rate Design Analysis 
 

Task Objective:  Utilize the cost information developed as a part of the previous tasks to develop, for a six-
year period, proposed sewer rates for consideration by the District. As appropriate, develop rate structure 
alternatives to address the District’s rate design goals and objectives, while providing rates which recovers the 
cost of providing service. Develop bill comparisons for each rate design to demonstrate the potential bill 
impacts from a change in a rate structure or the level of the rates. Compare and contrast the District’s present 
and proposed rates to neighboring communities of comparable size and characteristics.   

Task Approach:  
• Utilize the results of the revenue requirement analysis and cost of service analysis to establish the overall 

level of revenue adjustments to the District’s sewer rates. 
• Review the District’s rate design goals and objectives (e.g., revenue stability, ease of administration, 

ease of customer understanding, conservation/efficient use, encourage economic development, etc.). 
• Review the District’s existing sewer rate structures and discuss with the District potential alternatives. 
• Develop sewer rate design alternatives which best meet the District’s objectives and are cost-based and 

equitable.   
• Develop customer bill comparisons to demonstrate the potential bill impacts over varying levels of usage. 
• Compare and contrast the District’s present and proposed sewer rates to neighboring communities of 

comparable size and characteristics. 
• Discuss the potential impacts (e.g., ease of understanding, administrative, revenue stability, enhanced 

conservation signal, etc.) of any proposed changes in the level or structure of the District’s sewer rates. 

Expected District Staff Support for Task 8:   
• Discuss the District’s rate design goals and objectives with HDR and discuss potential rate structure 

alternatives. 
• Review rate designs for appropriateness, provide direction for preferred alternatives.  
• Provide a suggested list of comparable neighboring utilties for comparative purposes.  

Deliverables as a Result of Task 8:  
• Review of the District’s current sewer rates. 
• Development of proposed sewer rates for a six-year period (annual adjustments). 
• Bill comparisons and graphs for up to two rate design alternatives developed. 
• Rate survey of neighboring utilities. 
• Review/discussion of the potential impacts (e.g., revenue stability, enhanced conservation, etc.) from 

any change in the District’s sewer rates. 
• A two hour virtual project meeting to review and discuss the rate design alternatives.  

 

Key Issues Associated With Task 8: The development of proposed sewer rates is the final 
analytical task of the comprehensive rate study process. The initial starting point for this task is 
better understanding the District’s rate design goals and objectives. As part of this task, HDR 
will work with the District to better understand their specific rate design goals and objectives for 
this task.   

HDR will review the current rate structures and evaluate them against industry best practices 
and current trends. In summary form, HDR will work with the District to determine alternative 
sewer rate structures for consideration. Our proposed approach is to develop a set of rates 
using the current sewer rate structures and then explore up to two alternative rate structures per 
customer class of service. To be compliant with Proposition 218, HDR will develop the sewer 
rate design using the findings and conclusions from the revenue requirement and cost of service 
analysis. This includes the average unit costs (e.g., $/customer/month and $/HCF) from the cost 
of service analysis.   

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 78 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 29 
 

For each rate design alternative developed, HDR will provide bill comparisons to demonstrate 
the bill impacts to customers at various levels of consumptive use. In addition, HDR will provide 
a comparison and rate survey of comparable neighboring utilities to provide an understanding of 
the competitiveness of the District’s present and proposed sewer rates. Finally, HDR will 
discuss the potential impacts from any changes in the District’s sewer rates (e.g., administrative 
ease, customer understanding, revenue stability, conservation).  

At the conclusion of this task, HDR will provide a recommendation on the sewer rate structures 
and recommended rates for adoption and hold a two hour virtual project meeting to review and 
discuss the rate alternatives. The proposed sewer rates will be developed for a six-year period. 

Task 9 – Review and Update of the Sewer Connection Fees 
 

Task Objective: Review and update the District’s sewer connection fees. Review the connection fee 
methodology, appraoch, cost-basis, as well as their appropriateness and reasonableness. 

Task Approach:  
• Review the methodology and approach utilized by the District in establishing the current sewer connection 

fees. 
• Review and update the District’s sewer connection fees.  
• Review the fees for appropriateness and reasonableness. 

Expected District Staff Support for Task 9:  
• Provide a copy of the District’s last connection fee study. 
• Provide necessary plant investment and planning documents; provide as-needed clarification. 

Deliverables as a Result of Task 9: 
• Review of the District’s current sewer connection fee methodology. 
• Review and update of the District’s sewer connection fees to cost-based levels. 
• A written report summarizing the findings, conclusions, and recommendations of the connection fee 

study in digital format (e.g., PDF and Word). 
• A copy of the sewer connection fee model. 
• Discuss, as relevant, current industry policies and trends related to connection fees. 

 

Key Issues Associated With Task 9: Connection fees are capital recovery fees generally 
established as one-time charges assessed against developers or new customers as a way to 
recover all or a part of the cost of additional system capacity constructed for their use. A 
capacity connection fee is typically established based upon the value of the utility’s capacity and 
the amount of capacity needed to serve the new customer. The objective of these charges is to 
maintain equity between existing and new customers. The development of cost-based 
connection fees is also important from the perspective of the overall financial stability of the 
utilities. Connection fee revenue is used to finance growth-related infrastructure. As a general 
philosophy, most utilities prefer to have “growth pay for growth.” This statement implies the 
development and implementation of cost-based connection fees. 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 79 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 30 
 

There are a number of different methodologies which may be used to establish connection 
fees.1 The key issue from the perspective of this study is 
to have a solid foundational understanding of these 
different methodologies (which HDR does) and then 
appropriately apply the methodologies based upon the 
specific circumstances of the District’s sewer utility (e.g., 
available excess capacity, no excess capacity/expansion 
needed, etc.). This task will review the District’s current 
sewer connection fees, the methodology used in the past 
to establish them and then update them to reflect current 
costs and the appropriate methodology which best reflects 
the sewer utility’s current condition and situation. 
Specifically, HDR will update the District’s connection fees using District asset records, CIP, and 
financing data to determine a cost-based sewer connection fee. 

In developing these fees, it is important to create a “nexus” or relationship between new 
development and the new or expanded facilities required to accommodate such development.  
This establishes the rational basis of public policy. Finally, at the same time, the development of 
the District’s sewer connection fees must be legally compliant with Assembly Bill 1600 and 
Government Code Section 66000.   

The draft connection fees will be reviewed with District staff at virtual project meetings and 
finalized based on the District’s project team feedback and input. Given the nature of these fees, 
HDR would propose a separate and distinct report for connection fees. Once the Study is 
completed, the sewer connection fee models will be provided electronically to the District. 

Task 10 – Written Report 
 

Task Objective: Provide a well written report to summarize the findings, conclusions and recommendations of 
the sewer rate study.  

Task Approach:  
• Develop the draft sewer rate study report for review and comment by the District in digital format. 
• Incorporate changes or received from the District or the District’s legal counsel. 
• Develop the final sewer rate study report and provide a digital format to the District (Word and PDF). 

Expected District Staff Support for Task 10:: 
• Review and comment on the draft written report. 

Deliverables as a Result of Task 10: 
• A draft rate study report in digital format. 
• A final rate study report in digital format (Word and PDF).  . 

 

 
1 For example, there are at least four different methods to value the District’s assets. There are also three 
different methods for calculating connection fees; the buy-in methodology, incremental methodology and the 
combined methodology. 

“It is important to create a 
“nexus” or connection 

between new development 
and the new or expanded 

facilities required to 
accommodate such 
development.  This 

establishes the rational basis 
of public policy.” 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 80 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 31 
 

Key Issues Associated With Task 10: Upon completion of the technical analyses, HDR will 
develop the draft rate study report for the District’s review. Based on District staff and District 
legal counsel feedback, HDR will develop a final sewer report. 

HDR’s written reports are intended to be comprehensive in nature and document the analyses 
undertaken as a part of the project, along with our findings, conclusions, and recommendations. 
Attached to the report will be the exhibits developed as a part of the study (revenue 
requirements, cost of service, rate design). For purposes of Proposition 218, this provides 
complete documentation and an administrative record of the District’s sewer rate study. 

Task 11 – Public Meetings 
 

Task Objective: Provide effective public presentations of the findings, conclusions and recommendations of the 
rate and fee study to the District Board and the public (ratepayers). 

Task Approach:  
• Develop presentation materials for five (5) meetings with the District’s Finance Committee (3), Strategic 

Planning Committee (1), and the District Board (1). 
• Shawn Koorn, the HDR Project Manager, will attend all public meetings/presentations2. 

Expected District Staff Support for Task 11: 
• Review and comment on proposed handouts for public meetings. 

Deliverables as a Result of Task 11: 
• Five (5) public presentations to present the findings, conclusions and recommendations of the rate 

study.  
 

Key Issues Associated With Task 11:  The overall quality and value of a rate study is often 
measured by the quality of the public presentation process. HDR excels at this aspect of the 
study and our ability to clearly communicate while highlighting the key study issues and 
policy-related issues has allowed HDR to successfully assist utilities through the rate 
setting process. 

The District provided within their RFP that up to five public meetings would be held with the 
District’s Finance Committee, Strategic Planning Committee, and Board to discuss the findings, 
conclusions, and recommendations of the study. HDR will prepare all handouts and the HDR 
Project Manager, Shawn Koorn, will provide the presentations. HDR would also recommend 
participation in the Proposition 218 hearing which would occur after the March 2023 
presentation and discussion with the District Board.  

Should additional public meetings or presentations be required, they can be provided on a time 
and material basis. 

  

 
2 Depending upon COVID restrictions at the time of the public meetings, HDR’s public presentations may need 
to be virtual or video conference. 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 81 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 32 
 

Task 12 – Rate and Fee Models 
 

Task Objective: Develop spreadsheet financial/rate models to conduct the rate and fee study. The models will 
be developed in Microsoft Excel and be non-proprietary. At the conclusion of the Study, all models developed as 
a part of this Study will be provided to the District for their use. 

Task Approach:  
• Develop the rate and fee models for the study using Microsoft Excel. 
• Develop the model specifically for the District utilizing their chart of accounts and specific facility 

information. 

Expected District Staff Support for Task 12:  
• Review with HDR requested features of the model. 

Deliverables as a Result of Task 12: 
• A copy of the computer spreadsheet models used to develop the District’s sewer rate and connection 

fee study. 
 

Key Issues Associated With Task 12:  HDR will develop financial/rate models for the District’s 
sewer rate and connection fee study in Microsoft Excel. The model will be specifically developed 
for the District. Our financial/rate models are designed and intended to be technically 
sophisticated, yet easy to use and update. At the conclusion of the Study, HDR will provide the 
models to the District.   

This concludes HDR’s discussion of our project approach (scope of work) for the District’s 
sewer rate and connection fee study. This scope of work has been developed based on our 
current understanding of the District’s needs. Our proposed scope of services may be modified 
to meet the specific needs of the District.  

2.5 Keys to a Successful Study 
Both HDR and the District desire project success. To that end, HDR has identified the following 
areas as the keys to success for this Study. 

Project Team Coordination – For a rate study to be successful, HDR and the District must 
work together closely and collaboratively. This will be achieved through close 
communication and a number of project meetings during the course of the Study to keep the 
District’s project manager informed of the status of the Study and any project issues. 

Long-Term Sustainable Funding – A well-managed utility is constantly looking ahead and 
develops a path (i.e., a financial plan) to adequate, long-term sustainable funding for O&M and 
capital infrastructure funding. A capital improvement funding plan will be developed which 
focuses on minimizing rates over time, while providing adequate and consistent funding 
for on-going renewal and replacement projects (i.e., pay-as-you-go rate funding). 

Rate Transition – One of the challenges of rate setting is moving from “where you are” to 
“where you want to be”. A well-thought-out rate transition plan provides a clear path 
forward to the needed changes, with the benefit of a smooth transition which minimizes 
impacts to customers. 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 82 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
2. Project Understanding  

 

Page 33 
 

District Board/Public Acceptance – Ultimately, the findings, conclusions and 
recommendations of the Study need to be accepted and adopted by the District Board and the 
public. A sound strategy for public presentations which focuses on the key policy issues and 
communicating in a clear and easy to understand manner will provide significant value to 
the ratepayers and the District Board.  

On-Time Completion, Within Budget – Allocation of adequate resources, skilled project 
management and effective project management controls (tools) will provide the foundation for 
the successful completion of the Study; on-time and within budget. 

2.6 Summary 
This section of HDR’s proposal has provided our project understanding. HDR’s approach is 
unique in that our analyses are tailored to the specific and unique characteristics and facilities of 
the District. HDR is dedicated to providing all of our clients a quality rate study. We are making 
this same commitment to the District. 

 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 83 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
3.  Project Schedule  

 

Page 34 
 

3.  Project Schedule 
3.1 Introduction 
The previous section of the proposal provided a detailed discussion of the proposed scope of 
services for the District’s sewer rate and connection fee study. This section of the proposal will 
provide a proposed project time schedule, by project task.  

3.2 Project Time Schedule 
A comprehensive sewer rate study of this complexity generally requires four to six months to 
complete, depending upon a number of factors. These factors include the amount of time 
required by the District to collect the necessary data, the quality of the data provided, the 
complexity of the issues to be addressed, the ability to schedule meetings with District staff in a 
timely manner. More importantly, in addition to those factors, the project will require timely 
feedback and policy direction from District management and the District’s committees and 
Board.   

As a part of the District’s RFP, a general project time schedule was delineated. The District has 
requested the complete draft report be submitted to the District within six (6) months after the 
award of contract. In addition, the District has noted that the proposed sewer rates must be 
completed no later than April 1, 2023 to meet the rate setting requirement. Given those basic 
parameters, HDR developed the following proposed project time schedule, delineated by task.  

 

As the rate and fee study progresses, HDR has assumed a number of internal meetings to 
review the technical analyses and gain feedback from the District. In developing the above 
project time schedule, HDR is cognizant of the challenges and restrictions posed to both the 
District and HDR by the current COVID conditions. Having said that, even with these unique 
challenges, HDR will be committed to meeting this proposed project time schedule.  

3.3 Summary 
This section of the proposal has provided a proposed project time schedule based upon the 
scope of services discussed in Section 2. If needed, HDR is willing to work with the District to 
modify our proposed project time schedule to meet the needs of the District. 

 

 

Kick-Off Meeting Project Meeting Public Presentation

April-2023September-2022 October-2022 November-2022

Task 12 Rate and Fee Models

Task 1 Project Management/QC

Task 2 Written Data Request

Task 6 Revenue Requirement Analysis

Task 7 Cost of Service Analysis

Task 8 Rate Design Analysis

Task 11 Public Meetings

Task 9 Review and Update Sewer Connection Fee

Task 10 Written Report

December-2022 January-2023 February-2023 March-2023

Task 5 Performance Benchmarking

Task 3 Initial Project Meeting

Task 4 Review Finanical Policies/Documents

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 84 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
4. Labor Rates and Fee Schedule  

 

Page 35 
 

4. Labor Rates and Fee Schedule 
4.1 Introduction 
This section of the proposal discusses HDR’s project fee estimate to conduct the District’s 
sewer rate and connection fee study.   

4.2 Estimated Staff Hours 
The following labor hour estimate by team member and task is based on the scope of services, 
as described in Section 2.  

Task Shawn 
Koorn 

Josiah 
Close 

Judy 
Dean 

Michael 
Flores 

Amy 
Omae 

Admin./ 
Acct. Total 

1 14 4 8 0 0 16 42 
2 1 2 1 0 0 0 4 
3 4 4 1 0 0 0 9 
4 2 10 4 0 0 0 16 
5 2 12 6 2 0 0 22 
6 4 20 4 2 2 0 32 
7 4 20 6 2 4 0 36 
8 2 12 2 0 0 0 16 
9 4 24 10 2 2 0 42 

10 2 12 4 0 0 0 18 
11 20 8 4 0 0 0 32 
12   0   4   2   0   0   0   6 

Total 59 132 52 8 8 16 275 

4.3 Summary 
This section of HDR’s proposal has reviewed the estimated staff hours for the scope of services 
as developed in Section 2 of this proposal. As requested by the District a separate fee proposal 
has been developed and submitted as a separate file. 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 85 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
5. Contract Requirements  

 

Page 36 
 

5. Contract Requirements 
5.1 Introduction 
The District attached a copy of the proposed Professional Services Agreement (PSA).  HDR has 
reviewed the agreement and has a limited number of comments.  Provided below is a summary of the 
identified changes related to the District’s PSA.  

5.2 Exceptions to the District’s PSA 
We have reviewed the PSA included in the RFP and propose the following exceptions, edits, and 
changes.  Requested additions are shown in highlighted bold text, and requested deletions are shown 
in red strike-through text. We do not anticipate being unable to reach a mutually acceptable 
agreement to conduct this study for the District. 

§ Requested Clarification/Modification 
Page 1, initial 

paragraph 
The Consultant would be HDR Engineering, Inc. our legal name, and HDR is a 
Nebraska corporation. 
 

6 Correction of 
Errors Services 

HDR would request the following edits. 
 
“Consultant agrees to correct, at its expense, all errors which may be …” 
 
replace errors with: “services which fail to satisfy the standard of care set forth in 
Section 3 hereof and”  
 

9. District’s 
Responsibility 

HDR would request the following addition at the end of the existing paragraph: 
 
“District shall provide Consultant all information and documents necessary for 
Consultant to perform its services.  Consultant shall be entitled to rely upon the 
accuracy and completeness of all information and documents furnished by 
District, provided that Consultant shall provide District prompt notice of any 
known defects in such information and documents.” 
 

10. Term of 
Agreement 

HDR would request the addition of c. which would state: 
 
“Notwithstanding the foregoing, neither party will terminate this Agreement for 
cause without providing the other party written notice of the breach and a period 
of 10 calendar days to cure.” 
 

12. 
Compensation 

HDR would request the following addition at the end of the existing paragraph: 
 
District agrees to pay consultant for services provided under this Agreement in the 
amount set forth in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated by this reference in full 
herein. District will pay all undisputed amounts within 30 days following receipt 
of Consultant’s invoice.” 

 
16. Indemnity HDR would request the following edits. 

 
“…, costs and financial loss, including all costs and expenses and fee of litigation or 
arbitration, that arise directly or indirectly from to the extent caused by any negligent 
acts or omissions related to this Agreement performed by Consultant or it agents, 
employees, subconsultants, subcontractors and other persons acting on Consultant’s 
behalf. This agreement to indemnify, hold harmless and defend shall apply whether 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 86 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
5. Contract Requirements  

 

Page 37 
 

 

 

5.3 Exceptions to the Exhibit B Insurance 
As part of our review we have also reviewed the Insurance requirements requested by the District. 
Similar to above requested additions are shown in highlighted bold text, and requested deletions are 
shown in red strike-through text.  

§ Requested Clarification/Modification 
1. c. HDR would request the following edit. 

 
Professional liability/errors and omissions insurance appropriate to Consultant's 
profession with a minimum coverage of $2,000,000 per occurrence or claim, 
$2,000,000 aggregate. The professional liability/errors and omissions insurance must 
be project specific with at least a one year extended reporting period, or longer upon 
request.  
 

such acts or omissions are the product of active negligence, passive negligence, or 
acts for which the Consultant or its agents, employees, subconsultants, subcontractors 
and other persons acting on Consultant’s behalf would be held strictly liable.” 
 

23. Force 
Majeure 

HDR would request the following additions to this section. 
 
“Such acts shall include, but not be limited to acts of God, strikes, lockouts, riots, acts 
of war, epidemics, pandemics, quarantine restrictions, governmental regulations 
improves after this Agreement was executed, …“ 
 

36. Waiver HDR would request the following section be added to the Agreement: 
 
“Notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement and to the fullest 
extent permitted by law, neither party to this Agreement shall be liable to the 
other party for any special, incidental, indirect, or consequential damages 
(including but not limited to loss of use or opportunity; loss of good will; cost of 
substitute facilities, goods, or services; cost of capital; and/or fines or penalties), 
loss of profits or revenue arising out of, resulting from, or in any way related to 
Consultant's services or this Agreement from any cause or causes, including but 
not limited to any such damages caused by negligence, errors or omissions, 
strict liability or breach of contract.” 
 

37. Allocation of 
Risk 

HDR would request the following section be added to the Agreement: 
 
“The parties have evaluated the risks and rewards associated with this 
Agreement, including Consultant's fee relative to the risks assumed, and agree 
to allocate certain of the risks so, to the fullest extent permitted by law and 
notwithstanding anything to the contrary in this Agreement, the total aggregate 
liability of Consultant (and its related corporations, subconsultants and 
employees) to District and anyone claiming by, through or under District shall be 
limited to Consultant's fee amount under this Agreement, for any and all injuries, 
damages, claims, losses or expenses (including attorney and expert fees) arising 
out of Consultant's services or this Agreement, regardless of the cause or theory 
of liability, including negligence, indemnity or other recovery.” 
 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 87 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District | Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
5. Contract Requirements  

 

Page 38 
 

§ Requested Clarification/Modification 
2. HDR would request the following edits. 

 
“… District reserves the right to require complete certified redacted copies of all 
required insurance policies at any time. …” 
 

3. HDR would request the following edits. 
 
“Consultant agrees that all insurance coverages shall be provided by a California 
admitted insurance carrier with an A.M. Best rating of A:VII or better and shall be 
endorsed to state that coverage may not be suspended, voided, canceled, or reduced 
in coverage or limits materially changed without 30 days' prior written notice to the 
General Manager. The General Manager …” 
 

6. HDR would request the following edits. 
 
“The insurer shall declare any deductibles or self-insured retentions to and be 
approved by the General Manager. At the option of the General Manager, either the 
insurer shall reduce or eliminate such deductibles or self-insured retentions as respects 
District, its directors, officers, employees, agents and volunteers, or the Consultant 
shall procure a bond guaranteeing payment of losses and related investigations, claim 
administration and defense expenses.” 
 

5.4 Summary 
Other than the above requested edits to the District’s professional services agreement and insurance, 
HDR does not request consideration of any other changes or make any other exceptions. As noted, HDR 
does not anticipate any issues with coming to mutually agreeable terms for this Study. 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 88 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District

Robert D. Niehaus, Inc. │August 15, 2022
Jack Lyon 805-618-1356 │ Jack@rdniehaus.com

140 East Carrillo Street, Santa Barbara, CA 93101

Proposal for Sewer Rate Study

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 89 of 170



i | P a g e

This Page Intentionally Left Blank

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 90 of 170



ii | P a g e

August 15, 2022

Bradley Rahrer, P.E. Anthony Elowsky, Project Manager
General Manager Robert D. Niehaus, Inc.
Montecito Sanitary District 140 E Carrillo Street
1042 Monte Cristo Lane Santa Barbara, CA 93101
Santa Barbara, CA 93108 Phone: (805) 962-0611

Email: Anthony@RDNiehaus.com

Subject: Proposal for Montecito Sanitary District Sewer Rate Study

Dear Mr. Rahrer,

Robert D. Niehaus, Inc. (RDN) is pleased to submit our proposal to conduct the Sewer Rate Study (Study) for the
Montecito Sanitary District (District). We are an economic and financial consulting firm that provides rate- and
fee-setting consulting services to California water and wastewater utilities. RDN staff have completed over 700
projects with economic, financial, and market analysis experience across California and worldwide since the firm’s
founding in 1983. The proposed project team for the District’s study has over 100 years of combined public-sector
consulting experience. We are committed to providing the highest quality analysis for our clients, evidenced by
the fact that our proposed rates have never been successfully protested or subject to successful litigation.

The District is seeking a qualified consultant to perform a comprehensive review of wastewater rates to ensure
sufficient revenues are collected over the next six years. As a local consultant, RDN is eager to support the District
to make the financial adjustments necessary to continue to provide safe and reliable service. The following
proposal details our proposed approach for this project, the qualifications and experience of our project team,
and references who can speak to the quality of care and service we provide.

We are proud of the team and resources we can offer the District on this important project. Please coordinate
with Jack Lyon, Director of Business Development, (805) 618-1356, Jack@RDNiehaus.com, if you would like to
discuss our proposal, which is valid for a 120-day period. We affirm that we have carefully reviewed the RFP in its
entirety, including the District standard professional services agreement, and take no exceptions. We look forward
to a successful, collaborative, and productive partnership.

Respectfully submitted,

Robert D. Niehaus, Ph.D. Anthony Elowsky, M.A.
Managing Director, Principal Economist Project Manager, Financial Analyst

Anthony ElowskyRobert D Niehaus

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 91 of 170



iii | P a g e

This Page Intentionally Left Blank

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 92 of 170



iv | P a g e

TABLE OF CONTENTS
Company Qualifications .................................................................................................................................1

Firm Overview ........................................................................................................................................................1

Team Qualifications................................................................................................................................................2

Key Personnel .........................................................................................................................................................3

References ..............................................................................................................................................................4

Technical Approach........................................................................................................................................6

Project Understanding............................................................................................................................................6

Executive Summary ................................................................................................................................................7

Scope of Services ....................................................................................................................................................8

Task 1. Project Management/Meetings .........................................................................................................8

Task 2. Six-Year Financial Plan ........................................................................................................................9

Task 3. Cost of Service Analysis ....................................................................................................................10

Task 4. Rate Design.......................................................................................................................................11

Task 5. Report and Model.............................................................................................................................13

Project Schedule ..........................................................................................................................................15

Allocated Staff Hours ...................................................................................................................................16

Contract Requirements ................................................................................................................................18

No Conflict of Interest ..........................................................................................................................................18

Insurance Requirements.......................................................................................................................................18

Professional Services Agreement .........................................................................................................................18

Appendix .....................................................................................................................................................18

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 93 of 170



v | P a g e

This Page Intentionally Left Blank

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 94 of 170



1 | P a g e

COMPANY QUALIFICATIONS
FIRM OVERVIEW

RDN is a professional economic and financial consulting firm,
located in the City of Santa Barbara, delivering solutions to
California utilities, State/Local entities, and Federal agencies.
RDN has provided consulting services for sewer, water,
stormwater, housing, and energy projects throughout
California and worldwide since the firm’s founding in 1983.
Our staff has completed over 700 projects with economic,
financial, and market analysis experience. Our proposed
Project Team has decades of experience in sewer and water rate analyses, development impact fees, data
management, public relations support, and econometric modeling and forecasting of demand.

We specialize in providing rate- and fee-setting solutions for smaller municipalities serving populations of 20,000
or fewer. Our clients appreciate that we take the lead in data collection and analysis, relieving the burden from
District staff. We will also leverage our understanding of local water and sewer rate politics to help inform our
recommendations, which will help increase buy-in from Montecito stakeholders. Table 1 presents a selection of
our proposed project team’s recent experience with utilities of similar size, demographics, and project scope to
the District.

Table 1. RDN Relevant Recent Projects

Agency Project
City of Greenfield Water and Wastewater Rate Study (ongoing)

California City Water, Wastewater, Recycled Water Rate Study (ongoing)

Hilton Creek CSD Wastewater Rate and Fee Study (ongoing)

San Simeon CSD Wastewater Rate Study (ongoing)

California City Water and Wastewater Capacity Fees (ongoing)

Costa Mesa Sanitary District Wastewater Rate Study (2022)

Lake Arrowhead CSD Water and Wastewater Rate Study (2022)

Moulton Niguel Water District Water, Wastewater, Recycled Water Cost of Service Peer Review (2022)

Napa County (LBRID/NBRID) Water and Wastewater Rate Studies (2020); Post-Fire Review (2021)

Mid-Peninsula Water District Capacity Fee Study (2021)

Lost Hills Utility District Wastewater Rate Study (2021)

West Valley Water District Development Impact Fee Study (2021)

Rosamond CSD Water and Wastewater Rate Study (2021)

City of Loyalton Wastewater Rate Study (2021)

CSD - Community Services District

RDN BY THE NUMBERS
 $4M Annual Revenue/24 Employees
 700+ Projects Accomplished Worldwide
 100+ Years of Project Team Experience
 48 States Served
 38 Years Consulting for Utility Systems

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 95 of 170



2 | P a g e

TEAM QUALIFICATIONS

RDN’s proposed project team is led by our principal economist, Dr. Robert Niehaus, and project manager, Anthony
Elowsky. Mr. Elowsky will serve as the District’s main point of contact and lead the conduct of data collection,
analysis, rate-setting, and report drafting. Brief bios and responsibilities for all team members are provided on the
following pages and full resumes for key staff are appended to this proposal. We affirm that our proposed project
team has adequate availability to meet project objectives as outlined in the proposed schedule and that our
proposed project team will not change without prior approval from the District.

Figure 1. Team RDN Project Organization, Key Personnel

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 96 of 170



3 | P a g e

KEY PERSONNEL

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 97 of 170



4 | P a g e

REFERENCES

With over 90 percent of our work resulting from repeat business, RDN prides itself on continuing relationships
that we have developed over three decades of consulting. We invite you to contact our references to verify our
quality of service on similar engagements. A sample of our past and current projects are highlighted below.

Costa Mesa Sanitation District
Sewer Rate Study (September 2021 – February 2022)
RDN staff: Niehaus, Elowsky, Kido, Kallerud, VanDinther

The Costa Mesa Sanitation District retained RDN to perform a Sewer
Rate Study. The District operates a wastewater collection system,
sending wastewater to the neighboring Orange County Sanitary
District for treatment. RDN prepared a cost of service analysis that
emphasized flow components. RDN also evaluated the impact of accessory dwelling units (ADUs) on the District’s
sewer system. To recover the additional costs that ADUs pose to the sewer system, RDN established a dedicated
ADU wastewater rate, which complies with Proposition 218 and SB 13. RDN’s rate recommendations were
implemented by the District in February 2022.

City of Loyalton
Wastewater Rate Study (March 2021 – September 2021)
RDN staff: Niehaus, Elowsky, Kido, VanDinther
The City of Loyalton retained RDN through the California Rural Water
Associations (CRWA) to produce wastewater rates with the primary
goal of increasing equitability between the City’s customers and
ensuring long-term financial stability. We evaluated the current rate
structure and provided the City with updated system values and
demand projections. RDN performed extensive analyses to ensure that the City’s capital plan reflected a realistic
valuation of future CIP needs. The updated rate design will allow the City to increase their reserve balances to
account for any unforeseen emergencies. RDN designed and mailed Proposition 218 Notices and the Proposition
218 process was completed with zero protests. New rates were implemented in September 2021.

Scott Carroll
General Manager
949-645-8400 ext. 223
scarroll@cmsdca.gov
290 Paularino Avenue
Costa Mesa, CA 92626

Kathy LeBlanc
City Clerk
530-993-6750
Ofclerk-cityofloyalton@psln.com
605 School St
Loyalton, CA 96118

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 98 of 170



5 | P a g e

Rosamond Community Services District
Water & Sewer Rate Study (November 2020 – June 2021)
RDN staff: Niehaus, Elowsky, Kido, Kallerud, VanDinther

Rosamond CSD retained RDN to produce water and sewer rates with
the primary goal to improve equity between customer classes. RDN
designed rates for commercial customers that reflect their unique
usage characteristics, which improved the equity for all District
customers. Additionally, we recommended residential water rate tier
adjustments based on efficient indoor and outdoor water use to comply with new California water efficiency
regulations: AB 1668 and SB 606. For sewer customers, RDN completed a detailed analysis on each individual
commercial customer’s flow and effluent strength before rates were presented to the Board and ratepayers. The
prosed rates were approved and were implemented in July 2021.

Brad Rockabrand
Finance Director
650-591-8941
brockabrand@rosamondcsd.com
3179 35th Street W
Rosamond, CA 93560

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 99 of 170



6 | P a g e

TECHNICAL APPROACH
PROJECT UNDERSTANDING

The Montecito Sanitary District is an independent special district formed in 1947 by the residents of Montecito.
The District provides wastewater collection, treatment, and disposal services for approximately 9,000 people
through 3,086 service connections. The District’s treatment plant has the capacity to treat 1.5 million gallons per
day using 77 miles of sewer pipelines and five pumping stations. The District's collection system is predominantly
vitrified clay pipe (VCP) with polyvinyl chloride pipe (PVC) in the areas where sewer service was extended after
1981. Within the District boundaries, there are approximately 300 additional parcels that are not currently
connected to the wastewater system. Available funding limits the goal of adding these parcels to the system.
District staff are issuing a separate RFP to develop a Septic‐to‐Sewer Strategic Plan (Plan) to develop a road map
to prioritize projects and conceptual designs to understand the cost and timeline to deliver any future sewer main
extensions. The Plan may be available to be incorporated into this Study.

The last comprehensive rate study conducted by the District was finalized in 2016 with a separate study conducted
solely on the District’s Connection Fee in 2017. The Board of Directors most recently adopted a rate increase on
October 9th, 2017 that became effective January 1st, 2018. The Wastewater Collection System currently lacks an
overall master plan or capacity model. However, a collection system and lift station condition assessment and
replacement plan will be conducted in parallel with this Study. The District has four types of revenues: sewer
service charges, connection fees, other services, and property tax. There are approximately $5.2 million in
operating expenses and an additional $5 million in capital expenses budgeted for the current fiscal year. According
to the District’s budget, the Capital Reserve Fund will decrease by around $4 million this year because of planned
capital expenses.

The purpose of the Study is to analyze, assess, and recommend District revenue requirements in order to best
address the annual Operations & Maintenance needs of the District as well as fund its long-term Capital
Improvement Plan for the Collection System and Wastewater Treatment Plant. In our understanding, the major
objectives of the Study include:

1. Evaluate the District’s current customer classes, rate structure, and connection fees.

2. Recommend rate structure revisions that are consistent with industry standards, best management
practices, and all applicable laws.

3. Develop a sewer cost of service and rate model for the District covering a six‐year study period for both
ongoing operations and planned capital improvements.

4. Project revenue requirements which include increasing wastewater treatment costs and maintaining debt
service coverage and cash levels.

5. If available, incorporate the results of the Septic-to-Sewer Strategic Plan and collection system and lift
station condition assessment and replacement plan.

6. Recommend appropriate reserve levels for operating and capital needs based on industry standards.

RDN follows industry best practices, standards, and principles of rate-setting. In coordination with District staff,
our approach employs an interactive decision-making process to address the District’s rate-setting goals. Our
proposed scope of work is detailed on the following pages for District consideration.

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 100 of 170



7 | P a g e

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY

RDN has prepared this proposal by tailoring our rate- and fee-setting approach to meet the District’s goals for this
study. Major tasks are summarized below.

Task 1. Project Management/Meetings: RDN is committed to providing transparent project management that
fosters collaboration and ensures study success. Our Project Management Plan will guide study administration,
and our quality assurance processes will ensure an error-free Study. At the kick-off meeting, we will solidify the
project timeline, priorities, and data received from our initial data request. Five public meetings will ensure
community input is received, and bi-weekly staff meetings will be held to discuss project progress.

Task 2. Six Year Financial Plan: RDN will meticulously review District data to develop a 6-year financial plan based
on revenue generated from current rates, fees, and other revenue sources, budgeted and projected expenses,
long-term capital expenses, potential debt service payments, and reserve contributions. To project revenue and
costs, we use an econometric, data-driven approach that provides the highest level of accuracy and reliability for
the District’s financial plan.

Task 3. Cost of Service Analysis: RDN will allocate costs among customer classes following methodologies
established in the Water Environment Federation (WEF) Manual of Practice No. 27: Financing and Charges for
Wastewater Systems (Manual 27). We will evaluate existing customer classes and recommend changes to cost
allocations, as necessary. The cost of service analysis will ensure that costs are equitably distributed to ratepayers
in compliance with Proposition 218 and that established rates adequately cover the costs to provide reliable
service.

Task 4. Rate Design: RDN will review and assess the appropriateness of the District’s current wastewater rate
structure. We will evaluate potential rate structure alternatives and provide a recommended rate structure that
promotes conservation, satisfies revenue requirements, and meets all regulatory requirements including
Proposition 218. We will compare the District’s current and proposed rates with the rates of other local agencies,
as well as wastewater system costs with appropriate benchmarks. We will assess the connection fee methods
used in the most recent fee study to confirm that the connection fee collects sufficient revenue to fund necessary
system expansion and recommend improvements, if necessary.

Task 5. Report and Model: We will design an Excel-based, 6-year financial planning model built to the District’s
specific needs. The model will include a management dashboard with graphical displays of the key economic and
financial metrics used for the study. RDN will train District staff on all aspects of the model. We will also prepare
draft and final executive reports for the Sewer Rate Study. Our reports will describe the process of the rate studies
in sufficient detail to meet all legal requirements including Proposition 218.

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 101 of 170



8 | P a g e

SCOPE OF SERVICES

Task 1. Project Management/Meetings

Project Management
RDN incorporates best practices from the Project Management Institute’s Project Management Body of
Knowledge to establish processes that guide management procedures. For a project to be considered a success,
all work must be completed on schedule, within budget, and error-free. Our project manager will prepare a Project
Management Plan (PMP) to document all information necessary to execute a successful project. The PMP serves
as a roadmap for the project team, defining project goals and objectives, scope of work, deliverables, budgets for
each task, schedule, administrative procedures, and filing requirements.Data Collection and Validation
RDN will send the District a data request. The data request will include audits, budgets, general plans, capital
improvement plans, customer billing records, debt service schedule, and reserve policies. For data validation and
quality assurance, RDN may request additional data throughout the study to reconcile any inconsistencies.Kick-Off Meeting/Progress Meetings
An in-person kick-off meeting will serve as a forum where District staff and the RDN team will meet to discuss
project objectives, approach, work plan, schedule, and priorities. Bi-weekly progress meetings with District staff
can be held via teleconference or in person. At the end of each month, RDN will provide a summary report charting
the current progress on each task, data needs, current issues that need to be resolved, project schedule update,
and status of action items from the previous report.Public Meetings
Throughout the Study, RDN will facilitate five in-person public meetings. During the Rate Study Analysis Phase
(Phase 1), we will build consensus for the study policy objectives and present the financial plan, demonstrating
District transparency. During the Final Report and Recommendation Phase (Phase 2), we will present rate and fee
recommendations, help the community understand the trade-offs that were made and why, and build consensus
for proposed rates and fees. In sum, we will present at three finance committee meetings, one strategic planning
committee meeting, and the Board of Directors meeting in March 2023.

Table 2. Task 1 – Project Management

Meetings  One Kickoff, Three Finance Committee, One Strategic Planning,
One Board of Directors, and bi-weekly Progress Meetings

RDN Deliverables
 Data request
 Meeting agendas and minutes
 Monthly progress reports and expenditures

District Deliverables  Respond to data request
 Attend meetings and provide input

Objective: RDN is committed to providing transparent project management that fosters collaboration and
ensures study success. Our Project Management Plan will guide study administration, and our quality assurance
processes will ensure an error-free Study. At the kick-off meeting, we will solidify the project timeline, priorities,
and data received from our initial data request. Five public meetings will ensure the community is involved, and
bi-weekly staff meetings will be held to discuss project progress.

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 102 of 170



9 | P a g e

Task 2. Six-Year Financial Plan

Growth/Revenue Analysis
RDN will conduct detailed growth projections to ensure the District’s revenue forecast is accurate. Based on the
growth projections, we will project revenue using the existing rates. We will also identify any changes to other
revenues such as miscellaneous charges, property taxes, and investment income.Operation and Maintenance Expenses
Using the District’s budgetary documents, we will project operating and maintenance (O&M) expenses and
develop reasonable inflationary factors for relevant itemized expenses using recent trends in Consumer Price
indices published by the Bureau of Labor Statistics and California Department of Finance, or the District’s historical
data. We will compare current wastewater system costs against appropriate industry benchmarks. We also
incorporate any known changes to personnel, level of service, or projected growth.Capital Improvement Funding
RDN will review the District’s capital projects plan and explore financing options based on the timing of proposed
revenue adjustments and scheduled repairs and replacements. Additionally, we will evaluate the District’s
collection system and lift station condition information to assess potential upcoming capital replacement needs.
We will explore funding options which include expanding service to the remaining parcels within District
boundaries. Funding sources may include cash reserves, grant funding, debt proceeds, or PAYGO (pay as you go),
each with different rate impacts. The District may also consider changes in capital expenditure timing to mitigate
short-term rate impacts and smooth revenue requirements.Reserve Funding
RDN will recommend how to best build ideal reserve targets. We will review the District’s reserve policies and
develop an implementation plan that maintains recommended balances for each fund that are consistent with
the District’s financial goals, risk tolerance, and capital improvement projects.Revenue Requirements
Total revenue requirements determined through the cash flow analysis will be offset by other sources of revenue
such as property taxes, investment earnings, rental income, and other water service charges. Proposed revenue
adjustments to meet the revenue requirements will also meet the required debt service coverage ratio. The
objective is to achieve a healthy cash flow mechanism for the next six years while keeping rates affordable.

Table 3. Task 2. 6-Year Financial Plan Deliverables

Meetings  Progress meetings

RDN Deliverables  Growth projection summary
 Draft financial planning model

District Deliverables  Financial information and input

Objective: RDN will meticulously review District data to develop a six-year financial plan based on revenue
generated from current rates, fees, and other revenue sources, budgeted and projected expenses, potential debt
service payments, and reserve contributions. To project revenue and costs, we use an econometric, data-driven
approach that provides the highest level of accuracy and reliability for the District’s financial plan.

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 103 of 170



10 | P a g e

Task 3. Cost of Service Analysis

Review Customer Classes
RDN will evaluate the District’s customer classifications and recommend any necessary changes. Assigning costs
accurately to classes of customers based on their service requirements is critical to designing Proposition 218-
compliant rates. We will explore alternative cost allocations to find which best aligns with the District’s goals.Cost Allocation to Cost Causative Components
RDN will use either the design-basis cost allocation or the functional cost allocation methodology codified in the
WEF Manual 27. In these methods, functionalized costs are allocated to appropriate cost causative components
for each customer class. The cost causative components include peaking components such as volume, and
capacity, strength factors such as total suspended solids (TSS), bio-oxygen demand (BOD), and non-peaking
components such as customer billing services.Unit Cost of Service
Based on the cost allocations determined in Task 3.2, RDN will calculate the total system units of service associated
with each cost component. This allows us to estimate the total system unit costs of service for each function.Cost Allocation to Customer Classes
As a final step of the cost of service analysis, the costs of each component are allocated back to each customer
class commensurate with their service requirements. This analysis permits the District to adhere to the general
principle of cost proportionality (particularly relevant under Proposition 218), under which the rates paid by
customer classes are directly proportional to the costs each class imposes on the District as a whole.

Table 4. Task 3. – Cost of Service Analysis Deliverables

Meetings  Progress meetings via teleconference

RDN Deliverables  Cost of service analysis in Excel

District Deliverables  Cost of service analysis feedback

Objective: RDN will perform a cost of service analysis and allocate costs to customers commensurate with their
service requirements. We will evaluate existing customer classes and recommend necessary changes. The cost
of service analysis will ensure that proposed rates are in compliance with Proposition 218 and that established
rates adequately recover the costs to provide safe and reliable service to the District’s customers. We will employ
methodologies approved by the WEF Manual 27 to ensure the analysis meets industry standards.

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 104 of 170



11 | P a g e

Task 4. Rate Design

Evaluate the Current Rate Structures & Identify Rate Alternatives
We will perform a comprehensive review of the District’s current rate structures to assess the advantages and
disadvantages of the existing rates. The District currently bills customers based on an Equivalent Residential Unit
(ERU) basis. Under this system, each customer class’s relative contribution to sewer flows and strengths are
evaluated compared to a baseline single-family residential account. Commercial customers are billed a variable
portion based on the previous year’s water use. Multi-family or condominium units are billed at a rate of 0.47 of
single-family residences. Based on the financial plan and cost of service analyses, we will evaluate rate adjustment
alternatives designed to recover the revenue requirements identified in the financial plan. We will also assess the
relative ERU differences between SFR, MFR and ADU type residential customers to ensure that the assumptions
used in the previous rate study still apply.Develop Recommended Rates
Based on the evaluation of the different rate structure alternatives, RDN will recommend the rate structure that
optimizes wastewater rates to meet the District’s goals. Rate recommendations will be based upon the updated
cost of service analysis, which may include adjustments to customer class designations. The recommended rates
will be easy to understand and administer and provide revenue adequacy. RDN’s final recommendation will fund
planned capital improvement projects, be supported by statistical/econometric analyses, data, plans, and
comparative examples, and be in full compliance with all legal requirements including Propositions 218. Any
review, evaluation, or conclusion regarding the legality of the rate structures will be performed in cooperation
with District staff, and if necessary, District legal counsel.Fees
As part of rate design process, RDN will also review the District’s current fee structure. Fees should be cost based
according to the provisions of Proposition 26. If any of the District’s current fees are not compliant with this cost
basis, we will provide recommendations to improve the overall cost allocation.Connection Fees
RDN will review the District’s connection fees in an Excel-based model that may include a “buy-in” to existing
assets as well as a fair share of “incremental” capital improvements needed to serve new development. If it is
determined that the current fees are misaligned, we will ensure that the recommended connection fees comply
with the Mitigation Fee Act (Government Code § 66000 – 66023, codified in AB 1600).Rate Comparison Survey
We will prepare a rate comparison survey of at least five comparable agencies to benchmark the District’s current
and proposed wastewater rates. We will request District input on agencies to include in the survey and summarize
the results for public outreach, presentations, and the report.

Objective: RDN will design wastewater rates that follow cost of service ratemaking principles as outlined in
the WEF Manual 27. We will review the District’s current rate structure and provide recommendations to
ensure revenue adequacy while maintaining rate affordability. Recommended rates will have a clear
connection between the costs and pricing to ensure compliance with all legal requirements.

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 105 of 170



12 | P a g e

Evaluate Impacts
RDN developed a bill impact tool to analyze individual customer bill impacts for each customer class based on
their most recent billing data. RDN uses this tool during the rate-design process to evaluate the impact of various
rate alternatives on District customers. This is a value-added step of our rate design process, as it allows the District
to optimize revenue stability while ensuring the proposed rates have the least impact on all customers.

Table 5. Task 4 – Rate Design Deliverables

Meetings  Progress meetings via teleconference

RDN Deliverables
 Recommended rate adjustments
 Rate model in Excel
 Rate comparison survey

District Deliverables  Policy goals and objectives for rates
 Rate feedback

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 106 of 170



13 | P a g e

Task 5. Report and Model

Rate Models
Our easy-to-use, Excel-based models are designed to allow District staff to conduct sensitivity scenarios by testing
various assumptions through an interactive dashboard. Factors that may be adjusted in the rate models include
staff levels and salaries, operating expense levels, CIP spending, capital equipment funding, impacts of rate
increases, and pass-through charges. The models will be introduced to District staff early in the study process. We
will add worksheets gradually as we perform key analyses through the study and ask for the District’s review. By
the time the study is complete, District staff will be fully familiarized with the models and be able to use the models
to make data-driven decisions. Any changes to the underlying models will appear instantly in a dashboard for
quick executive evaluation. A sample dashboard is presented on the next page.Rate Study Reports
The draft and final rate study reports will contain an overview, study objectives, assumptions, regulatory
requirements, and methodologies. The reports will discuss short- and long-term financial planning, capital
planning, cost of services, rate-setting analysis, bill impacts, and comparison surveys. Key outputs of data, analysis,
and rationale will be visualized in the reports. The visualizations provided in the reports will be an effective tool
to communicate conclusions to the District Board, customers, and other stakeholders.

We will incorporate District feedback into the final report and clearly demonstrate the nexus between costs and
recommended rates in simple terms to fulfill Proposition 218 reporting requirements.

Table 6. Task 5. – Report and Model Deliverables

Meetings  Progress meetings via teleconference

RDN Deliverables  Final Rate models in Excel
 Draft and final reports in Word and PDF formats

District Deliverables  Comments, responses, and recommendations to draft report

Objective: RDN will provide final executive reports and Microsoft Excel models for the rate study to District staff
upon project completion. District staff will be trained on the use of the model for future sensitivity analyses and
adjustments. The report will describe the process of the rate studies in sufficient detail to meet Proposition 218
and all other relevant legal requirements.

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 107 of 170



14 | P a g e

Figure 2. Sample Management Dashboard

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 108 of 170



15 | P a g e

PROJECT SCHEDULE
Figure 3 presents a preliminary schedule for completing the District’s study, targeting July 1, 2023 for rate
implementation. The schedule assumes timely kick-off, District data, feedback, and availability for meetings. The
final schedule will be discussed and agreed upon at the Kick-off Meeting.

Figure 3. Preliminary Project Schedule

Tasks

 Task 1. Project Management/Meetings

 Task 2. Six-Year Financial Plan

 Task 3. Cost of Service Analysis

 Task 4. Rate Design

 Task 5. Report & Model

         Kickoff Meeting
         Committee/Board Meetings
         Draft Report
         Final Report / Rate Model
         Proposition 218 Notice
         Rate Implementation

Jun-23Nov-22Sep-22 Oct-22 Dec-22 Jan-23 Feb-23 Mar-23 Apr-23 May-23

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 109 of 170



16 | P a g e

ALLOCATED STAFF HOURS
The table below presents RDN’s estimated staff hours per task outlined in the scope of services. A fee proposal
and standard labor rate schedule will be submitted in a separate document.

Table 7. RDN Proposed Staff Hours

Tasks Principal Project
Manager

Senior
Analyst

Associate
Analyst

Task 1. Project Management/Meetings 2 24 8 12 46

Task 2. 10-Year Financial Plan 2 18 4 24 48

Task 3. Cost of Service Analysis 2 18 4 12 36

Task 4. Rate Design 2 24 4 20 50

Task 5. Reports and Models 2 24 4 30 60
Total Hours 10 108 24 98 240

Robert D. Niehaus, Inc.
Total
Hours

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 110 of 170



17 | P a g e

This Page Intentionally Left Blank

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 111 of 170



18 | P a g e

CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS
NO CONFLICT OF INTEREST

RDN has no personal or organizational conflicts of interest.

INSURANCE REQUIREMENTS

RDN affirms our ability and intent to provide insurance per the District’s insurance requirements as described in
the District’s professional services agreement.

PROFESSIONAL SERVICES AGREEMENT

RDN has reviewed the RFP in its entirety, including the District’s standard professional services agreement, and
takes no exceptions to the agreement.

APPENDIX
The appendix of this proposal includes full RDN resumes.

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 112 of 170



Robert D. Niehaus, Ph.D.
Managing Director & Principal Economist

OVERVIEW & BIOGRAPHY

Dr. Niehaus is widely recognized for his expertise in the economics of water
resources and the environment. He has broad experience managing public and
private sector water and land resource economic analyses and planning efforts,
with expertise in water and wastewater fee and rate analysis, cost-benefit
evaluations, water demand econometric modeling and forecasting, and regional
economics. His expertise extends to river basin planning, groundwater
management, economic impacts of water and other resource-use projects,
military base realignment, housing, energy, and global climate change. He has
provided expert support to senior civilian and military decision-makers for
numerous projects. Dr. Niehaus has published a wide range of applied studies in
these fields and has directed the successful completion of projects at more than
200 locations worldwide, with much of this experience in Southern California.

RELEVANT PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS
Lake Arrowhead Community Services District, Water & Wastewater Rate
Study 2022

Lake Arrowhead Community Services District provides water and sewer service
for over 8,000 accounts in San Bernardino County, California. Lake Arrowhead
CSD retained RDN to complete a water and sewer rate study in 2021 for
$34,300 which included a long-term financial plan and a 5-year rate proposal
for four separate utilities. Dr. Niehaus, working for RDN, served as the
managing director for the rate study, which was completed in 2022.

California City, Water and & Sewer Impact Fee Study, Ongoing

The City of California City provides water and sewer service for over 4,500
accounts in Kern County, California. California City retained RDN to complete a
water and sewer rate and capacity fee study in 2021 for $85,080 which includes
a long-term financial plan and a 5-year rate proposal. Dr. Niehaus, working for
RDN, serves as a managing director and principal economist for all rate and
concerns. This project is ongoing.

West Valley Water District, Development Impact Fee Study 2021

West Valley Water District provides water service for over 22,000 accounts in
San Bernardino and Riverside Counties, California. West Valley WD retained
RDN to complete a water capacity fee study in 2020 for $29,492 which included
a detailed analysis of the District’s capacity fee schedule and growth
projections. Dr. Niehaus, working for RDN, served as the managing director for
the fee study, which was completed in 2021.

City of Greenfield, Water and Wastewater Rate Studies, Ongoing

The City of Greenfield provides sewer and water service for over 3,500
customers in Monterey County, California. Through the CRWA, the City of
Loyalton retained RDN to complete a water and sewer rate study for $13,058
which included a 5-year rate plan and long-term financial model. Dr. Niehaus,

TECHNICAL SPECIALTIES

 Project Management
 Regional and Resource

Economics
 Rate and Fee Comparison
 Economic Impact Studies
 Public Sector Water Economic

and Planning Analysis
 Technical Report Review
 Cost of Service Rate Studies
 Development Impact Fees
 Resource Planning
 Econometric Modeling
 Survey Design and

Implementation

PROFESSIONAL HISTORY

Robert D. Niehaus, Inc.
Managing Director
(1983-Present)

EDUCATION

Doctor of Philosophy in
Economics (1979)
University of Maryland

Bachelor of Arts in Government
(1972) Oberlin College

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS
 American Water Works

Association
 American Economic Association
 National Association for

Business Economics

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 113 of 170



working for RDN, served as the managing director for the rate study. The project is ongoing.

ADDITIONAL PROJECT EXPERIENCE

 City of Alhambra, Water Rate Study
 Costa Mesa Sanitary District, Wastewater Rate Study
 Rosamond Community Services District, Water and Wastewater Rate Studies
 Napa County, Water and Wastewater Rate Studies
 Mid-Peninsula Water District, Capacity Fee Study
 Quartz Hill Water District, Water Rate Study
 Palmdale Water District, Water Rate Study
 Santa Clarita Valley Water District, Water Rate Study
 California Rural Water Association, Water & Sewer Rate Studies
 Ventura River Water District, Cost of Service and Rate Setting Study
 Moulton Niguel Water District, Cost of Service Peer Review
 Carpinteria Valley Water, District Cost of Service and Rate Setting Study
 Manatt, Phelps, & Phillips, LLC, Rate Comparison Study
 National Resources Defense Council, LADWP Data Collection & Water Rate

Analysis
 West Basin Municipal Water District, Landscape Irrigation Efficiency Program
 Las Virgenes Water Budget Model
 Fremont Valley Preservation Project, Water Rate, and Revenue Analysis Study
 Golden State Water Company, Comparative Water Rate Analysis
 Goleta Sanitary District/Goleta West Sanitary District, Economic Analysis of

Development Projections
 Santa Barbara County, Economics of Groundwater Management
 City of Santa Barbara, Desalination Plant Environmental Impact Report
 United States Army Corps of Engineers, Flood Protection and Recreation Study
 City of Santa Barbara, Long-Term Water Sales and Revenue Requirements

Forecast Analysis
 Santa Ynez River Basin, Planning and Cachuma Project Water Allocation

Analyses

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 114 of 170



Anthony Elowsky, M.A.
Project Manager, Financial Analyst

OVERVIEW & BIOGRAPHY
Mr. Elowsky manages RDN’s utility financial planning projects, including water
and wastewater rate- and fee-setting studies. His expertise lies in water and
wastewater financial planning, cost of service analysis, rate and fee design, and
applied economic research. He manages water and wastewater rate studies,
capacity fee studies, and builds customized financial models to help utilities meet
their financial goals. He has also conducted comparative water rate analyses and
compiled and analyzed data on water rates and financial information for more
than 100 purveyors throughout California. He provides rate setting expertise to
professional organizations for both water and wastewater concerns. Mr. Elowsky
holds a bachelor’s degree from California State University, Los Angeles as well as
a master’s degree from California State University, Fullerton.

RELEVANT PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS
Mendocino City Community Services District, Wastewater and GWM Rate
Study 2022

Mendocino City Community Services District provides sewer and Groundwater
Management service for nearly 855 residents and 2,500 daily visitors in
Mendocino County, California. Through the CRWA, Mendocino City CSD
retained RDN to complete a sewer and Groundwater Management rate study
for $11,500 which included a 5-year rate plan and long-term financial model.
Mr. Elowsky, working for RDN, served as the project manager and principal
contact for the rate study. Work was completed and a report was presented to
the District in 2022.

City of Loyalton, Wastewater Rate Study 2021

The City of Loyalton provides sewer and water service for over 500 customers
in Sierra County, California. Through the CRWA, the City of Loyalton retained
RDN to complete a sewer rate study and Proposition 218 support for $7,635
which included a 5-year rate plan and long-term financial model as well as
mailing notices and attending a rate hearing. Mr. Elowsky, working for RDN,
served as the project manager and principal contact for the rate study. Work
was completed and rates were approved in 2021.

Hilton Creek Community Services District, Wastewater Rate and Connection
Fee Study 2022

Hilton Creek Community Services District provides sewer service for over 500
connections in Mono County, California. Hilton Creek CSD retained RDN to
complete a sewer rate and fee study for $29,840 which includes a 5-year rate
plan, long-term financial model, and a capacity fee analysis. Mr. Elowsky,
working for RDN, serves as the project manager and principal contact for the
rate and fee study. This project is currently ongoing.

Lake County Sanitation District, Wastewater Rate Study 2021

Lake County Sanitation District provides sewer service for over 470 equivalent
units in Lake County, California. Through the CRWA, Lake County retained RDN

TECHNICAL SPECIALTIES
 Financial Planning
 Cost of Service Analysis
 Rate Design
 Database Management
 Rate Comparison
 Data Analysis
 Technical Report Review

PROFESSIONAL HISTORY
Robert D. Niehaus, Inc.
Project Manager/Analyst (2018-
Present)
Market Researcher (2017-2018)

Dudek Environmental, Inc.
Field Technician (2016-2017)

EDUCATION
Master of Arts in Anthropology
(2020) CSU, Fullerton

Bachelor of Arts in Anthropology
(2014) CSU, Los Angeles

PROFESSIONAL PRESENTATIONS
 Wastewater Rate Changes and

the Journey to Acceptance
California Rural Water
Association Expo 2022,
Stateline, NV. March.

 Incorporating Customer Use
Distributions when Calculating
Drought Surcharges. Paper
presented at the ACWA Virtual
Fall Conference, October 27-
29, 2020.

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 115 of 170



to complete a sewer rate study for $9,605 which included a 5-year rate plan and long-term financial model. Mr.
Elowsky, working for RDN, served as the project manager and principal contact for the rate study. Work was
completed and a report was presented to the District in 2021. The Proposition 218 hearing will occur in 2022.

ADDITIONAL PROJECT EXPERIENCE
City of Alhambra, Water Rate Study
Rosamond Community Services District, Water and Wastewater Rate Study
Napa County – LBRID/NBRID, Water and Wastewater Rate Studies
West Valley Water District, Development Impact Fee Study
Mid-Peninsula Water District, Capacity Fee Study
California City, Water and Wastewater Capacity Fee Studies
Manatt, Phelps, and Phillips, LLC, Water Rate Comparison Study
Palmdale Water District, Water Rate Study
Santa Clarita Valley Water, Water Rate Review
Apple Valley Heights County Water District, Water Rate Study
Daggett Community Services District, Water Rate Study
Mariana Ranchos County, Water Rate Study
Apple Valley View Mutual Water Company, Water Rate Study
Sheep Creek Water Company, Water Rate Study
Thunderbird County Water District, Water Rate Study
Juniper Riviera Community Water District, Water Rate Study
West Valley County Water District, Water Rate Study
Orosi Public Utility District, Water and Wastewater Rate Study

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 116 of 170



Ichiko Kido, M.B.A.
Senior Technical Advisor

OVERVIEW & BIOGRAPHY
Ms. Kido has 30 years of experience in utility financial planning. Ms. Kido advises
RDN as a leading expert in developing rates and fees that meet Proposition 218
requirements and other laws and regulations. She is widely recognized as a
leading consultant for designing conservation-based water rates, including
budget-based rate designs. She also managed capacity fee charges throughout
the state, ensuring the fees are compliant despite the dynamic regulatory
landscape.  Her expertise is founded upon her experience working with more
than 200 water utilities throughout California. Ms. Kido is a member of the
American Water Works Association (AWWA) and promotes best practices in the
AWWA’s Manual M1 Principles of Water Rates, Fees and Charges and the WEF
Manual of Practice Number 27.

RELEVANT PROJECT HIGHLIGHTS
Costa Mesa Sanitary District, Wastewater Rate Study 2022

Costa Mesa Sanitary District provides sewer service for nearly 27,000
connections in Orange County, California. Costa Mesa SD retained RDN to
complete a sewer collection rate study for $29,500 which included a 5-year rate
plan and long-term financial model. Ms. Kido, working for RDN, served as the
project manager and principal contact for the rate study. Work was completed
and the rates designed by RDN were approved in 2022.

Moulton Niguel Water District, Cost of Service and Financial Plan Peer Review
2017 and 2022

Moulton Niguel Water District provides water and sewer service for nearly
170,000 people in Orange County, California. Moulton Niguel WD retained RDN
to complete a peer review for all of their internal rate and fee studies in 2021
for $57,890 which included a review of the District’s proposed rates for the
next 5 years. Ms. Kido, working for RDN, served as the project manager and
principal contact for the rate review, which was completed in 2022. Ms. Kido
currently serves as a senior consultant for the capacity fee review, currently
ongoing.

Rosamond Community Services District, Water and Wastewater Rate Study
2021

Rosamond Community Services District provides water and sewer service for
over 5,000 accounts in Kern County, California. Rosamond CSD retained RDN to
complete a Water and sewer rate study in 2020 for $89,060 which included a
long-term financial plan and a 5-year rate proposal. Ms. Kido, working for RDN,
served as the project manager and principal contact for the rate study, which
was completed in 2021.

California City, Water, Recycled Water, and Sanitary Sewer Rate Studies,
Ongoing

The City of California City provides water and sewer service for over 4,500
accounts in Kern County, California. California City retained RDN to complete a

TECHNICAL SPECIALTIES
 Financial Planning
 Cost of Service Analysis
 Rate Design
 Rate Comparison Analysis
 Housing Market Analysis
 Data Analysis
 Technical Report Review
 Survey Interviewing
 Statistical Analysis

PROFESSIONAL HISTORY
Robert D. Niehaus, Inc.
Senior Technical Advisor
(2022 – Present)
Program Manager
(2005 – 2022)

EDUCATION
Master of Business
Administration (2014) Martin V.
Smith School of Business &
Economic, California State
University, Channel Islands

Bachelor of Arts in Law (1989)
Fukuoka University, Japan

PROFESSIONAL MEMBERSHIPS
 American Water Works

Association
 Association of California Water

Agencies
 California Rural Water

Association
 Association of California Water

Agencies

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 117 of 170



water and sewer rate and capacity fee study in 2021 for $85,080 which includes a long-term financial plan and a
5-year rate proposal. Ms. Kido, consulting for RDN, serves as a senior technical advisor for all rate and concerns.
This project is ongoing.

ADDITIONAL PROJECT EXPERIENCE
 City of Alhambra, Water Rate Study
 Moulton Niguel Water District, Capacity Fee Peer Review Study
 Quartz Hill Water District, Water Rate Study
 California City, Water and Wastewater Capacity Fees
 Lake Arrowhead Community Services District, Water and Wastewater Study
 City of Loyalton, Wastewater Rate Study
 Hilton Creek Community Services District, Wastewater Rate and Connection Fee Study
 West Valley Water District, Development Impact Fee Study
 Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, Water Rate Calculator Online Tool
 Mid-Peninsula Water District, Capacity Fee Study
 Santa Clarita Valley Water Agency, Rate Payer Advocate
 City of Greenfield, Water and Wastewater Rate Studies
 Lake County Sanitation District, Wastewater Rate Study
 San Simeon Community Services District, Wastewater Rate Study
 Manatt, Phelps, and Phillips, LLC, Water Rate Comparison Study
 Ventura River Water District, Water Rate Study
 Palmdale Water District, Water Rate Study
 California Rural Water Association, Water Rate Studies
 Moulton Niguel Water District, Cost of Service Analysis
 Carpinteria Valley Water District, Cost of Service Analysis
 Daggett Community Services District, Water Rate Study
 Mariana Ranchos County, Water Rate Study
 Rand Community Water District, Water Rate Study
 Sheep Creek Water Company, Water Rate Study
 Lost Hills Utility District, Wastewater Rate Study
 West Valley County Water District, Water Rate Study
 Thunderbird County Water District, Water Rate Study
 Orosi Public Utility District, Water and Wastewater Rate Study

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 118 of 170



MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 119 of 170



MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 120 of 170



Montecito  
Sanitary District 

Sewer Rate Study 

PROPOSAL / AUGUST 15, 2022 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 121 of 170



 

 MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 122 of 170



 

 

Table of 
Contents 

01 
Cover Letter 

 

03 
Experience and Qualifications 

 

27 
Project Understanding  

 

36 
Schedule 

 

37 
Contract Requirements 

  

Photo on cover courtesy of Damian Gadal (Flickr) 

Raftelis is registered with 
the U.S. Securities and 
Exchange Commission 
(SEC) and the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking 
Board (MSRB) as a 
Municipal Advisor. 

Registration as a Municipal Advisor is a 

requirement under the Dodd-Frank Wall 

Street Reform and Consumer Protection Act. 

All firms that provide financial forecasts that 

include assumptions about the size, timing, 

and terms for possible future debt issues, as 

well as debt issuance support services for 

specific proposed bond issues, including 

bond feasibility studies and coverage 

forecasts, must be registered with the SEC 

and MSRB to legally provide financial 

opinions and advice. Raftelis’ registration as 

a Municipal Advisor means our clients can be 

confident that Raftelis is fully qualified and 

capable of providing financial advice related 

to all aspects of financial planning in 

compliance with the applicable regulations of 

the SEC and the MSRB. 

 

Diversity and inclusion 
are an integral part of 
Raftelis’ core values. 

We are committed to doing our part to fight 

prejudice, racism, and discrimination by 

becoming more informed, disengaging with 

business partners that do not share this 

commitment, and encouraging our employees 

to use their skills to work toward a more just 

society that has no barriers to opportunity. 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 123 of 170



 

 

This page was intentionally left blank to facilitate two-sided printing 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 124 of 170



 RAFTELIS 1 

 

1 North Calle Cesar Chavez, Suite 102, Santa Barbara, CA 93103 
 

www.raftelis.com 

August 15, 2022 

 

Mr. Bradley Rahrer, P.E. 

General Manager 

Montecito Sanitary District 

1042 Monte Cristo Lane 

Santa Barbara, CA 93108 

 

Subject: Proposal for Sewer Rate Study 

 

Dear Mr. Rahrer: 

 

Raftelis is excited to submit this proposal for a sewer rate study to the Montecito Sanitary District (District). Our firm was 

established in 1993 to provide financial consulting services of the highest quality to sewer and water utilities. We have 

grown to be the largest rate consulting practice in the country and have served clients across the United States. With 

offices in Los Angeles, Santa Barbara, and Riverside County we have completed rate studies for special districts and 

municipal utility agencies across the State of California.  

 

Project Team: Our proposed project team includes: 

 

• Sudhir Pardiwala, PE, Project Director. Sudhir is an Executive Vice President with Raftelis and a registered 

Professional Engineer in the State of California. He has 45 years of industry experience and has conducted sewer 

rates studies for sanitary districts through Southern California. 

 

• John Wright, CPA, Project Manager. I am a Senior Manager with Raftelis who leads our Murrieta/Temecula 

office in Riverside County. I am a Certified Public Accountant in the State of Colorado and registered with the 

Securities and Exchange Commission as a Municipal Advisor Representative. I am currently serving as the 

Project Manager for sewer and water rate studies with the Long Beach Water Department and have recently 

completed rate studies for the San Bernardino Municipal Water District and the City of San Diego. 

• Kevin Kostiuk, Assistant Project Manager. Kevin is a Manager with Raftelis who leads our Santa Barbara 

office. Kevin has a Master of Environmental Management from Duke University. He has served as a Project 

Manager or Lead Consultant on numerous California sewer and water rate studies. 

 

• Jim Armstrong, Special Advisor. Jim is a Principal Consultant with Raftelis and based in Santa Barbara. He is 

currently leading the Special District Collaboration and Consolidation Study for the District and the Montecito 

Water District. 

 

Why Raftelis? Raftelis can successfully serve the District for the following key reasons: 

 

• District Knowledge. Our work on the Special District Collaboration and Consolidation Study has allowed us to 

gain an understanding of the District’s service territory, organizational structure, and finances. 

 

• Proposition 218 Expertise. Raftelis has successfully completed hundreds of rate studies for California sewer and 

water utilities. We understand the complexities of Proposition 218 compliance.  

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 125 of 170



 RAFTELIS 2 

 

1 North Calle Cesar Chavez, Suite 102, Santa Barbara, CA 93103 
 

www.raftelis.com 

• California-Based Staff. Each member of our proposed project team is based in California on a full or part-time 

basis. Two of our proposed project team members are located in Santa Barbara. 

 

• Sewer Utility Cost-of-Service Expertise. Both myself and our Project Director, Sudhir Pardiwala, are active 

members of the Water Environment Federation (WEF) and contributing authors to the WEF publication, 

Financing and Charges for Wastewater Systems, 2nd Edition. 

 

I am the contact person for this proposal and am authorized to bind and negotiate for the firm in contracts up to 

$200,000. My contact information and our firm’s information shown below. This proposal is valid for 120 days from the 

date of submittal. Should you have any questions please contact me. 

 

Sincerely, 

 

 

 

John Wright, CPA 

Senior Manager (Authorized Representative) 

24640 Jefferson Avenue, Suite 207 

Murrieta, CA 92562 

Office: 951-395-1674 

Mobile: 303-909-5575 

Email: jwright@raftelis.com 

 

 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 126 of 170



 RAFTELIS 3 

 

 

WHO IS  

Raftelis 
HELPING LOCAL GOVERNMENTS AND UTILITIES THRIVE 

Local government and utility leaders partner with Raftelis to transform their organizations by 

enhancing performance, planning for the future, identifying top talent, improving their financial 

condition, and telling their story. We’ve helped more than 600 organizations in the last year alone. We 

provide trusted advice, and our experts include former municipal and utility leaders with decades of 

hands-on experience running successful organizations. People who lead local governments and 

utilities are innovators—constantly seeking ways to provide better service to the communities that rely 

on them. Raftelis provides management consulting expertise and insights that help bring about the 

change that our clients seek. 

 

 

 

 

Firm Information 

Firm History: Raftelis is a subchapter S-Corporation incorporated in the state of North Carolina on April 23, 2004. 

The predecessor to Raftelis, Raftelis Environmental Consulting Group, Inc., was established on May 10, 1993 by 

George A. Raftelis to provide financial and management consulting services of the highest quality to public-sector 

clients. In 1999, the firm’s name was changed to Raftelis Financial Consulting, PA. Following the sale of a portion of 

the firm to a group of employees on April 22, 2004, the firm’s name changed to Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc., 

which remains the firm’s legal name. We currently do business as Raftelis. 

Firm Name: Raftelis Financial Consultants, Inc. (DBA Raftelis) 

Year Firm Was Established Under Current Name: Founded in 1993, name change in 2004 

Closest Office Location: 1 North Calle Cesar Chavez, Suite 102, Santa Barbara, CA 93103 

Previous Firm Names During the Last Five Years: Raftelis was founded in 1993; however, the firm's name was 

changed to its current name in 2004. 

 

 

+ VISIT  RAFTELIS.COM TO LEARN MORE 

  

EXPERIENCE AND QUALIFICATIONS 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 127 of 170



 RAFTELIS 4 

 

We believe that Raftelis is the right fit for this project. We 
provide several key factors that will benefit the District 
and help to make this project a success. 

 

RESOURCES & EXPERTISE - Specialized and highly experienced utility rate consultants that all 

stakeholders can have confidence in. With more than 130 consultants, Raftelis has the largest water-

industry financial and management consulting practice in the nation. Our depth of resources will allow us to 

provide the District with the technical expertise necessary to meet your objectives. In addition to having 

many of the industry’s leading rate consultants, we also have experts in key related areas, like stakeholder 

engagement and data analytics, to provide additional insights as needed. 

 

DEFENSIBLE RECOMMENDATIONS - Industry knowledge to ensure methodologies reflect best 

practices. Our senior staff is involved in shaping industry standards by chairing various committees within 

the American Water Works Association (AWWA) and the Water Environment Federation (WEF). Raftelis’ 

staff members have also co-authored many industry-standard books regarding utility finance and rate setting. 

Being so actively involved in the industry will allow us to keep the District informed of emerging trends and 

issues and to be confident that our recommendations are insightful and founded on sound industry 

principles. In addition, with Raftelis’ registration as a Municipal Advisor, you can be confident that we are 

fully qualified and capable of providing financial advice related to all aspects of utility financial planning in 

compliance with federal regulations. 

 

HISTORY OF SIMILAR SUCCESSES - A long history of project experience to ensure successful 

execution. Raftelis staff has assisted 1,000+ utilities throughout the U.S. with financial and rate consulting 

services with wide-ranging needs and objectives. Our extensive experience will allow us to provide 

innovative and insightful recommendations to the District and will provide validation for our proposed 

methodology ensuring that industry best practices are incorporated. 

 

USER-FRIENDLY MODELING - Powerful and easy-to-use tools for ongoing financial management 

success. Raftelis has developed some of the most sophisticated yet user-friendly financial/rate models 

available in the industry. Our models are tools that allow us to examine different policy options and cost 

allocations and their financial/customer impacts in real time. Our models are non-proprietary and are 

developed with the expectation that they will be used by the client as a financial planning tool long after the 

project is complete. 

 

EXPERTS ON CALIFORNIA REGULATORY REQUIREMENTS - This expertise will allow the 

District to be confident that our recommendations take into account all of these regulatory requirements. 

The regulatory environment in California has become more stringent due to Proposition 218. Besides 

developing well-thought-out financial plans, Raftelis staff members are very knowledgeable about these 

regulations and have made presentations on this subject at various industry conferences. In addition, we are 

frequently called on to be expert witnesses regarding these regulatory matters. 

  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 128 of 170



 RAFTELIS 5 

 

 
  29 

years 
serving the 
public sector 

OUR TEAM INCLUDES 

130+ 
consultants focused on 
finance/management/communication/ 
technology for the public sector 

5 
members of 

AWWA and WEF utility finance and  
management committees and subcommittees 

chairs 

& 20 

& a Past President of AWWA 

RAFTELIS HAS PROVIDED ASSISTANCE FOR 

1,200+ public agencies 

and utilities 

25% of the 

U.S. population 
 

that serve more than 

38 of the nation’s 

50 largest cities 

including the agencies serving 

1,000+ projects 
for 

in the past year alone, we worked on 

600+ agencies 
in 46 

states 

How we stack up 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 129 of 170



 RAFTELIS 6 

 

 

 

Project Team 
WE HAVE DEVELOPED A TEAM OF CONSULTANTS WHO SPECIALIZE 

IN THE SPECIFIC ELEMENTS THAT WILL BE CRITICAL TO THE 

SUCCESS OF THE DISTRICT’S PROJECT. 

Our team includes senior-level professionals to provide experienced project leadership with support from talented 

consultant staff. This close-knit group has frequently collaborated on similar successful projects, providing the District 

with confidence in our capabilities. 

 

Here, we have included an organizational chart showing the structure of our project team. On the following pages, we 

have included resumes for each of our team members as well as a description of their role on the project. 

 

Staff Consultants from our Los Angeles office will assist the project team shown below. Our Staff Consultants are highly 

experienced at the development of financial planning, cost-of-service, and rate design models and analyses. 

 

 

  MONTECITO 

SANITARY DISTRICT 

SPECIAL ADVISOR 

Jim Armstrong 

ASSISTANT PROJECT MANAGER 

Kevin Kostiuk 

PROJECT MANAGER 

John Wright, CPA 

PROJECT DIRECTOR 

Sudhir Pardiwala, PE 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 130 of 170



 RAFTELIS 7 

 

Sudhir Pardiwala PE 

PROJECT DIRECTOR 
Executive Vice President 
 

ROLE 

Sudhir will be responsible for overall project accountability and will be 

available to provide quality assurance and control, industry perspective, 

and insights into the project. 

 

PROFILE 

Sudhir has 45 years of experience in financial studies and engineering. He 

has extensive expertise in water and wastewater utility financial and 

revenue planning, valuation, and assessment engineering. He has 

conducted numerous water, wastewater, stormwater, and reclaimed water 

rate studies involving conservation, drought management, risk analysis, 

as well as system development fee studies, and has developed 

computerized models for these financial evaluations. Sudhir has assisted 

public agencies in reviewing and obtaining alternate sources of funding 

for capital improvements, including low-interest state and federal loans 

and grants. He has assisted several utilities with State Revolving Fund 

and Water Reclamation Bond loans. Sudhir authored the chapter on 

reclaimed water rates in the Manual of Practice No. 27, Financing and 

Charges for Wastewater Systems, published by the Water Environment 

Federation (WEF). He also authored a chapter entitled, “Recycled Water 

Rates,” for the Fourth Edition of the industry guidebook, Water and 

Wastewater Finance and Pricing: The Changing Landscape. Sudhir was vice-

chairman of the California-Nevada AWWA Business Management 

Division and Chairman of the Financial Management Committee. 

 

KEY PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District (CA) 

Reference: Chas Fadrigo, Finance Supervisor 

P: 707.651.7127 / E: cfadrigo@vallejowastewaer.org / F:707.644.8975 

Size: 118,000 population 

Cost: $34,010 

Year Work Was Completed: 2018 

Individual’s Role in the Project: Project Director 

Individual’s Employer for Project: Raftelis 

 

Raftelis assisted the Vallejo Flood and Wastewater District (District) with 

a comprehensive wastewater rate and connection fee study (Study). The 

District an independent special district that collects, treats, and disposes 

of wastewater for 38,000 accounts in the City of Vallejo with a service 

area that covers 36 square miles and includes one wastewater treatment 

plant and 36 wastewater pump stations. The existing sewer rate structure 

comprised of flat rates for all residential customers, including single and 

multi-family residences. For commercial customers, rates were based on 

Years of Experience 

• 45 Years 

Number of Years at Raftelis 

• 9 Years 

Specialties 

• Cost-of-service rate studies 

• Conservation & drought management studies 

• Economic analyses 

• Water & wastewater utility cost accounting 

• Valuation 

• Financial & revenue planning 

• Assessment engineering 

• Reviewing/obtaining capital improvement 

funding 

• Computer modeling 

Professional History 

• Raftelis: Executive Vice President (2013-

present); Vice President (2004-2013) 

• Black & Veatch: Principal Consultant  

• (1997-2004) 

• MWH: Principal Engineer (1985-1997) 

• CF Braun: Senior Engineer (1979-1985) 

• PFR Engineering Systems: Research 

Engineer (1977-1979) 

Education 

• Master of Business Administration - 

University of California, Los Angeles (1982) 

• Master of Science in Chemical Engineering - 

Arizona State University (1976) 

• Bachelor of Science in Chemical Engineering 

- Indian Institute of Technology, Bombay 

(1974) 

Certifications 

• Series 50 Municipal Advisor Representative 

Professional Registrations 

• Registered Professional Engineer, California: 

Civil (1988); Chemical (1981)  

Professional Memberships 

• AWWA 

• WEF 

• California Municipal Finance Officers 

Association 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 131 of 170



 RAFTELIS 8 

 

both flow and sewage strength. The District was moving over to a service charge to be levied on the property tax roll. 

Raftelis was called in to assist with this study after another consultant’s study was found to be unacceptable to the 

District. As part of the study, Raftelis thoroughly examined the District’s revenue streams, cost structure, analyzed 

customer data, and developed an equitable rate structure that met both Proposition 218 requirements and the District’s 

goals and objectives. An important part of the study was the evaluation of the commercial customer classifications to 

ensure that customers were accurately categorized by strength and assessed the appropriate rates. Raftelis also created a 

user-friendly model so that various scenarios could be evaluated on the fly. Additionally, Raftelis also reviewed and 

updated the District’s connection fees. Upon completion of the rates calculation, Raftelis assisted the District in a 

comprehensive public outreach campaign to obtain customers buy-in, which was crucial in the successful implementation 

of the proposed rates for fiscal year 2019.  

 

Olivenhain Municipal Water District (CA) 

Reference: Rainy Selamat, Finance Manager 

1966 Olivenhain Road, Encinitas, CA 92024  

P: 760.632.4218 / E: rselamat@olivenhain.com 

Size: 287,000 population 

Cost: $34,838 

Year Work Was Completed: 2019 

Individual’s Role in the Project: Project Director 

Individual’s Employer for Project: Raftelis 

 

Sudhir assisted the Olivenhain Municipal Water District (District) in conducting a water financial plan study and a 

recycled water rate study to determine the recycled water rates charged to customers. The water financial planning model 

was developed to assist the District in evaluating different financing alternatives to minimize rate impacts and ensure 

financial stability. The water model was effectively used in Board meetings and presentations to evaluate the impacts of 

various scenarios. Additionally, Raftelis calculated drought/conservation rates for different stages of cutbacks. The 

recycled water rate study was conducted to determine the recycled water rates charged to customers given that the 

District obtains recycled water from four different sources: the City of San Diego, Vallecitos Water District, Rancho 

Santa Fe Community Services District, and the 4S Regional Recycled Water System. The existing agreements defined the 

costs of different sources of recycled water to the District. To address all of those issues and concerns, Raftelis developed 

a recycled water financial and rate model to determine the costs of providing service and the required revenue to be 

collected from customers. In addition, the model is built to evaluate when the District is able to take over the 4S Regional 

Recycled Water System, as stated in the agreement with the developer. 

 

Goleta West Sanitary District (CA) 

Reference: Francis Chan, Administrative Manager/CFO 

43885 S. Grimmer Boulevard, Fremont, CA 94538 

P: 805.879.4615 / E: fchan@goletawater.com 

Size: 80,000 population 

Cost: $37,206 

Year Work Was Completed: 2019 

Individual’s Role in the Project: Project Director 

Individual’s Employer for Project: Raftelis 

 

Sudhir has been Goleta West Sanitary District’s (District) financial consultant for over more than 15 years. During that 

time he has assisted the District with financial planning, development and financing their replacement and refurbishment 

program, developing a rate structure, annexation fees, connection fees, miscellaneous fees, reserves policy development, 

and other financial issues. The District charges customers on the tax roll. Raftelis developed the data to be included on 

the tax roll and the District now manages it. 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 132 of 170



 RAFTELIS 9 

 

 

 

 

 

Carpinteria Sanitary District (CA) 

Reference: Craig Murray, General Manager 

5300 Sixth Street, Carpinteria, CA 93013 

P: 805.684.7214 ext 12 / E: craigm@carpsan.com 

Size: 15,000 population 

Cost: $32,676 

Year Work Was Completed: 2022 

Individual’s Role in the Project: Project Director 

Individual’s Employer for Project: Raftelis 

 

Raftelis recently assisted Carpinteria Sanitary District (District) in conducting a comprehensive wastewater rate and 

development impact fees study in order to ensure financial sufficiency for the District. The District’s wastewater rate 

structure included a fixed annual charge for residential customers. Non-residential customers were assessed a base charge 

plus flow and strength charges based on their classifications. The rates had not been updated since 2004. One of the main 

goals of the study was to restructure the wastewater rates to be simpler and more equitable. Raftelis reviewed the 

District’s customer classification, revenue requirements, and cost allocation methodology, and recommended appropriate 

alternative wastewater rate structures that would meet the District’s goals and objectives. Return factors for non-

residential customers were revised to more closely reflect wastewater discharges. Equity issues among different customer 

classes were analyzed to ensure compliance with Proposition 218. Raftelis also updated the District’s development impact 

fees and miscellaneous fees to reflect current costs. The District uses the tax roll to bill customers. 

 

PROJECT LIST 

• City of Anaheim (CA) - Water rate study 

• City of Atwater (CA) - Water and wastewater rate study 

• City of Banning (CA) - Recycled water revenue program 

• Beaumont Cherry Valley Water District (CA) - Water rate and connection fee study 

• Carpinteria Sanitary District - Wastewater rate study 

• Casitas Municipal Water District - Water rate study 

• Castroville Water District (CA) - Water and wastewater rate study 

• City of Beverly Hills (CA) - Asset replacement study, connection fee study, conservation rate study, valuation 

and development of replacement program and asset inventory, and water rate study and update 

• City of Brea (CA) - Water rate study, connection fees and related fees and charges study 

• City of Brentwood (CA) - Water and wastewater rate study 

• City of Buenaventura (CA) - Water and wastewater rate study 

• City of Burbank (CA) - Bond feasibility study, reclaimed water study, and water and wastewater rate study 

• City of Carlsbad (CA) - Asset replacement study and water, wastewater and reclaimed water revenue program 

• City of Chino (CA) - Valuation study and water rate study 

• City of Chowchilla (CA) - Water and wastewater rates study 

• Clark County Water Reclamation District (NV) - Cost-of-service study 

• City of Cloverdale (CA) - Water and wastewater connection fees and rate study 

• City of Corona (CA) - Water and wastewater rate study 

• El Toro Water District (CA) - Water budget and wastewater rate studies and connection fees 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 133 of 170



 RAFTELIS 10 

 

• City of Encinitas (CA) - Water and wastewater rate study 

• City of Escondido (CA) - Valuation study, water and wastewater rate study 

• City of Glendora (CA) - Water and wastewater financial planning and rate study  

• Goleta Water District (CA) - Water and wastewater rates and connection fees studies, asset management, and 

financing plan 

• City of Henderson (NV) - Water and wastewater rate study 

• La Canada Irrigation District - Water rate study 

• La Crescenta Water District - Water and wastewater rate study 

• City of Livingston (CA) - Water, wastewater and solid waste rates study and litigation support 

• City of Los Angeles (CA) - Wheeling charge review 

• Los Angeles Department of Water and Power (CA) - Water rate study and wheeling charge review 

• City of Madera (CA) - Water and wastewater rate study 

• Mammoth Community Water District (CA) - Water and wastewater rate study 

• Metropolitan Wastewater Joint Powers Authority (CA) - Wastewater valuation study and capacity valuation 

study 

• Napa Valley Sanitation District (CA) - State revolving fund loan assistance 

• City of North Las Vegas (NV) - Water and wastewater rates study and model 

• Ojai Valley Sanitary District - Wastewater rate study 

• Olivenhain Municipal Water District (CA) - Water and wastewater financial planning studies and recycled water 

rate study 

• City of Ontario (CA) - Water, wastewater and solid waste rate study 

• Palmdale Water District (CA) - Water budget rate study 

• City of Palo Alto (CA) - Water rate study 

• Portland Water Bureau (OR) - Retail and wholesale water rates model  

• City of Poway (CA) - Wastewater rate structure analysis 

• Ramona Municipal Water District (CA) - Water rate study 

• Rainbow Municipal Water District (CA) - Water, wastewater rate and capacity fee studies 

• City of Redlands (CA) - Impact fee study, non-potable water fee study, rocky mwc, valuation and lease study, bi-

annual rate updates, reclaimed water funding, and water and wastewater rate study 

• City of Rialto (CA) - SRF funding and water and wastewater rate study 

• County of San Bernardino (CA) - Water and wastewater rate study and connection fees 

• City of San Diego (CA) - Recycled water rate study, valuation study, and water and wastewater financial plan, 

rate and connection fees study, litigation support 

• San Diego County Water Authority (CA) - Capacity valuation, rate analysis, valuation study, and wheeling 

charge study 

• City of San Fernando (CA) - Water and wastewater rates study  

• City of San Francisco (CA) - Water, wastewater rate study and stormwater incentives for low impact 

development  

• San Gorgonio Pass Water Agency (CA) - Financing plan 

• City of San Jose (CA) - Sewer service related fees and charges 

• City of San Luis Obispo (CA) - Stormwater financial feasibility study 

• City of Santa Barbara (CA) - Water and wastewater rate study 

• City of Santa Fe springs - Water rate study 

• Santa Fe Irrigation District (CA) - Wastewater treatment plant cost evaluation, water connection fees study, and 

water rate study and update 

• City of Santa Monica (CA) - Wastewater rate study 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 134 of 170



 RAFTELIS 11 

 

• City of Scottsdale (AZ) - Impact fee study 

• City of South Pasadena (CA) - Water and wastewater rate study 

• City of Springfield (OR) - Wastewater rates model 

• Sweetwater Authority (CA) - Water rate study 

• Tacoma Public Utilities (WA) - 2008 Business planning assistance and financial model 

• City of Upland (CA) - Valuation study 

• City of Vallejo (CA) - Water financial plan 

• Valley County Water District (CA) - Water rate study 

  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 135 of 170



 RAFTELIS 12 

 

John Wright CPA 

PROJECT MANAGER 
Senior Manager 
 

ROLE 

John will manage the day-to-day aspects of the project ensuring it is within 

budget, on schedule, and effectively meets the District’s objectives. He will also 

lead the consulting staff in conducting analyses and preparing deliverables for the 

project. John will serve as the District’s main point of contact for the project. 

 

PROFILE 

John has more than 25 years of utility industry financial management and 

economic analysis experience. He has provided consulting services to numerous 

complex utility clients including the City of San Diego, Austin Water, the 

Portland Water Bureau, Milwaukee Water Works, the City of Calgary, and the 

Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority.  

 

Prior to joining Raftelis in 2010, John was the Manager of Rate Administration at 

Denver Water where he was responsible for the annual financial planning, cost-

of-service, and capacity fee studies. He also served as a a Senior Economist for the 

City of Portland Oregon’s Bureau of Environmental Services where he was 

responsible for the annual wastewater and stormwater cost-of-service and capacity 

fee studies.  

 

KEY PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

City of Long Beach Water Department (CA) 

Reference: Patrizia Hall, PE, Manager of Engineering 

1800 E. Wardlow Road, Long Beach, CA 90807 

P: 562.570.2332 / E: patrizia.hall@lbwater.org 

Size: 467,354 population 

Cost: $99,000 

Year Work Was Completed: Ongoing 

Individual’s Role in the Project: Project Manager 

Individual’s Employer for Project: Raftelis 

 

The Long Beach Water Department (Department) provides water, sewer, and 

recycled water service to population over 460,000 in the City of Long Beach. 

John is currently serving as the project manager on a water and sewer cost-of- 

service study for the Department. The key objective of the study is the 

comprehensive review of the cost allocations used to support the Department’s 

currently effective utility rates and the creation of a new financial planning and 

cost allocation model. John is also currently serving as the project manager for a 

study investigating the potential implementation of water capacity fees. The study 

includes valuation of City's water infrastructure, the identification of capacity fee 

calculation methodologies, and the development of proposed capacity fee 

assessment schedules. 

Years of Experience 

• 25+ Years 

Number of Years at Raftelis 

• 6 Years 

Specialties 

• Cost-of-service studies 

• Capacity fee studies 

• Financial & economic analysis 

• Public speaking and presentations 

• Expert witness testimony 

• Litigation support 

Professional History 

• Raftelis: Senior Manager (2020-

present); Manager (2017-2019); 

Senior Consultant (2010-2016) 

• Denver Water: Manager of Rate 

Administration (2006-2009) 

• Portland Bureau of Environmental 

Services: Senior Economist (2004-

2006) 

• Public Utility Commission of Oregon: 

Senior Utility Analyst (2002-2004) 

• Positions in the Competitive 

Telecommunications Industry (1997-

2002) 

• Colorado Public Utilities 

Commission: Senior Financial 

Analyst (1991-1997) 

Education 

• Master of Science in Finance - 

University of Colorado, Denver 

• Bachelor of Science in Accounting - 

Metropolitan State University of 

Denver 

Certifications 

• Certified Public Accountant, State of 

Colorado #11959 

• Series 50 Municipal Advisor 

Representative 

Professional Memberships 

• AWWA - Rates & Charges 

Committee, Finance Accounting & 

Management Controls Committee, 

Asset Management Committee 

• WEF Utility Management Committee 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 136 of 170



 RAFTELIS 13 

 

 

San Bernardino Municipal Water Department (CA) 

Reference: Cindy Mouser, Director of Finance 

1350 SE Street , San Bernardino, CA 92408 

P: 909.453.6010 / E: cindy.mouser@sbmwd.org 

Size: 144,000 population 

Cost: $120,000 

Year Work Was Completed: 2022 

Individual’s Role in the Project: Project Manager 

John served as the project manager for a comprehensive water and wastewater rate study for the City of San Bernardino 

(Department). The study included the development of 10-year financial plans, cost-of-service studies using industry 

standard principles, and the development of completely revised water and wastewater rate structures that were 

implemented by the Department's Board of Water Commissioners. In addition, Raftelis also developed drought 

surcharges for the Department. The outcome of the study was the development of Proposition 218 compliant water and 

wastewater rates for the period FY 2022 - FY 2026. The Department provides wholesale wastewater service to the City of 

Loma Linda and the East Valley Water District. In 2022, the East Valley Water District begin using its own Water 

Reclamation Facility and no will longer be a wholesale wastewater customer of the Department. As part of the rate study, 

Raftelis has assisted the Department plan for this large loss of revenue. 

 

City of San Diego (CA) 

Reference: Adam Jones, Deputy Director of Finance, Public Utilities Department 

525 B Street, San Diego, CA 92101 

P:858.614.4030 / E: jonesal@sandiego.gov 

Size: 880,000 population 

Cost: $900,000 

Year Work Was Completed: 2022 

Respondent’s Role in the Project: Lead Consultant 

The City of San Diego (City) provides retail water, wastewater, and recycled water service to approximately 1.4 million 

people in metropolitan San Diego. John served as the lead consultant on the City’s recent wastewater and recycled water 

rate studies. His responsibilities included working with City staff to prepare a revenue requirement projection for the 

wastewater enterprise fund; 2) developing wastewater and recycled water cost allocations as part of the wastewater cost of 

service study; and 3) calculating proposed wastewater and recycled water rates for the period FY 2022 – FY 2026. 

 

The City's wastewater utility system consists of Municipal and Metropolitan sub-systems. The Municipal sub-system is a 

wastewater collection and conveyance system for retail customers served within the City's jurisdictional boundaries. The 

Metropolitan sub-system is a regional wastewater treatment and disposal system that provides service to 16 member 

agencies in the County of San Diego. John’s work on the project included analyzing the methodology used to allocate 

Municipal and Metropolitan subsystem operating and capital costs to the City's retail wastewater and recycled water 

customers. He also developed a comprehensive mass balance analysis that reconciled the wastewater flow and strength 

loadings contributed by the City to the flow and strength loadings recorded at each of three City-owned treatment plants. 

 

 

PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

Denver Water: Manager of Rate Administration (2006-2009) 

Management position supervising three rate analysts and reporting to the Director of Finance at a municipal water utility 

serving over 1.3 million people. 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 137 of 170



 RAFTELIS 14 

 

• Supervised preparation of Denver Water’s annual 10-year financial plan including the coordination of inputs 

from the water resource planning, engineering, budgeting, and treasury functions 

• Supervised preparation of the annual cost-of-service, capacity fee, and miscellaneous fee studies 

• Provided corporate finance/economic analysis support for capital investment decisions, integrated resource 

planning, reclaimed water system expansion, and raw water operations 

• Managed relationships with Denver Water’s wholesale customers and outside city retail water distributors 

• Extensive public speaking and presentation experience before the Denver Water Board of Commissioners and 

external stakeholder groups 

 

Portland Bureau of Environmental Services: Senior Economist (2004-2006) 

Economic analysis position reporting to the Director of Business Services at a municipal utility wastewater utility serving 

over 500,000 people. 

• Assisted in the preparation of the annual wastewater and stormwater utility financial plans 

• Prepared the annual wastewater and stormwater cost-of-service and capacity fee studies 

• Developed solid waste and recycling rates for the Portland Office of Sustainable Development 

• Developed pricing for services provided by the Bureau of Environmental Services’ water pollution control 

laboratory 

• Presentations before the City of Portland’s Public Utility Review Board 

 

Public Utility Commission of Oregon: Senior Utility Analyst (2002-2004) 

Specialist in telecommunications industry financial, economic, and public policy issues at a state regulatory agency. 

• Testified as an expert staff witness in regulatory proceedings related to incumbent local exchange carrier access 

charges, interexchange carrier credit quality, and wireless carrier high cost funding 

• Developed financial models to analyze telecommunications utility cost allocations and rate structures including 

incumbent local exchange carrier unbundled network element pricing 

• Financial advisor to the Oregon Universal Service Fund which provided over $50 million annually to support the 

availability of telecommunications services in rural Oregon 

 

Positions in the Competitive Telecommunications Industry (1997-2002) 

Senior financial analyst at Electric Lightwave, Inc. (Vancouver, WA) and Marketing Analyst at WCI Cable, Inc. 

(Hillsboro, OR).  

• Developed pricing for high capacity fiber optic services (DS3 - OC193) in terrestrial, submarine and metropolitan-

area networks 

• Developed financial models and business cases to analyze network infrastructure expansions and proposed 

acquisitions 

• Developed pricing for Indefeasible Rights of Use (i.e., long-term leases) for dark and lit fiber optic capacity in 

amounts up to $30 million 

 

Colorado Public Utilities Commission: Senior Financial Analyst (1991-1997) 

Specialist in energy utility financial, economic, and public policy issues at a state regulatory agency. 

• Testified as an expert staff witness in Public Service Company of Colorado and San Miguel Power Association 

rate cases 

• One of three staff members selected by the Colorado PUC Commissioners to the first independent team of 

litigation support advisors in agency history 

• Advisor to the Colorado PUC Commissioners on electric power and natural gas utility rate cases, integrated 

resource planning, and electric power retail deregulation issues 

• Participated in the development of electric power utility integrated resource planning rules requiring competitive 

bidding for new resources, the submission of alternative resource portfolios, and the use of discounted cash flow 

techniques to estimate ratepayer impacts 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 138 of 170



 RAFTELIS 15 

 

• Served as liaison to the Clinton Administration’s Council on Sustainable Development representing former 

Colorado PUC Commissioner Christine Alvarez 

• Author of Colorado PUC staff comments on proposed Federal Energy Regulatory Commission rules for open 

access electric transmission (FERC Order No. 888) as published in the National Regulatory Institute Bulletin, 

Volume 17, No. 1.  

 

EXPERT WITNESS TESTIMONY 

• Public Service Commission of Wisconsin - Milwaukee Water Works (Docket No. 3720-WR-108). Filed direct 

and rebuttal testimony, on behalf of Milwaukee Water Works, on wholesale water service cost allocation and 

public fire protection issues. Provided oral testimony under oath before a Wisconsin PSC Administrative Law 

Judge. Subject to hostile cross-examination by legal counsel representing the Wisconsin PSC, wholesale customer 

intervenors, and Miller-Coors. 

 

• Oregon Public Utility Commission - CenturyTel of Oregon (Docket No. UT 154). Filed direct testimony on, 

on behalf of the Oregon PUC staff, incumbent local exchange carrier access charges and interexchange carrier 

credit quality. Provided oral testimony under oath before an Oregon PUC Administrative Law Judge. Subject to 

hostile cross-examination by legal counsel representing AT&T, Sprint, and WorldCom. 

 

• Oregon Public Utility Commission - United States Cellular Corporation (Docket Nos. UM-1083 and UM-

1084). Filed direct testimony, on behalf of the Oregon PUC staff, on the applications of United States Cellular 

Corporation and RCC Minnesota, Inc., to be designated as Eligible Telecommunications Carriers authorized to 

receive support from the Federal Communications Commission's Universal Service Fund. Provided oral 

testimony under oath before an Oregon PUC Administrative Law Judge. Subject to hostile cross-examination by 

legal counsel representing US West. 

 

• Colorado Public Utilities Commission - Public Service Company of Colorado (Docket No. 93S-001EG). Filed 

direct testimony, on behalf of the Colorado PUC staff, on the proposed test-year revenue requirements of the 

electric and gas utility operations of Public Service Company of Colorado (PSCO, now operating as Xcel 

Energy). Testimony included the integration of the assets acquired from the Colorado-Ute Rural Electric 

Association in the PSCO rate base and the recovery of costs associated with a new PSCO utility billing system. 

Provided oral testimony under oath before the Colorado PUC Commissioners en banc. Subject to hostile cross-

examination by legal counsel representing PSCO, the Colorado Office of Consumer Counsel, the Land and 

Water Fund of the Rockies, and municipal and industrial intervenors. 

 

• Colorado Public Utilities Commission - San Miguel Power Association (Docket No. 93A-211E). Filed direct 

testimony, on behalf of the Colorado PUC staff, on the proposed test-year revenue requirements and electric rates 

of the San Miguel Power Association (SMPA). Provided oral testimony under oath before the CPUC 

Commissioners en banc. Subject to hostile cross-examination by legal counsel representing SMPA and Colorado 

Office of Consumer Counsel. 

PROJECT LIST 

• Austin Water (TX) – Water and wastewater cost-of-service studies for retail and wholesale services 

• Box Elder Sanitation District (CO) – Financial planning and capacity fees 

• City of Calgary Utilities and Environmental Protection Department (AB, Canada) – Comprehensive financial 

risk assessment of water, wastewater, and stormwater utilities 

• City of Chandler (AZ) – Water and wastewater cost-of-service and rate design 

• City of Corvallis (OR) – Water and wastewater financial planning, cost-of-service, and rate design 

• Contra Costa County Sanitary District – Recycled water project financial analysis 

• Eastern Municipal Water District (CA) – Water, wastewater, and sewer financial planning 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 139 of 170



 RAFTELIS 16 

 

• East Larimer County Water District (CO) – Water financial planning, cost-of-service, rate design and capacity 

fees 

• Fort Collins Loveland-Water District (CO) – Water financial planning, cost-of-service, and rate design 

• Imperial County (CA) – Water and sewer financial planning, cost-of-service, and rate design studies 

• Irvine Ranch Water District (CA) – Water, sewer, and recycled water cost-of-service and rate design 

• Ken Caryl Ranch Water and Sanitation District (CO) – Water and wastewater financial planning, cost-of-service, 

and rate design 

• Left Hand Water District (CO) – Financial model update and capacity fees 

• Long Beach Water Department (CA) – Water, wastewater, and recycled water cost-of-service, and rate design; 

water capacity fees 

• Metropolitan Water District of Southern California (CA) – Potential rate structure alternatives for the recovery of 

wholesale treatment costs 

• Milwaukee Water Works (WI) – Expert witness testimony in a rate case proceeding at the Public Service 

Commission of Wisconsin 

• City of Naperville (IL) – Water and wastewater financial planning, cost-of-service, and rate design 

• City of Norman (OK) – Water and wastewater capacity fees 

• Padre Dam Municipal Water District (CA) – Water, wastewater, and recycled water financial planning, cost-of-

service, and rate design; drought rates 

• City of Pico Rivera (CA) – Water financial planning, cost-of-service, and rate design 

• Portland Water Bureau (OR) – Audit of wholesale rate model 

• Prescott Valley (AZ) – Non-utility impact fee study 

• Prosper Coordinating Metropolitan District (CO) – Financial planning, cost-of-service, rate design, and system 

development charges for a greenfield planned development east of metropolitan Denver 

• Puerto Rico Aqueduct and Sewer Authority (PR) – Review of financial planning forecasts 

• Rancho California Water District (CA) – Water cost-of-service and rate update 

• San Bernardino Municipal Water District (CA) – Water, sewer, and recycled water financial planning, cost-of-

service, and rate design; drought rates 

• City of San Diego (CA) – Wastewater and recycled water financial planning, cost-of-service, and rate design 

• Santa Clara County Water District (CA) – Groundwater zone of benefit cost-of-service study 

• Santa Clarita Valley Municipal Water Department – Water stand-by charges 

• Soldier Canyon Water Treatment Authority (CO) – Financial planning and rate design 

• South Fort Collins Sanitation District (CO) – Financial planning, cost-of-service, and rate design 

• Strathcona County (AB, Canada) – Water and wastewater financial planning, cost-of-service, and rate design 

• City of Thornton (CO) – Water financial planning, cost-of-service, and rate design 

• Vallecitos Water District (CA) – Water cost-of-service and rate design 

• City of Westminster (CO) – Water and wastewater financial planning, cost-of-service, and rate design study 

• City of Wichita (KS) – Water and wastewater financial planning, cost-of-service, and rate design 

 

PUBLICATIONS 

• “Financing and Charges for Wastewater Systems,” WEF Manual of Practice No. 27 Second Edition, 2018  

• “Principles of Water Rates, Fees and Charges,” AWWA Manual M1, Sixth and Seventh Edition, 2012 and 2017 

• “Water Utility Capital Financing,” AWWA Manual M29, Fourth Edition, 2017 

• “AWWA Asset Management Definitions Guidebook,” Version 1.0, 2018 

• “WEF Effective Water Professional,” First Edition, 2015 

• “WEF User-Fee Funded Stormwater Programs,” Second Edition, 2013 

• “WEF The Energy Roadmap: A Water & Wastewater Utility Guide to More Sustainable Energy Management,” 

First Edition, 2013 

• “Water and Wastewater Finance and Pricing, The Changing Landscape,” CRC Press, Fourth Edition, 2015 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 140 of 170



 RAFTELIS 17 

 

PRESENTATIONS 

• "Developing a Financial Plan to Support Deferred Maintenance Funding," AWWA/WEF Utility Management 

Conference, 2019 

• "Water System Development Charges Tailored to Land Use," AWWA/WEF Utility Management Conference, 

2019 

• “Utility Financial Risk Assessment - The Calgary Experience,” AWWA Annual Conference, 2017 

• “Water Profession: Current Issues and Future Challenges,” Guest Lecturer at the University of Colorado-

Boulder, Civil Engineering Class No. 5574, 2017 and 2018 

• “Community Involvement Committees from a Municipal Utility Perspective,” Colorado GFOA Conference, 

2016 

• “Securing Thornton’s Water Future,” RMSAWWA/RMWEA Annual Joint Conference, 2015 

• “Financial Strategies to Prepare for the Next Economic Crises,” AWWA Annual Conference, 2014 

• “Weathering Economic Crises: Creating a Resilient Financial Plan for Your Utility,” AWWA Webinar, 2014 

• “Wichita Water Utilities Financial Restructuring,” KWEA/KAWWA Annual Joint Conference, 2013 

• “Capital Planning - A Business Case Process,” AWWA Annual Conference, 2013 

• “Declining Revenues and Your Rate Structure,” AWWA Annual Conference, 2012 

  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 141 of 170



 RAFTELIS 18 

 

Kevin Kostiuk 

ASSISTANT PROJECT MANAGER 
Manager 
 

ROLE 

Kevin will assist the Project Manager with managing the day-to-day aspects of the 

project and leading the consulting staff in conducting analyses and preparing 

deliverables for the project. 

 

PROFILE 

Kevin has a background in economics and accounting and possesses extensive 

analytical skills. His expertise lies in water resources management, environmental 

economics, environmental policy, and federal water supply and flood control 

policy. Kevin is a member of the American Water Works Association (AWWA) 

Young Professionals and the Young Professionals Summit Committees in 

conjunction with the AWWA Utility Management Conference (UMC). He has 

authored an article on potable reuse in Journal AWWA discussing the treatment, 

financing structures, and pricing of treated water at advanced purification 

treatment plants; an article on municipal water demand pattern changes during 

the recent State-wide drought; and an article on proactive financial planning in 

times of drought for California Society of Municipal Finance Officers (CSMFO) 

Magazine. Most recently Kevin presented at the AWWA UMC discussing a 

recent evaluation of the conceptual CustomerSelect rate model for Soquel Creek 

Water District.  

 

KEY PROJECT EXPERIENCE 

Goleta Water District (CA)  

Reference: Francis Chan, Administrative Manager/CFO 

43885 S. Grimmer Boulevard, Fremont, CA 94538 

P: 805.879.4615 / E: fchan@goletawater.com 

Size: 35,000 population 

Cost: $37,206 

Year Work Was Completed: 2022 

Individual’s Role in the Project: Project Manager 

Individual’s Employer for Project: Raftelis 

 

Kevin completed a full water cost-of-service study for the Goleta Water District (District) which included design of 

inclining tiered rates for their single-family residential class, as well as agricultural rates for two classes. Complexities in 

customer classes’ access to District water supplies, interruptibility during times of drought, and benefit (or lack thereof) 

from treatment made the analysis unique and challenging. The study included development of a long term financial plan 

model, rate model, and corresponding bill impacts.  

 

To achieve the District’s demand reduction targets as outlined in their Drought Management Plan, the District wished to 

explore drought rates/drought surcharges to curb demand. Ultimately, Kevin developed three options of revenue neutral 

drought surcharges for the Board’s consideration. These various options ranged from targeted surcharges on an inter and 

Years of Experience 

• 13 Years 

Number of Years at Raftelis 

• 8 Years 

Specialties 

• Water & Drought rate design 

• Water budget rate structures  

• Utility cost-of-service 

• Sustainable Groundwater 

Management Act 

• Data analysis 

• Environmental policy analysis 

Professional History 

• Raftelis: Manager (2020-present); 

Senior Consultant (2014-2019); 

Consultant (2014-2015) 

• Turner New Zealand, Inc.: Director 

of Operations (2009-2012); 

Accounting Manager (2007-2009) 

• Lesley, Thomas, Schwarz & 

Postma, Inc.: Staff Accountant 

(2007)  

Education 

• Master of Environmental 

Management - Duke University 

(2014) 

• Bachelor of Arts in Business-

Economics & History - University of 

California, Santa Barbara (2006) 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 142 of 170



 RAFTELIS 19 

 

intra-class basis, to a surcharge applied to non-drought commodity rates, to a uniform commodity surcharge irrespective 

of customer class or use. The proposed rates and drought surcharges were adopted and implemented July 1, 2015. 

 

City of Hayward (CA) 

Reference: Alex Ameri, PE, Director of Public Works 

777 B Street, Hayward, CA 94541 

P: 510.583.4720  / E: alex.ameri@hayward-ca.gov 

Size: 158,817 population 

Cost: $54,218 

Year Work Was Completed: 2021 

Individual’s Role in the Project: Project Manager 

Individual’s Employer for Project: Raftelis 

 

Raftelis assisted the City with reviewing water rate structures, financial planning, and water cost-of-service. The City 

serves an urban retail base with very low per capita demands and has a relatively large share of low-income customers. 

Raftelis assisted the City of Hayward (City) with a comprehensive water cost-of-service and rate study in 2021. Kevin 

served as the project manager for this engagement, which involved developing a 10-year financial plan, a two-year rate 

proposal, a water rate model, and a technical report (or administrative record). The City receives 100% of its water supply 

from the San Francisco Public Utilities Commission (SFPUC); the increasing costs of purchasing water from SFPUC is 

often unpredictable. The key drivers in the financial plan included developing a reserve policy which mitigated the risk of 

volatile SFPUC costs and minimizing the financial impact to customers to the greatest extent possible. Additionally, 

Raftelis recommended a simplified rate structure based on a detailed cost-of-service allocation. The proposed rate 

structure helped improve equity among customer classes, provided affordability for low water users, and enhanced 

customer understanding. The water rates were successfully approved and implemented by City Council. 

 

Crescenta Valley Water District (CA) 

Reference: David Gould, District Engineer, Project Manager 

2700 Foothill Boulevard, La Crescenta, CA 91214 

P: 818.248.3925 / E: dgould@cvwd.com 

Size: 32,000 population 

Cost: $96,767 

Year Work Was Completed: 2020 

Individual’s Role in the Project: Project Manager 

Individual’s Employer for Project: Raftelis 

 

Kevin developed a combined water and sewer financial plan and rate model for the Crescenta Valley Water District 

(District) in 2016. The cost-of-service and rate study included several workshops with the District Board which 

culminated in structural changes to the District’s existing water and sewer rate structures. In addition to the tiered water 

rate structure, which was ultimately adopted, Kevin developed a water budget rate model for evaluation by District staff 

and the District Board.  

 

Prior to the cost-of-service and rate study, Kevin performed an economic analysis for the District to determine the 

feasibility of offsetting imported water supply with the production of local groundwater. Kevin created a customized 

model for the District to use under different scenarios of capital requirements, lease options, and contract lengths. As part 

of the study, he reviewed the District’s prior consultant’s work, determined internal rate of returns, calculated the net 

present value of district savings, and determined the cost at which the District should lease water rights for groundwater 

production. 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 143 of 170



 RAFTELIS 20 

 

City of Camarillo (CA) 

Reference: Mark S. Uribe, Assistant Director of Finance 

601 Carmen Drive, Camarillo, CA 93010  

P: 805.388.5358 / E: muribe@cityofcamarillo.org 

Size: 68,583 population 

Cost: $154,596 

Year Work Was Completed: 2018 

Individual’s Role in the Project: Project Manager 

Individual’s Employer for Project: Raftelis 

 

Raftelis has provided rate consulting services to the City of Camarillo (City) for the past seven years with Kevin serving as 

lead analyst the past three years. In the current rate cycle Kevin serves as project manager. The City adopts rates on a 

two-year cycle and the most recent study included rebuilding long term financial plan models, revising the wastewater 

utility’s rate structure, and performing a cost-of-service analysis for the sewer utility. Kevin has made presentations to the 

City Manager, City’s Utility Committee, and City Council in consecutive years. Kevin successfully presented rates to 

City Council in December 2016, November 2017, and November 2018.  

 

During the height of the most recent state-wide drought, the City contracted with Raftelis to evaluate emergency drought 

rates as a conservation and revenue recovery tool. Kevin adapted the existing financial plan model and developed 

multiple scenarios based upon the City’s water supply condition stages. Kevin developed drought rates utilizing the City’s 

financial plan at each stage and estimating water reductions. The rates were not adopted prior to the end of the state-wide 

drought however the drought tool is available for quick implementation should drought conditions return. Raftelis is 

currently contracted with the City for another two-year rate and capacity fee study for 2019 with Kevin as project 

manager. 

 

PROJECT LIST 

• Antelope Valley (CA) - East Kern Water Agency 

• Citrus Heights Water District (CA) - Groundwater supply analysis  

• Coastside County Water District (CA) - Water rate study  

• Elsinore Valley Municipal Water District (CA) - Drought surcharge study 

• La Canada Irrigation District (CA) - Water cost-of-service and rate study  

• City of Lancaster (CA) - Wastewater cost-of-service study 

• Madera County Groundwater Sustainability Agencies (CA) 

• Montecito Basin Groundwater Sustainability Agency (CA)  

• City of Torrance (CA) - Wastewater cost-of-service and rate study 

• Triunfo Sanitation District (CA) - Water rate study  

• Ventura County Waterworks District No. 8 Simi Valley (CA) 

  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 144 of 170



 RAFTELIS 21 

 

Jim Armstrong 
SPECIAL ADVISOR 
Principal Consultant 
 

ROLE 

Jim is a Principal Consultant with Raftelis and based in Santa Barbara. He is 

currently leading the Special District Collaboration and Consolidation Study 

for the District and the Montecito Water District. 

 

PROFILE 

Prior to joining Raftelis, Jim had a long and successful local government career 

in four California cities. Most recently, he served as City Administrator of 

Santa Barbara from 2001 to 2014. During his tenure, he successfully led the 

City through the 2008-10 recession; completion of a General Plan update; two 

major wildland fires; and the dissolution of the City’s Redevelopment Agency. 

He was instrumental in the creation of the City’s Neighborhood Improvement 

Task Force and the South Coast Task Force on Youth Gangs. Santa Barbara 

also implemented a comprehensive performance management program under 

Jim’s direction.  

 

After leaving government service, Jim has provided consulting services for 

several California cities and special districts. His assignments have included 

management studies, executive recruitments, and development of long-term 

financial plans. He is known for his extensive knowledge of local government 

finance, budgeting and financial analyses. 

 

RELEVANT PROFESSIONAL EXPERIENCE 

Ralph Andersen & Associates: Senior Consultant (2015-

2018) 

Jim served as senior consultant conducting city manager and senior level 

executive recruitments and management studies for cities and special districts 

throughout California. Management studies included a high-level review of a 

city’s entire departmental operations; development of a cost-benefit model to 

determine the feasibility of creating a municipal police department; and 

evaluation of management systems at a community college district.  

 

Santa Barbara (CA): City Administrator (2001-2014) 

Served as City Administrator and Redevelopment Executive Director of this 

well-known city with 90,000 residents, 1,000 employees and an annual budget 

of $275 million. Accomplishments include: 

• Leading the organization successfully through a major downsizing as a 

result of the 2008-10 recession with a minimum disruption of services  

• Successfully completing several important capital improvement 

projects including a new airline terminal, a major new downtown 

parking structure; important water and wastewater upgrades, and 

reconstruction of historic fire headquarters building 

Years of Experience 

• 40+ Years 

Number of Years at Raftelis 

• 2 Years 

Specialties 

• Municipal budget development & 

financial management 

• Organizational analysis 

• Long term financial planning 

• Establishment of performance 

management systems 

• Strategic planning 

Professional History 

• Raftelis: Principal (2019-present) 

• Ralph Andersen & Associates: Senior 

Consultant (2015-2018) 

• Santa Barbara, California: City 

Administrator (2001-2014) 

• Fullerton, California: City Manager 

(1992-2001) 

• Anaheim, California: Assistant City 

Manager (1990-1992); Assistant to the 

City Manager (1979-1983); 

Administrative Assistant (1978-1979); 

Administrative Aide (1977-1978) 

• Hanford, California: City Manager 

(1983-1990) 

Education 

• Master of Public Administration - 

California State University, Long Beach 

• Bachelor of Arts in Psychology, Political 

Science, Cum Laude - University of 

California, Los Angeles 

Professional Memberships 

• Santa Barbara County City Managers 

Association: Chair 

• Orange County City Managers 

Association: President 

• South San Joaquin Valley City 

Managers Association: President 

• International City/County Management 

Association: Life Member 

• Santa Barbara Neighborhood Clinics: 

President of the Board 

• Channel Islands YMCA: Chair of the 

Board, Treasurer 

• Santa Barbara Rotary Foundation: 

President 

• Santa Barbara County United Way: 

Board of Directors 

• Aircraft Owners and Pilots Association 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 145 of 170



 RAFTELIS 22 

 

• Implementation of major organization efforts including a comprehensive performance management system, a 

modern communications strategy, and an award-winning sustainability program  

• Development of revised budgeting and financial management systems that stabilized city finances, improved 

accountability, and increased transparency  

• Completion of a new General Plan 

 

Fullerton (CA): City Manager (1992-2001) 

Served as City Manager and Redevelopment Executive Director of a full-service city with 130,000 residents, 800 

employees and an annual budget of $125 million. Accomplishments included: 

• Restoration of downtown business area that received state and national recognition  

• Restructuring of city operations to deal with a major revenue shortfall, resulting in annual savings of $5 million 

• Implementation of improved management systems that enhanced customer service, productivity tracking, 

internal communications, and employee morale 

• Implementation of long-term planning efforts including infrastructure financing strategies, a Transportation 

Center Master plan, and water system master plan  

• Participation on regional planning efforts which resulted in restructuring of the county solid waste system and 

implementation of a county-wide public safety communications system 

 

Anaheim (CA): Assistant City Manager (1990-1992) 

Served as Assistant City Manager of a large, diverse City with 300,000 residents, 2,000 employees and a budget exceeding 

$550 million. Duties included directly supervising eight departments, including Finance, Stadium, Convention Center, 

Parks and Recreation, and the Library. Accomplishments included: 

• Serving on the city negotiating team to plan and implement the $1.5 billion expansion of Disneyland, 

improvement to the commercial recreation area, and a major expansion of the Anaheim Convention Center 

• Serving as a member of the negotiating team that successfully negotiated the development of the Anaheim Arena, 

a 20,000-seat multipurpose facility

 

Hanford (CA): City Manager (1983-1990) 

Served as City Manager and Redevelopment Executive Director of this full-service city with a population of 30,000 and 

180 employees. Major accomplishments included: 

• Numerous state and national awards for downtown restoration efforts 

• Implementation of improved management systems to improve performance measurement, customer service, and 

budgeting 

• Developed a solid waste joint powers authority in conjunction with the county and two other cities. 

 

Anaheim (CA): Assistant to the City Manager (1979-1983) 

• Served in progressively responsible positions in the city manager’s office. Duties included working with city 

council members on specific policy issues, review of all council agenda items, supervision of the 

intergovernmental relations office and work on special projects.  

• Managed public works maintenance functions for two years to create a new Department of Maintenance. 

Supervised five divisions of Public Works with a budget of $26 million and 400 employees 

• Chaired task force in negotiations with Hilton Hotels, which resulted in a 50-year lease to construct a 1600 room 

hotel on city owned land  

• Developed computerized work management system and productivity tracking system for use by all city 

departments. 

 

PROFESSIONAL HONORS 

• Orange County Division of American Society of Public Administration Public Administrator of the Year  

• Channel Islands YMCA Distinguished Service Award 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 146 of 170



 RAFTELIS 23 

 

References 

Goleta West Sanitary District CA 

Reference: Mark Nation, General Manager 

UCSB Campus Lot 32, Santa Barbara, CA 93106 

P: 805.968.2617 / E: mnation@goletawest.com 

Duration of Assignment: 2019 – 2020 

Key Personnel: Kevin Kostiuk (Project Manager), Sudhir Pardiwala (Project Director) 

 

Carpinteria Sanitary District CA 

Reference: Craig Murray, General Manager 

5300 Sixth Street, Carpinteria, CA 93013 

P: 805.684.7214 ext 12 / E: craigm@carpsan.com 

Duration of Assignment: 2021 - 2022 

Key Personnel: Sudhir Pardiwala (Project Director) 

 

San Bernardino Municipal Water Department CA 

Reference: Cindy Mouser, Director of Finance 

1350 SE Street , San Bernardino, CA 92408 

P: 909.453.6010 / E: cindy.mouser@sbmwd.org 

Duration of Assignment: 2021 - 2022 

Key Personnel: John Wright (Project Manager) 

 

City of San Diego CA 

Reference: Adam Jones, Deputy Director of Finance, Public Utilities Department 

525 B Street, San Diego, CA 92101 

P:858.614.4030 / E: jonesal@sandiego.gov 

Duration of Assignment: 2021 - 2022 

Key Personnel: John Wright (Project Manager) 

 

 

  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 147 of 170



 RAFTELIS 24 

  MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 148 of 170



 RAFTELIS 25 

   MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 149 of 170



 RAFTELIS 26 

  MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 150 of 170



 RAFTELIS 27 

 

Project Understanding 
Recommended Sewer Service Charges for FY 2023-24 through FY 

2028-29 

The Montecito Sanitary District (District) is seeking an expert consultant to complete a comprehensive sewer rate study. 

The primary objectives of the study are the development of recommended Proposition 218 compliant sewer service 

charges for the six-year period FY 2023-24 through FY 2028-29. Developing the recommended sewer service charges will 

require the preparation of a six-year financial plan featuring recommended annual rate revenue adjustments to pay for the 

District’s projected costs, adequate operating and capital reserves, and adequate debt service coverage levels. The 

District’s current sewer service charges, which are recovered via Santa Barbara property tax billings, are as follows. 

 

Residential 

Single Family Dwelling $1,480 

Condo or 2nd Dwelling $696 

Fixed Capacity Allocation Charge ($/HCF Based on Historic Maximum Annual Water Use) 

Low Strength Sewage $4.33 

Medium Strength Sewage $10.32 

High Strength Sewage $12.59 

Variable Charge ($/HCF Based on Prior Calendar Year Actual Water Use) 

Low Strength (BOD and TSS < 325 mg/L) $2.88 

Medium Strength BOD and TSS 325 - 900 mg/L) $3.96 

High Strength (BOD and TSS > 900 mg/L) $5.57 

 

Other Key Objectives 

 

• Capital Improvement Expenditure Funding. The District’s approved capital improvement plan (CIP) for FY 

2022-23 called for $5.0 million in expenditures. The financial plan must ensure that the District has adequate 

sewer service charge revenues to fund required capital expenditures. Key sources of information that may be used 

to develop the capital improvement program expenditures included in the financial plan include: 

 

o Septic-to-Sewer Strategic Plan for the connection of the approximately 300 parcels not currently collected 

to the District’s collection system 

 

o Lift station and collection system assessment and rehabilitation plan that will be completed concurrently 

with the rate study 

 

o Carollo Engineers technical memorandums TM3 and TM5 

PROJECT UNDERSTANDING 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 151 of 170



 RAFTELIS 28 

 

 

• Treatment Cost Debt Service Coverage Sensitivity: The District’s ability to absorb higher treatment costs while 

maintaining adequate debt service coverage must be analyzed. As of June 30, 2021, the District had long-term 

liabilities of $11.0 million supporting capital assets of $31.8 million. The District’s total debt service payments in 

FY 2022-23 were $923K or approximately 13% of projected operating revenues. 

 

• Operating and Capital Reserve Levels: Recommendations for operating and capital reserve levels must be made 

to ensure the District can mitigate reasonably foreseeable risks. 

 

• Revenue Sensitivity to Drought: Analyze the projected reduction in sewer service charge revenue earned from 

commercial customers under different drought scenarios 

 

• Customer Classes: Evaluation of the Districts current sewer service customer classes 

 

• Sewer Service Charge Structure: Evaluation of the District’s current  sewer service charge structure 

 

• Connection Fee Evaluation and Update: Evaluate the District’s current connection fee calculation methodology 

and calculate updated connection fees. The current connection fee is $8,300 per Equivalent Residential Unit 

(ERU) 

 

• Accessory Dwelling Units: Analyze the impact of accessory dwelling unit statutory changes SB9 and SB10) on 

the District’s service charges and connection fees 

 

• Rate Survey: Complete a survey that compares the District’s existing and proposed rates for FY 2023-24 through 

FY 2028-29 to surrounding public agencies 

 

• Cost Benchmarking: Compare the District’s operating and capital costs the appropriate industry standards  

 

 

Project Approach 
Our proposed project approach is based on our extensive experience in completing sewer rate studies for utility District’s 

throughout California and the specific objected identified by the District in its Request for Proposals (RFP).  

 

Task 1: Project Initiation and Management 

 

On-Site Kick-Off Meeting 

A productive kick-off meeting is the most effective way to begin any rate study. The goals for the meeting include: 

• Providing a forum to finalize the scope of the project, work plan, and schedule with District staff 

• Discussing the District’s preliminary sewer service charge pricing objectives 

• Providing an opportunity for District staff to meet and become comfortable with the Raftelis project team 

• Reviewing the data needs for the project 

 

Prior to the kick-off meeting, we will prepare a data request describing the information required to successfully complete 

the study. If the data is provided in time, Raftelis will review the initial data before the kick-off meeting and will come 

prepared with questions to maximize the effectiveness of the meeting.  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 152 of 170



 RAFTELIS 29 

 

 

Project Management 

Raftelis believes in a no-surprises approach to project management in which are client is always kept informed of the 

project status. Informing our client of issues and challenges as early as possible minimizes project delays and cost 

overruns. As part of the project management process, we will: 

• Prepare budgets for each project task and milestone 

• Prepare monthly reports of expenditures and milestones for each project task. 

• Provide monthly progress reports to accompany each invoice. 

• Provide a detailed project schedule, including milestones, major activities, and deliverables for all aspects of the 

Study. 

• Prepare agendas, lead Study status meetings, and provide meeting notes to the District with action items. 

 

Project Management and QA/QC  

Our proposed Task 1 consulting fee includes time for project management and Quality Assurance and Quality Control 

(QA/QC). To ensure robust quality control, the Project Manager and Assistant Project Manager will review the data, 

model, and results to ensure they are based on sound rate-making principles. The QA/QC reviews will take place at each 

project task milestone, which means it will occur several times during the project. The Project Manager and Task Leaders 

will each perform QA/QC.  

 

Prior to the kick-off meeting, we will prepare a detailed data request list that will identify the information needed to 

complete the various analyses.  

 

PLANNED MEETINGS:  

• Kick-off meeting in Santa Barbara 

 

DELIVERABLES:  

• Data request list 

• Agenda for kick-off meeting 

• Documentation summarizing the kick-off meeting 

• Project Management Items VI, 1a-1f as specified in the District’s RFP 

 

Task 2: Analysis of Customer Class Water Consumption and Demand 

Forecast  

The starting point for the sewer rate study will be an analysis of historical customer class water consumption for the four-

year period FY 2017-18 through FY 2020-21. An outcome of this analysis will be the development of a demand forecast 

for the period FY 2023-24 through FY 2028-29. Key areas of the study that require a detailed understanding of customer 

demand include: 

 

• Financial Planning: Used to prepare a realistic projection of revenues earned from existing sewer service charges 

used in the projection of sewer service charge revenues 

 

• Cost Allocations: Used to allocate flow-based costs and estimate the pounds of biochemical (BOD) and 

suspended solids (TSS) contributed to the wastewater treatment plant by each customer class 

 

• Analysis of Customer Classes: Used to determine the appropriateness of the District’s existing customer classes 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 153 of 170



 RAFTELIS 30 

 

 

• Accessory Dwelling Units: Used to determine the demand relationships between single family residential, 

condominiums (2nd dwelling unit), and accessory dwelling units 

 

• Equivalent Residential Units: Used to determine the number of ERUs used in the allocation the revenue 

requirement to each customer class and develop customer class service charges 

 

PLANNED MEETINGS: 

• Web based meetings with District Staff as required 

• Meeting agendas and minutes 

 

DELIVERABLES: 

• Comprehensive understanding of customer class water demands  

• Demand forecast for the six-year period FY 2023-24 through FY 2028-29. 

 

Task 3: Financial Planning and Revenue Requirement Forecasting  

Raftelis will develop a comprehensive sewer utility financial plan for the period FY 2023-24 through FY 2028-29. The 

financial plan will include projections of: 

• Total system and customer class water consumption (Task 2) 

• Revenues earned from existing sewer service charges and proposed sewer service charge increases 

• Property tax receipts 

• Operations and maintenance expenses using inflation escalation factors 

• Debt service expenditures from both existing and projected future external debt financing 

• Capital improvement program expenditures as developed by the District and potentially informed by the: 

o The Septic-to-Sewer Strategic Plan 

o The lift station and collection system assessment and rehabilitation plan 

o The technical memoranda on required treatment  

 

Cash Reserve and Debt Service Coverage Analysis  

As part of the financial planning process the District’s current financial policies for the maintenance of operating and 

capital cash reserves will be analyzed. Modifications will be recommended by Raftelis as necessary to mitigate reasonably 

foreseeable risks. A similar analysis of the District’s current debt service coverage and recommended debt service 

coverage levels under different operational and external financing scenarios will also be completed. 

 

Optimal Financing Strategy 

As part of the financial planning process, Raftelis will work with District staff to develop a financing strategy for the 

period FY 2023-24 through FY 2028-29 that is composed of the optimal combination of rate revenue increases, 

connection fee receipts, and external debt financing. 

 

Microsoft Excel Financial Model 

As part of the study, a Microsoft Excel model will be developed that will include financial planning, cost allocation, rate 

design, customer bill impact, and connection fee components. This model will be developed to the specification of 

District staff and will be provided to the District for future use at the end of the study. The model will allow for virtually 

unlimited inputs for items such as inflation factors, customer class demand, percentage revenue increases, and external 

debt financing. 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 154 of 170



 RAFTELIS 31 

 

Financial Planning Outcomes 

The key outcomes of the financial planning process will include a projection of: 

• A projection of required annual increases in sewer service charge revenues 

• A project of the annual revenue requirement from rates during the period FY 2023-24 through FY 2028-29. The 

revenue requirement from rates will be adequate to recover all of the District’s projected operating costs including 

the maintenance of cash reserves and target debt service coverage ratios. 

 

PLANNED MEETINGS: 

• Web based meetings with District as required 

• Meeting agendas and minutes 

 

DELIVERABLES:  

• Multi-year financial plan and revenue requirement analysis 

 

Task 4: Cost-of-service Analysis 

Having established the revenue requirement from rates in Task 3, Raftelis will complete a COS analysis to allocate the 

revenue requirement to customer classes, Raftelis follows a multi-step COS process based on the industry standard 

methodologies published by the Water Environment Federation (WEF) in its Manual of Practice No. 27, Financing and Charges 

for Wastewater Systems, 2nd Edition. The use of WEF-standard cost allocation processes ensures that costs will be allocated to 

each customer class based on the proportionate demands they impose on the sewer utility system. This, in turn, serves as 

a critical outcome that assists in fully complying with the requirements of Proposition 218.  

 

Cost Functionalization 

As a first step in the sewer COS process, the total system revenue requirement must be allocated to the appropriate 

functional cost categories associated with both for wastewater treatment and collection system activities. Wastewater 

functions typically include treatment (often subdivided by treatment processes), collection, solids management, and 

customer service. During the initial phases of the study, we will work with District staff to determine the appropriate 

functional categories and factors to use in the analysis. Criteria for allocating costs will be based on an evaluation of the 

design and function of system facilities. For a utility that maintains its own wastewater treatment facilities, these 

functional categories often include the functions listed below:  

• Service laterals 

• Collection sewers 

• Interceptor/conveyance systems 

• Lift and pumping stations 

• Treatment plant - preliminary, secondary, and tertiary treatment 

• Treatment plant - disinfection 

• Sludge processing/biosolids handing 

• Meters 

• Customer service 

• Administration 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 155 of 170



 RAFTELIS 32 

 

Cost Allocation 

Following functionalization, an allocation process is undertaken. Some costs the utility incurs are a function of the water 

quantity discharged by customers, while other costs are associated with addressing wastewater strengths or conveying 

wastewater. Customer service, billing, and metering costs are generally a function of the number of customers served and 

the size and type of meter or service. As with the cost functionalization process, Raftelis will work with District staff to 

determine the specific allocation factors that best represent wastewater utility system cost drivers.  

 

Typical cost classification categories for a utility that maintains its own wastewater treatment facilities:  

• Variable Costs: 

o Average day volume  

o BOD 

o TSS 

• Fixed Costs 

o Customer billing, service, and metering 

 

Mass Balance: Estimation of Strength Loadings and Return Flow Factors 

Raftelis will complete a "mass balance" analysis that correlates wastewater treatment facility influent volumes and 

strength loadings to the wastewater return flows and strength loading characteristics of different wastewater service 

customer types. The process of estimating customer wastewater return flows and strength loadings by customer type may 

be a key driver of potential recommendations regarding alternative wastewater customer class definitions. 

 

Estimation of Total System Units of Service and Unit Costs of Service 

Based on the mass balance analysis, Raftelis will estimate the total system units of service associated with each cost 

classification parameter. Raftelis will then estimate the total system unit cost of service for each cost classification 

parameter.  

 

Distribution of Costs to Customer Classes 

The final step in the cost-of-service process is the determination of the specific revenue requirement for each sewer service 

customer class. This is achieved by multiplying the total system unit cost of service for each customer parameter by the 

unique units of service estimated for each customer class. 

 

PLANNED MEETINGS:  

• Web-based meeting with District staff as required 

• Meeting agendas and minutes 

 

DELIVERABLES:  

• Recommended sewer customer class definitions 

• Determination of revenue requirements for wastewater customer classes 

 

Task 5: Rate Development  

Having established the customer class revenue requirement from rates in Task 4, Raftelis will develop proposed sewer 

service charges, under the District’s current rate structure, for the period FY 2023-24 through FY 2029-29. The proposed 

sewer service charges will be designed in a manner in keeping with the requirements of Proposition 218. The rate design 

process will include: 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 156 of 170



 RAFTELIS 33 

 

ERU Update 

Non-residential customer ERU counts will be updated based 

on the demand analysis completed in Task 2 

 

Commercial Customer Strength Loading 

Classifications 

The non-residential customer class strength loading 

classifications used in the District’s commercial sewer service 

charge rates will be reviewed.  

 

Residential Customer Land Use  

The differentials between single family residential and 

condominiums (2nd dwelling units) will be reviewed. If 

appropriate, sewer service charges for an accessory dwelling 

unit will be recommended. 

 

Alternative Rate Structure 

Recommendations  

Based on our findings in the study, Raftelis may recommend 

one or more modifications to the District’s existing sewer 

service charge rate structure. Any recommended 

modifications will be made in a manner keeping with the 

requirements of Proposition 218. The rate design process will 

include: 

 

PLANNED MEETINGS:  

• Web-based meeting with District staff as required 

• Meeting agendas and minutes 

 

DELIVERABLES:  

• Recommended proposed sewer service charge rates 

for the period FY 2023-24 through FY 2028-29 

 

Task 6: Connection Fee Evaluation and Update  

As currently understood by Raftelis, the District assesses a connection fee of $8.300 per ERU. This connection fee is the 

outcome of a connection fee study finalized in 2017. The methodology used to develop the District’s connection fees is 

based on a technical memo dated May 3, 2010. Our connection fee evaluation and update will include the following 

components: 

 

Review of the Existing Methodology 

Raftelis will throughout review the 2017 study and the 2010 technical memo.  

 

Buy-In Method 

The buy-in approach is most suitable when the current 

system has excess capacity to accommodate new 

customers. It is also the most common methodology. The 

buy-in approach rests on the premise that new customers 

are entitled to service at the same “price or cost” as existing 

customers. However, existing customers have already 

developed the facilities that will serve new customers, 

including the costs associated with financing those services. 

Under this approach, new customers/development pays the 

amount equal to the net investment (accounting for 

depreciation) already made by existing users, based on the 

value of the utility. The value is normally established using 

the cost approach under replacement cost less 

depreciation. There are two variations of the buy-in 

approach: the system buy-in and the equity buy-in. For the 

system buy-in, the system value is divided by the ultimate 

system demand to determine the proposed capacity fee. For 

the equity buy-in, the system value is divided by the current 

demand.  

 

Incremental Method 

The incremental method is a forward-looking calculation and 

can be used when substantial new investment in capital 

facilities is required to serve new customers. Stated simply, 

it is the value of the new facilities divided by the total 

capacity of the new facilities. 

 

Hybrid Method 

A hybrid approach can be used when new customers will 

use both current excess capacity in existing facilities and 

new facilities. Mathematically, it is the weighted average of 

the buy-in method and the incremental method.  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 157 of 170



 RAFTELIS 34 

 

Determination of Capacity Charge Calculation Methodology 

As discussed on the right side of the previous page, there are three industry-standard methodologies for the calculation of 

capacity charges (Buy-In, Incremental, Hybrid). Raftelis will work with District staff to determine which of these 

methodologies is most appropriate. 

 

Capacity Determination and Asset Valuations  

Informed by the previous tasks, Raftelis will develop a capacity charge model that reflects the following: 

• Current annual and maximum day demands for each major functional component of the treated water system 

• Infrastructure valuation for each major functional component of the treated water system. For existing assets, the 

valuation will be based on replacement cost less deprecation (RCLD). The replacement cost will be developed 

using the construction cost inflation factors published in the Engineering News-Record (ENR CCI). The value of 

growth-related infrastructure will be based on present value as expressed in 2022 dollars. 

 

Calculation of Updated Capacity Charges 

Raftelis will calculate the unit cost of capacity for an ERU using the following information. 

• Annual and maximum day demand per ERU demand 

• Infrastructure capacity for each major functional component of the treated water system 

• Infrastructure valuation for each major functional component of the treated water system 

 

PLANNED MEETINGS:  

• Web-based meeting with District staff as required 

• Meeting agendas and minutes 

 

DELIVERABLES:  

• Recommended connection fee methodology 

• Updated connection fees 

 

 

Task 7: Cost Benchmarking 

In this task, we will compare the District’s current sewer system costs (operational, capital expenditures, and debt against 

benchmarks provided in the American Water Works Association publication, “AWWA Utility Benchmarking, Performance 

Management for Water and Wastewater 2021”. Raftelis will also compare the District’s sewer system costs to up to four 

comparable utilities selected by the District staff to the extent that adequate cost information if available for these utilities.  

 

PLANNED MEETINGS:  

• Web-based meeting with District staff as required 

• Meeting agendas and minutes 

 

DELIVERABLES:  

• Benchmarking analysis 

 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 158 of 170



 RAFTELIS 35 

 

Task 8: Rate Survey 

Raftelis will complete a survey that compares the District’s existing and proposed rates for FY 2023-24 through FY 2028-

29 for up to a maximum of eight public agencies selected by District staff. 

 

PLANNED MEETINGS:  

• Web-based meeting with District staff as required 

• Meeting agendas and minutes 

 

DELIVERABLES:  

• Rate survey 

 

Task 9: Report Preparation 

We will prepare draft and final reports according to the specifications provided by the District in Section 4 (3). The rate 

study reports prepared by Raftelis are exceptionally comprehensive and provide our clients with a detailed administrative 

record that describes the rationale for the assumptions, calculations, and projections made in the rate study. An 

administrative record of this type can be extremely useful in potential Proposition 218 litigation. 

 

PLANNED MEETINGS: 

• Web-based meetings with District staff as required 

 

DELIVERABLES: 

• Draft and final reports per District specifications 

 

Task 10: Public Meetings 

As specified in the District’s RFP, our proposed consulting fee includes two (2) Finance Committee meetings and (1) 

Strategic Planning Committee meeting during the Rate Study Analysis Phase.  

 

During the Final Report and Recommendation Phase of the study, our proposed consulting fee also includes a: 

• Finance Committee meeting in February 2023 to present our financial planning recommendations on gather 

feedback on proposed rate increases.  

• Board of Directors meeting in March 2023 to incorporate feedback from the Finance Committee and present final 

recommendations to the Board. 

 

PLANNED MEETINGS: 

• Rate Study Analysis Phase: 2 Finance Committee meetings, 1 Strategic Planning Committee meeting 

• Final Report and Recommendation Phase: Finance Committee meeting in February 2023 and Board of Directors 

meeting in March 2023 

 

DELIVERABLES: 

• All meeting presentation materials 

• Meeting minutes 

 

 

 

 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 159 of 170



 RAFTELIS 36 

 

 

Schedule 
Raftelis will complete the scope of services within the timeframe shown in the schedule below. The proposed schedule 

assumes a notice-to-proceed by the mid-September 2022 and that Raftelis will receive the needed data in a timely manner 

and be able to schedule meetings as necessary. Project completion is estimated for March 2023. 

 

 

   

SCHEDULE 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 160 of 170



 RAFTELIS 37 

 

Contract Requirements 
We request that the District consider making the following modifications, shown in red below, to the Professional 

Services Agreement. Please contact us if you have any questions or concerns about these modifications. 

 

 

 

 

3. Standard of Performance 

Consultant agrees to undertake and complete these services to conclusion, using that standard of care, skill, and diligence 

normally provided by a professional person in performance of similar services at the time and place the services are performed. 

 

15. Confidentiality of Information 

Any documents, materials, personal or privileged information given to or prepared or assembled by Consultant under this 

Agreement shall be confidential and shall not be made available to any third person or organization by Consultant without prior 

written approval of the General Manager, or as required by applicable law or legal process. 

 

16. Indemnity 

Consultant agrees to indemnify, hold harmless and defend District, its governing board, and each member thereof, and every 

officer, employee, representative or agent of District, from any and all third party liability, claims, demands, actions, damages 

(whether in contract or tort, including personal injury, death at any time, or property damage), costs and financial loss, including 

all costs and expenses and fees of litigation or arbitration, that arise directly or indirectly from any negligent acts or omissions 

related to this Agreement performed by Consultant or its agents, employees, subconsultants, subcontractors and other persons 

acting on Consultant’s behalf. This agreement to indemnify, hold harmless and defend shall apply whether such acts or 

omissions are the product of active negligence, passive negligence, or acts for which Consultant or its agents, employees, 

subconsultants, subcontractors and other persons acting on Consultant’s behalf would be held strictly liable ; provided that 

Consultant's indemnity shall not include the negligence of any indemnified party. 

 

CONTRACT REQUIREMENTS 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 161 of 170



290506.v2 

ORDINANCE NO. 20 
 

ORDINANCE OF THE GOVERNING BOARD  
OF THE MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT 
ESTABLISHING COMPENSATION OF 
DIRECTORS AND REPEALING ORDINANCE 
NO. 17 

 
 

WHEREAS, Health and Safety Code section 6489 authorizes the Board of Directors to 
adopt an ordinance pursuant to Water Code sections 20200 et seq. in order to compensate each 
director above the amount established in Section 6489; and 

WHEREAS, on March 11, 2021, Ordinance No. 17 established the compensation to be 
paid to directors; and 

WHEREAS, Ordinance No. 17 authorized the Board to adopt an ordinance to increase 
compensation in an amount not to exceed five percent of current compensation for each calendar 
year after the operative date of the last adjustment; and 

WHEREAS, director compensation has not increased since the adoption of Ordinance 
No. 17; and 

WHEREAS, the duties and responsibilities of the Board, thus of each director, require 
and will continue to require substantial and increased time to be expended by each director in 
order to carry out District business; and 

WHEREAS, the Board has elected to fix the compensation of directors pursuant to Water 
Code sections 20200 et seq.; and 

WHEREAS, notice of a public hearing as a part of the Board's regular meeting held on 
October 13, 2022, was published pursuant to Government Code section 6066 and Water Code 
section 20203; and 

WHEREAS, proof of publication of said notice on September X, and October X, 2022, in 
the Santa Barbara News-Press has been filed with the records of the regular meeting of October 
13, 2022; and 

WHEREAS, the public hearing on the adoption of this ordinance was held on October 13, 
2022, as required by Water Code section 20203. 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT ORDAINED that:  

1. Pursuant to section 20202 of the Water Code, the standard and maximum 
compensation of each director of the Board shall be $231.00 per day for each day of 
attendance at a regular or special meeting of the Board or a meeting of a standing or ad 
hoc committee of the Board. 

2. A director authorized and requested by the Board to attend a conference, seminar, 
or meeting that is not specified in sections 1 and 3 shall be compensated $144.37 per day 
for each day of attendance at such conference, seminar, or meeting and no travel day will 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 162 of 170



Ordinance No. 20 
Compensation of Directors 
 
 

290506.v2 

be compensated. No more than eight meeting days per calendar year may be compensated 
under this section. 

3.  A director authorized and requested by the Board to serve as an officer or as a 
liaison to affiliated agencies as an official District representative shall be compensated 
$144.37 per day for each day of attendance at such meeting. 

4.  The compensation fixed by this ordinance for meetings and services described in 
sections 1, 2, and 3 herein shall not be paid for more than a total of ten days in any 
calendar month. 

5. Henceforth, the amount of director compensation may be increased upon adoption 
of an ordinance in an amount not to exceed five percent of the then current compensation 
for each calendar year after the operative date of the last adjustment under Water Code 
section 20202. 

6. This ordinance repeals prior action providing for compensation as of its effective 
date, including Ordinance No. 17. 

7. Immediately following adoption, the Clerk shall cause this ordinance to be 
published one time in a newspaper of general circulation within the District. 

8. If any section of this ordinance is held to be invalid or unconstitutional, the 
remaining sections shall remain valid. The Board hereby declares that it would have 
adopted this ordinance regardless that particular sections may be declared invalid or 
unconstitutional. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of Montecito Sanitary District on this 13th 
day of October, 2022, to become effective sixty days thereafter by the following vote: 

AYES:  

NAYS: 

ABSTAIN: 

ABSENT: 
                           __________________________ 

    Donnie Lee Johnson 
President of the Governing Board of the 

MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT 
 
                     
             __________________________ 

        Dana Newquist 
  Secretary of the Governing Board of the 

MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT 
 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 163 of 170



1 

MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT 

STAFF REPORT- ITEM 10D

DATE:  September 22, 2022  

TO: Board of Directors  

FROM: Brad Rahrer, General Manager 

SUBJECT: 1508/1510/1516 E Mountain Drive – Sewer Main Extension 

SUMMARY:  The sewer main extension to serve 1508, 1510, and 1516 E. 
Mountain Drive was constructed by the property owner group per 
MSD standards and dedicated to the District for ownership once 
construction is completed.  

RECOMMENDATION: That the board of directors consider the following: 
1. Accept the sewer main extension and direct staff to provide owners

written notice of the District’s acceptance of the sewer main extension.

Background 
Previous sewer main extensions up E. Mountain Drive brought District sewer service as 
far as 1514 E. Mountain Drive. This private sewer main extension project proposed 
extending District sewer service to the remaining properties at 1508, 1510, and 1516 E. 
Mountain Drive. The project included installing 254 linear feet of 8” PVC sewer main, two 
manholes, an end-of-the-line cleanout, and four sewer laterals per District standards.  

At the August 12, 2021 Board Meeting, the Board of Directors approved a dedication 
agreement with True Horizon LLC to extend the sewer facilities in E Mountain Drive.  The 
construction of the sewer main extension was substantially completed in January 2022, but 
had been awaiting manhole raising and final paving completed in August before final 
signoff and acceptance by the District.  The Project has been inspected by District staff and 
deemed complete. 

Fiscal Impact: No significant impact to the District. Under the dedication agreement, the 
property owner was responsible to pay for all design, construction, and inspection, and 
District connection fees.  With the completion on of the construction and District approval, 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 164 of 170

https://www.montsan.org/meetings


2 

the District will return to the owner $89,412.50 as the remaining balance of the construction 
bond and unused portion of the inspection deposit less 10% for any defects or maintenance 
issues. 
 
Previous Related Action – 
August 12, 2022 – Board of Directors approved a dedication agreement for sewer main 
extension 
 
Goals and Objectives – To file a Notice of Completion and return unused to close the 
project.  
 
Environmental Determination – Project was categorically exempt by CEQA. 
 
Analysis – Justifications:  The construction work has been completed and the District can 
accept the sewer main into its inventory of assets it maintains. 

 
 
OTHER DEPARTMENTS INVOLVED:  Collections 
 
ATTACHMENTS:   Vicinity Map  

Acceptance and Notice of Completion Letter 
    
  

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 165 of 170



3 

Vicinity Map 

Properties to be served 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 166 of 170



Montecito Sanitary District 
 

1042 Monte Cristo Lane A Public Service Agency PHONE: (805) 969-4200 
Santa Barbara, CA  93108 www.montsan.org 
General Manager: Bradley Rahrer, P.E. E-MAIL: brahrer@montsan.org

September 22, 2022 

True Horizon LLC 
c/o Cristal Clark 
PO Box 50206 
Santa Barbara, CA  93150 

SUBJECT: ACCEPTANCE OF SEWER FACILITIES AND NOTICE OF COMPLETION 
ADDRESS: 1510 EAST MOUNTAIN DRIVE / APN: 011-070-025 

Dear Ms. Clark and Mr. Copley: 

This letter is to provide you with written documentation of the District’s acceptance of the sewer facilities installed in 
East Mountain Drive in order to serve 1508, 1510 and 1516 East Mountain Drive. The project included a 254 ft. 
extension of an 8-inch sewer main, 2 manholes, 4 private sewer laterals, and an end of line cleanout. 

At their meeting on September 22, 2022, the Board of Directors for the Montecito Sanitary District voted to accept the 
sewer facilities and authorized me to write you this letter documenting such. 

On June 10, 2021, under Construction Permit B-263, you deposited a construction bond of $98,200, which equaled the 
cost for construction of the sewer main to be refunded when the project is deemed complete.  In addition, as part of 
Construction Permit B-263, you paid an Inspection Deposit of $14,000.  At completion, inspection costs for the project 
totaled $12,967.50, which leaves a refund of $1,032.50. 

A check in the amount of $89,412.50 has been issued to you as a refund for the remaining balance of the construction 
bond less 10% ($9,820) that the District will keep as a deposit for a period of one year from the date of acceptance 
(September 22, 2023).  The deposit will be used only in the event that defects are detected in the construction during 
the one-year warranty period. 

Please do not hesitate to contact the District Office at (805) 969-4200 if you have any questions.  In order to issue a 
refund after the one-year warranty period, please keep District staff appraised of any name or address changes. 

Sincerely, 

Bradley Rahrer, P.E. 
General Manager/District Engineer 

4
MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 167 of 170



MANAGER'S REPORT 
For the Regular Board Meeting of 

September 22, 2022 

8. DISTRICT OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE

A. Information Items
General Manager Brad Rahrer, P.E. will provide informational, nonactionable, updates
regarding matters before the District.

B. Operations and Maintenance Reports
For the period of August 1 through August 31, 2022

WWT PLANT STATISTICS FOR DURATION: 31 DAYS 
Flows 15.307 MG 0.494 MGD avg 
Hypochlorite used 8,845Gal  Gallons day, avg 
Bisulfite used 2,180 Gal 70 Gallons day, avg. 
Effluent T.S.S. 3.6 mg/L avg 
Effluent CBOD5 2.29 mg/L avg 
BAC-T < 1.9 MPN/100mL median 
Rainfall .01 inches 

SLUDGE DISPOSAL - LOAD AND DISPOSAL BY ENGEL & GRAY 
Load Date Total Haul (lbs) Total Haul (Tons) 

08/10/22 38,780 19.39 

08/22/22 38,000 19.00 

08/24/22 42,480 21.42 

Totals: 119,260 59.63 

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 168 of 170



PLANT OPERATIONS 
• No violation of the NPDES permit during this reporting period.
• Operated the belt press for a total of 18 hours.
• 8/1/22 Performed scheduled cleaning and grit removal in mixed liquor channel and

WAS/RAS wetwell.
• 8/12/22 After hours Call-out due to chlorine analyzer residual alarm.
• 8/18/22 Peter Von Langen from Regional Water Quality Control Board performed site

visit of WWTP.
• 8/22/22 Operations replaced diffusers in AB #1.

PLANT MAINTENANCE 
• Performed routine inspections and maintenance of District Buildings and Equipment.
• Monitored (2) Watson Marlow Peristaltic chemical feed pumps for demo
• 8/3/22 Maintenance staff performed preventative maintenance on Clarifier #2
• 8/25/22 through 9/2/22 Maintenance staff and Operations staff performed scheduled

maintenance on swingarms and replaced all diffusers on Aeration Basin #1

COLLECTIONS 
• 0 public sewer system overflows this reporting period.
• 0 private sewer system overflows this reporting period.
• Linear Feet Cleaned: 57,784 ft, 10.9 Miles.
• 66% of linear feet cleaned showed Roots & Debris.
• Linear Feet Inspected: 4,400 ft, 0.83 Miles.
• Tierra Contracting completed Lilac/Oak Grove/Tollis sewer mainline extension project.
• 8/6/22 Collection staff after hours call out for Miramar Lift Station high flow alarm.
• 8/11/22 Priority Safety calibrated all confined space gas monitors

LABORATORY 

The Laboratory Manager and Operators assigned to the Laboratory performed the following 
activities during the reporting period: 

• Collected 199 permit-required, process control and recycled pilot samples
• Ran 155 tests plus 85 duplicate tests on above samples
• Performed 50 calibrations on laboratory equipment and 566 quality control checks
• Preparing for upcoming ELAP-required on-site inspection of laboratory quality control

C. Agreements to be signed
None

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 169 of 170



12-MONTH EFFLUENT FLOW / RAINFALL

0.05

1.16

0.08

8.85

0.07
0.01

1.60

0.25 0.08 0.00 0.01 0.01

0.52 0.53 0.54

0.64

0.54

0.51 0.50 0.50
0.48

0.46

0.50 0.49

0.00

0.10

0.20

0.30

0.40

0.50

0.60

0.70

0.00

1.00

2.00

3.00

4.00

5.00

6.00

7.00

8.00

9.00

10.00

September October November December January February March April May June July August

Av
er

ag
e 

Da
ily

 F
lo

w
 

(M
G

D)

To
ta

l M
on

th
ly

 P
re

ci
pi

ta
tio

n
(in

ch
)

MSD Rainfall & Effluent Flow - Last 12 Months

 Rainfall Inches Effluent Flow MGD

MSD Board Meeting 
September 22, 2022 
Page 170 of 170


	5. GSA Letter and Materials for GW Well_MSD
	GSA Letter to MSD Monitoring Well 9-16-22 rev1.pdf (p.1-2)
	Attachment 1 - CDP Exemption Request Submittal_Final.pdf (p.3-13)
	Attachment 2 - GSA-MSD Deed - Easement DRAFT.pdf (p.14-18)
	Attachment 3 - NOE Groundwater Well Construction.pdf (p.19)
	APN: 007-220-001

	Attachment 4 - Staff Report - GW Well Project_Final_MSD.pdf (p.20-25)

	6A_Board Minutes 2022-08-11
	6B_Board Minutes 2022-08-25
	7. Resl 2022-956_Final Draft AB 361 Resolution(284902.1)_rev
	10C. DRAFT ORD No. 20 Compensation of Directors 09-01-22(290506.2)
	Item 10D. Staff Report 1508-1510-1516 E Mountain NOC
	MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT

	11. Mgmt Rpt 2022-09-22
	8. DISTRICT OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE
	A. Information Items
	B. Operations and Maintenance Reports
	WWT PLANT STATISTICS FOR DURATION: 31 DAYS
	SLUDGE DISPOSAL - LOAD AND DISPOSAL BY ENGEL & GRAY
	PLANT OPERATIONS
	PLANT MAINTENANCE
	LABORATORY

	C. Agreements to be signed

	2_August 2022 AP_CheckHistory.pdf
	Sheet1

	3_August 2022 CIP_CheckHistory.pdf
	Sheet1

	4_August 2022 RW_CheckHistory.pdf
	Sheet1

	10B. Staff Report - Sewer Service Rate Study_with Proposals.pdf
	MONTECITO SANITARY DISTRICT
	RDN Technical Proposal for Montecito Sanitary District Sewer Rate Study.pdf
	Cover Letter
	Table of Contents
	Company Qualifications
	Technical Approach
	Project Schedule
	Allocated Staff Hours
	Contract Requirements
	Appendix - Resumes

	HDR Engineering_MSD Sewer Rate Study Technical FIle.pdf
	Proposal to Conduct a Sewer Rate Study 
	August 15, 2022

	Truckee Donner Public Utility District
	Proposal to Conduct a Comprehensive Water Rate Study
	Table of Contents
	1. Experience and Qualifications
	1.1 Introduction
	1.2 HDR’s Qualifications and Relevant Experience
	1.3 Consultant Project Team
	1.3.1 Project Team Organization
	1.3.2 Key Project Team Members
	1.3.3 Resumes of Key Project Team Members

	1.4 Project Examples and Client References
	1.5 Subconsultants
	1.6 Summary

	2. Project Understanding
	2.1 Introduction
	2.2 Goals and Objectives for the Study
	2.3 Overview of the General Methodology
	2.4 Scope of Services
	2.5 Keys to a Successful Study
	2.6 Summary

	Task Approach: 
	Task Approach: 
	Task Approach: 
	Task Approach: 
	Task Approach: 
	Task Approach: 
	HDR rate models clearly display the costs and rate impacts of various operating and capital components.
	Task Approach: 
	Task Approach: 
	Task Approach: 
	Task Approach: 
	Task Approach: 
	Task Approach: 
	3.  Project Schedule
	3.1 Introduction
	3.2 Project Time Schedule
	3.3 Summary

	4. Labor Rates and Fee Schedule
	4.1 Introduction
	4.2 Estimated Staff Hours
	4.3 Summary

	5. Contract Requirements
	5.1 Introduction
	5.2 Exceptions to the District’s PSA
	5.3 Exceptions to the Exhibit B Insurance
	5.4 Summary




	From Public Agency: Montecito Groundwater Sustainability Agency
	FromAddress1: 583 San Ysidro Road
	FromAddress2: Santa Barbara, CA 93108
	County of 1: Santa Barbara
	County of 2: 105 E. Anapamu St, Room 407
	County of 3: Santa Barbara, CA 93101
	Project Title: Groundwater Monitoring Well Construction Project
	Project Applicant: Montecito Groundwater Sustainability Agency
	Project Location: 1042 Monte Cristo Drive, SB, CA 93108 & 449 San Ysidro Road, SB, CA 93108
	Project Location  City: Santa Barbara 
	Project Location  County: Santa Barbara 
	Description of Nature: The project will drill five groundwater monitoring wells to provide geologic and groundwater data for the Montecito Groundwater Basin.
	Name of Public Agency Approving Project: Montecito Groundwater Sustainability Agency
	Name of Person or Agency Carrying Out Project: Nicholas Kunstek, Groundwater Specialist
	Ministerial Sec 21080b1 15268: 
	Declared Emergency Sec 21080b3 15269a: 
	Emergency Project Sec 21080b4 15269bc: 
	Categorical Exemption State type and section number: x
	Categorical Exemption Type and Section Number: 15306, 15303, &15304
	Statutory Exemptions State code number: 
	Statuatory Exemptions: Code: 
	ReasonExempt: 15306:The wells drilled by this project will be for data collection purposes only. The wells will be incorporated into the Agency's existing groundwater monitoring networks. 15303/15304: Construction of the wells will involve minor land alterations where the wells will be drilled, and constitute new construction of small structures.
	Contact Person: Nicholas Kunstek
	Area CodeTelephoneExtension: 805-969-2271
	YesNOWfiled: Off
	NOWfiledno: Off
	Date_2: 
	Date: 
	Title: 
	Signed by Lead Agency: On
	Signed by Applicant: Off
	Date Received for filing at OPR: 


